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This is a translation of the Hungarian Report
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Sherbank Magyarorszag Zrt.
Report on the audit of the consolidated annual financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 2019 consolidated annual financial statements of
Sherbank Magyarorszag Zrt. ("the Group™), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019 - showing a balance sheet total of
HUF 423,250 million and a total comprehensive income for the vyear of
HUF 2,129 million -, the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated annual financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion the consolidated annual financial staterments give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU ("EU IFRSs") and has been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the supplementary requirements of Act C of 2000 on Accounting
{"Hungarian Accounting Law") relevant for consolidated annual financial statements
prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and
with applicable laws and requlations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities (“Regulation (EU} No.
537/2014"). Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated annual financial
stalements” section of our reporl.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the applicable ethical
requirements according to relevant laws in effect in Hungary and the policy of the
Chamber of Hungarian Auditors on the ethical rules and disciplinary proceedings and,
concerning matters not regulated by any of these, with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements,

We believe that the audil evidence we have abtained is sufficient and approgriate to

provide a basis for our apinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consaolidated
annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated annual financial statements section” of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the perfermance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of malerial
misstatement of the consolidated annual financial statements. The results of our audit
pracedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters belaw, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated annual financial
statements.

Credit Impairment

The Group calculates credit impairment
in accordance with IFRS9 Financial
instruments. Credit impairment Is a
highly subjective area due to the level of
judgement applied by management in
determining expected credit losses
("ECL"). The identification of
impairment and the determination of
the recoverable amount are an
inherently uncertain process involving
various assumptions and factors,
including the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash
flows, and expected net selling prices of
callaterals. The portiolios which give
rise lo the greatest uncertainty are
typically those where impairments are
derived from estimates of future cash
flows and realizable value of collateral,
calculated using collective impairment
models, are unsecured or are subject to
potential collateral shortfalls. These
ECL maodels require the significant
judgment of management regarding
correct segmentation, the identification
ol significant changes in credit risk, the
inclusion of forward-looking elements

& mmeenber T of Crngd B voung Giabad Limmibsd

We involved valuation specialists to
assist us in performing our audit
procedures, Our audit procedures
included among others the following
procedures.

We assessed the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of internal
controls over the approval, recording
and monitering of loans and receivables
to customers and controls over ECL
calculations including the quality of
underiying data and systems.

For ECL for lpans and receivables to
customers calculated on an individual

basis, we tesled the assumptions
underlying the impairment
identification and guantification

focusing both on loan cases with the
most significant potential impact on the
consolidated annual financial
statements and random samples. We
assessed the Group's assumptions on
the expected future cash flows,
including the value of realisable
collateral and estimates of recovery on
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as well as the application of
management overlay to reflect on
circumstances beyond the modelling
capabilities. The use of different
modelling techniques and assumptions
could produce significantly different
estimates of loan loss provisions.

Due to the significance of loans and
receivables to customers (representing
63% of Total Assets as at 31 December
2019) and the related estimation
uncertainty, this is considered a key
audit matter,

Information Technology (IT) systems

A significant part of the Group's
financial reporting process and interest
and fee revenue recognition is heavily
reliant on IT systems with automated
processes and controls over the
capture, storage and extraction of
information. A fundamental component
ol these processes and controls s
ensuring appropriate user access and
change management protocols exst,
and are being adhered to.

These protocols are important because
they ensure that access and changes to
IT systems and related data are made
and authorized in an approprialte
manner,

A Fmesnhiar fim of D3] i Sang Global Leniled

default based on our own understanding
and available market information.

For ECL for leans and receivables lo
customers calculated on a collective
basis we evaluated the model
governance, methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used (probability of

default, loss given default, significant

changes in credit risk and forward-
looking elements) including model
validations and backtesting.

We also assessed whelher Lhe
disclosures in the consolidated annual
financial statement  appropriately

reflect the Group's exposure to credit
risk and are compliant with the EU
IFR3s.

The Group's disclosures about its risk
management policies are included in
Note 6.4 - Accounting policies which
specifically explains the key
assumptions used when determining
credit risk and their evaluation are
detailed in Note 6.6.4 - Loans and
advances to customers and Note 6.11.3
Credit risk.

We focused our audit on those IT
systems and controls that are
significant for the Group's financial
reporting. As audit procedures over the
IT systems and application controls
require specific expertise, we involved
IT audit specialists in our audit
procedures.

We understood and assessed the overall
IT control environment and the controls
in place which included controls aver
access to systems and data, as well as
system changes. We adjusted our audit
approach based on the financial
significance of the system and whether
there were automated procedures
supported by that system.
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As our audit sought to place a high level
of retiance on IT systems and
application controls related to financial
reporting, a high proportion of the
overall audit effort was in this area.
Furthermore the complexily of |IT
systems and nature of application

As part of our audit procedures we
tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over appropriate access rights
to assess whether only appropriate
users had the ability to create, modify or
delete user accounts for the relevant in-
scope applications, We also tested the

controls requires special expertise o
be involved in the audit. We therefore
consider this as a key audit matter.

operating effectiveness of controls
around system development and
program changes to establish that
changes to the system were
appropriately authorized, developed
and implemented. Additionally, we
assessed and tested the design and
operating  effectiveness of the
application controls embedded in the
processes relevant to our audit.

The Group's disclosures about its IT
Systems are included in Note 6.4B - IT
systems used by the Group.

Other information

Other informalion consists of the 2019 consolidated business report of the Group.
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated business report in
accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law and other relevant legal requirements,
if any. Our opinion on the consolidated annual financial staterments does not cover the
consolidated business report.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the consolidated business reporl and, in doing so, consider
whether 1) the consolidated business report is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated and 2) the consolidated business report
has been prepared in accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law and other
relevant legal requirements, if any.

We are required to confirm also whether the consolidated business report includes the
non-linancial statement as required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

In our opinion, the consolidated business report of the Group for 2019 is consistent, in

all material respects, with the 2019 consolidated annual finaneial statements of the
Group and the relevant requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law.
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Since no other legal regulations prescribe for the Group further requirements with
regard to its consolidated business report, we do not express opinion in this regard.

We also confirm that the consolidated business report includes the non-financial
statement as required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

Further to the above, based on the knowledge we have obtained about the Group and
its environment in the course of the audit we are required to report whether we have
identified any material misstatement in the consolidated business report, and if so, the
nature of the misstatement in question. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated annual financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated annual financial statements in accordance with the EU IFRSs and the
supplementary requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law relevant for
consolidated annual financial statements prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated annual financial statements that are free from material
missltatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated annual financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated annual financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasanable assurance about whether the consolidated
annual financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
duc to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Hungarian Nalional Auditing Standards and with
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 will always detect a material misstatemenl when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggreqate, they could reasonably be expecled to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated annual financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and with
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a materlal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated annual
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
annual financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consalidated annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated annual financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we ldentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters cammunicated with those charged with governance we determine
those matters thal were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated annual
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory reguirements

Reporting requirements on content of auditor's report in compliance with Regulation
(EU) No. 537/2014:

Appointment and Approval of Auditor

We were appointed as statutory auditor by the General Assembly of Shareholders of
the Group on 28 May 2019. Total uninterrupted engagement peried. including previous
renewals (extension of the peried for which we were ariginally appointed) and
reappointments for the statutory auditor, has lasted for eight year.

Consistency with Additional Report to Audit Committee

Our audit opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements expressed herein is
consistent with the additional report to the audit committee of the Group, which we
issued in accordance with Article 11 of the Regulation (EU) Mo, 537/2014 on the same
date as the date of this report,

MNon-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Arficle 5(1) of
Regulation (EU) No, 537/2014 were provided by us to the Group and we remained
independent from the Group in conducting the audit.

In addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the consolidated
business report and in the consolidated annual financial statements, no other services
were provided by us to the Group.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Szabd Gergely.

Budapest, 21 April 2020

Szabo Gergely Szabg Gergely
engagement partner Registered auditor
Ernst & Young Kft. Chamber membership No.: 005676

1132 Budapest, Vaci ut 20,
Registration No. 001165
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Sherbank Hungary Lid,

dauun_ HUF million

1. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Budapest, 21 April 2020

Richard Szabd
Chairman - CEQ

edata fn HUF milllion
Mote 3.12.2009 Maz208
Assets
| Gash and cash equivalents 661 98 846 61 AOe
Securiiies 662 31 016 43 8B4
Recelvables from credi institutions 663 TREL] 22 455
Loans and sdvances 10 cusiomes 664 265 637 228 B35
Piant, propery and aquipment 665 2237 1408
Right-of-use asaets 666 3078 ]
Intangible assels 667 5517 4060
Equily investments 668 B13 438
Investmen| property 0 0
Tax assals G689 27 13
Derivatie assels G610 228 1218
Oither assets 6811 | 869 1885
Non-current aasils and disposal groups hekd Tor sale 6612 13 13|
Total Assols 423 250 365 537
Linbilities
Lizbilities due to banks 6613 52 697 34 938
Lisbilltses dus to customers 6614 301 885 | 265319
Dabt securities n ksue 6615 1310 4177
Subordinated liabiities 6.6 18 8413 9 062
Provisions 66,17 1232 748
Tax linbilities 660 21 %
Damvative abiiites 6610 1265 a2
Ciherr labiiidies 6618 B 638 62580
Non-gurrent liabilites and disposal groups held for sale ) 0
Tatal Liabllitios 376 351 321303
Equity )
Share capital 6610 ATE ara
Shara premium 6620 o4 418 94 416
Oiher resarves 6.6.21 a1 1886
f Et_lpr m NECOITH - 68 261 267
Retained eamngs B 515926 54051
Total equity 48 899 44 534
| Total liabilities and equity - 423 250 365 837

i

Eva miismz- Gyéngybsy

CFO




Consalidated Finsncinl Statements 31, December 2019
Sherbank Hungary Lid. data in HUF million

2. INCOME STATEMENT

data i HUF milfon
Noto 20149 2018

Profit or loas for the year
Interest recenvable and similar income 671 11 816 11 738
Interast payabla and skrilar expanse 672 -2 437 2 357
Net prowtsion eharge for loan impalment 673 -B46 883
Met interest income minus risk provisions 8633 8489
Fee and commission income 674 o 206 B 346
Fea and commission expenss 6.7.6 1422 -1 208
Net fee and commiesions income 7 784 7138

| Net trading income 676 304 1651

Net gain o loas on sacurities B.7.7 -85 B4
Changes in allowances for olher risks 6.7.8 420 -235
Other operating income 679 2655 784
Other oparating expenses 6.7.10 18122 -15 359
Result before tix 2829 1 844
Incoma tax 6.7.11 A58 467
Frofil or logs after tax from continuing operatiohs 2361 1347
Profit ar loas after lax from discontinued operations 0 1]
Profit or loss after tax 2361 1347
Gharges in general reserves 238 -135
Profit or loss for the year 2125 1212
Other comprehansive income for the year 68 4 -493
Total comprehensive incoma for the year 2129 e

Budapest, 21 April 2020

:s S0 ) /

g
Richard Szabd . Eva Tudi&unzymyﬁw

Chairman - CEQ CFO




Consolidated Financial Statements 31. December 2019
Sherbank Hungary Lid, _ data in HUF million

3. STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

N dita in WUF million
Note 2208 31122018

Other comprahensive income
Othar comprehansive results nol to ba reciasaified to profit or loss
_ Ghanges in fair value of equity instruments designated at FYOC|
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities measured al FVTPL
due to changes in credil risks
Other items
Retated laos
Other comprehensive resufls lo be reclassified fo profit or loss
| Changes in fair value of debl instrumants measured at FVOC! 68
Changes in fair valus of loans messured at FVOGI 68
1 Hﬂdumﬁ:ﬂahnnlupmnurm o
g&;m of 105 from sake of debl instrumenls measured al
Impact of transition from LAS 36 to IFRS 8
Diher toms
Relatod taxes
_Olhnrmmmh-mi" Ineome

oo o Qo

IS
-

#ln na--ka

ealoDio] O ao|sailsiolo) o lole

B
Zlels

L

Budapest, 21 April 2020

L = p

.\ -——_
Richard Szabé Eva Tudilf:n:g yongyssy

Chairman - CEO CFO
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4, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

data ln HUF miltion
Share Share Other Other | porsined
Note | capital | premium | reserves wmlmmm earmings sl
Balance at 1. January 2018 72T a1 500 50 750 -54 430 41 588
Impact of transition o IFRS 8 1] [ 0 ] 824 -870
Profit for the year 1] 0 [*] 0 1 347 1 347
Iiﬁ-"??r;ﬁ comprehengive income for o 0 o 47 o 447
Increase in ganeral eaaries 0 0 135 [t 135 Q
Increase in share capital 0 2m6 0 (1] 0 2916
Drvidend payments 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tatal changes 0 2916 135 493 368 2848
Balance at 31. December 2018 kB ) 84 416 !ﬂﬁ- 257 _-§|l- 051 534
m;: él‘lmlhﬂ from LAS 17 0 0 o a a o
Profit for the year 6.7 1] il 1] ] 23681 2 381 |
_ﬂmmm income for | g 0 0 0 4 o 4
Increase in general resarves 6621 0 o 236 0 «236 ]
Increasa in shase capilal 0 ] 0 a 0 o
Dividend payments 0 0 [ 0 o 0
Total changes 0 0 236 4 2125 2 365
Balance at 31. December 2019 7T 94 416 421 281 =51 926 45 899

Budapest, 21 April 2020

L% L 4

Richard Szabo
Chairman - CEO

.

Eva Tudixnné &;ﬁngyﬂsy

CFO
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5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

data in !-ILIF I:r_lilﬂrllr_l

dhatia iy HUF rriitfion
B = Note 2018 2018
Cash I'Im from operating activitles
Irllnm-st lm 671 12778 11 1891
Inllf&.'ll. &wmm {without lease Hd:ulﬁn:s} 672 -2 B4 -2 131
Feas and commissions received 674 9215 8 6
Feaes and commissions paki 675 -1 422 -1 208
Met gains realised on FYTPL secunties 677 1 -1
Bividends meosived from FYTPL securilies a7 0 2]
Met gains realised on denvalives 6.7.6 <250 TO1
Oihier oparatng income recenved a7r.e T 020 123
Operating expenses paid 67.10 14 569 14 712
Income tax paid 6711 -AGf A7
Cash recelved from operating aclivities of discontinued 0 a
aparalions
Net changes in rading securities (increase: -, decrease +} 0 1]
frflmﬁinmnIMMnm at FYTPL (increase’ -, 662 10 00D 0
m ) \nmne and m"‘"‘ ’“r_"f’_"‘_flﬁ"f"““" 663 8 363 g 524
Hutuhru:;m lpans and pdvances to customers (increase; - B854 41764 A061
Net changes in other flnancial imstiuments (ncrease -, 6611 7 52
__Uscrease: ) I -
Net changes in ather non-financial instrumants (nerease: - 6611 o A
decropse +)
Net changes in due lo banks (increase: +, decrease: -) 66.13 17 828 -7 799
Net mlmmdwhmmmmmr +, decrenss’ -} 66.14 36 529 20252
h;nl changes in debt securities in lssua {increase. +, decrease: 86.45 2129 880
’mrmr in other financial liabifies {increase +.. - 8018 806 1 635
m':-npf in othar non-financial H!‘n'lli‘tlnl_[.h"llr.ﬂ"enn. * G618 40 a2
T changes in FVTPL financlal assats (increase: -, decreass: 8610 1 258 A6
het chnngn; in FVTPL financial labliibes (incrase: +, 6610 996 4318
Interast paymont on lease kabilities 672 119 0
Ml flows fram operating activities /511 _ -598T7 |
‘Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investiment securities f.62 -19 504 -62 DGO
Proceeds fiom dspasal and malunily of invesiment securities | 6.6.2 21 191 70100
 Inlerest received on investment securities 671 580 24
Mquri-ﬁm of plant. property and equipment and intangitle BT 3557 2605
Frnmudn from: digpasal of plant, :rnpmr and squipment 679 4 g
Inchuding insurance payments and intangible assets
Acquisition of associates and subsidiaties (1] o
Procaeds from disposal of associstes and subsidiaries [ [
~ Dividends receivad from subsidiaries 6.7.7 36 38
Acquisdion of nvestment property 0 o
Froceeds from disposal of investment praperty (i} 1056 |
Cush Nows from investing activities 411 G 886
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Note 2018 2018
Cash lows from financial activities
Loans received o] a
Redemplion of ioans o 0
Interes! paid on (oans a g
Subordinated debts received 0 Q
Redemption of subordinated debts 0 1]
Interest paid on subordinated debis 872 -301 ~299
Davebands paki o 0
Acquisition of own shares L =
Proceads from disposal of own shares purchased from 0 o
shareholders
Cash recaived from shareholders o 2816
Curency axchange ratas & 0
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash B91 535 0
| equivalents
Cash flows from financial activities -842 2617
Cash flows 37 038 1515
Cash gnd cash equivalents at 1. January 661 61 BOB 58293
Cash and cash equivalents at 21. December 861 GE Bab 61 804
Changes in Cash and cash equivalents 37 p3e A 515

Budapest, 21 April 2020

Richard Szabd
Chairman - CEO

/

£ e
E{ﬁﬁdi%n& a;tsngyésy
CFO
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6. NOTES

The notes in this chapter form part of the financial statements.

6.1 General information

Sberbank Magyarorszag Zrt. (the Bank) started operations as Magyarorszagi Volksbank Ltd,
on 27 August 1993 Its subscribed capital upon foundation was HUF 1,000 million and its
sole owner was Osterreichische Volksbanken AG (OVAG). Since 1996 the main shareholder
of the Bank had been Volksbank International AG (VBI), a subsidiary of OVAG. On 15
February 2012 the full acquisition of VBl was completed and as a result a subsidiary of the
Russian Sberbank became the majority shareholder of the Bank, which has been operating
under the name of Sberbank Europe AG since 5 November 2012, The ultimate parent
company of the Bank is Sberbank of Russia.

The new name of the Bank (Sberbank Magyarorszdg Zartkorlen Makodd
Részvenytarsasag) is effective from 1 November 2013

General information on the Bank;

Registered office: 1088 Budapest, Rakoczi ut 1-3.
Registration number. 01-10-041720

Tax number; 10776999-2-44

Statistical code: 10776990-6419-114-01
Accounl number at MNB: 19017004-00201414

Website; www.sberbank. hu

Every company under the direct or indirect control of the Bank is involved in the
consolidation.

In this Financial Statements Bank consolidates following subsidiaries:

B _ Participation (%) |
Equity imvestment Main activity 3122018 | 31.12.2018
V-DAT Kit ‘v.a." Purchaselsale of own properties | 1oo00% | 100.00%
_Ea_ﬂ_ _S_MH!! I Purchasafaale of own properies 100.00% 100.00%
gg'&f;ﬁg;n K (une Purchasefsale of own properlies
Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁuﬂfzﬁﬁﬁ Purchasafaale of own progerties 100,1‘.!5% . 150:03% '
o oy (14082017 | prchugaisale of own properties

The Bank is authorised to perform the following registered activities:
As per TEAOR (Standard Sector Classification of Business Activities):

6419 '08 Other monetary intermediation - Core activity
- 6492 '08 Other lending
- 6499 '08 Other financial intermediation elsewhere not classified
- 6612'08 Security and commodity contracts brokerage
- BB18'08 Other activities auxiliary to financial services
- 662208 Insurance agent and broker activities
- 6B629'08 Other activities auxiliary to insurance and pension funding
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Activities of the consolidated subsidianes
As per TEAOR (Standard Sector Classification of Business Activities)
V-Dat Informatikai Szolgaltaté és Kereskedelmi Kit. va.®

681008
682008
- 261108
- 461408
- 4651'08
4652'08

- 4666'08
- 4741'08
- 4742'08
- 581908
- 5821'08
- 5B829'08
- 6201'08
- B202'08
- 620308
- 620908
- 631108
- 6312'08
- 701008

702108
- 7022’08
- 7T112'08
- 712008

7490'08

773308

8299'08

856008

951108

Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
Rent/lease-out of own and borrowed property, property management
Manufacturing of electronic paris

Agency trade of machinery, vessels and aircraft

Wholesale of computer hardware, peripherals and software
Wholesale of electronic and telecommunication equipment and spare
parts

Wholesale of ather office machinery and equipment

Retail of computer hardware, peripherals and software
Retail of telecommunication products

Other publishing activities

Publication of computer games

Publication of other software

Computer programming

IT advisory services

Operating computers

Other IT services

Data processing, web hosting

Web portal services

Business management

PR, communication

Business and other management consultancy

Engineering activities and related technical consultancy
Technical review and analysis

Other professional, scientific and technical activities ne.c
Office equipment rental (including computers)

Activities auxiliary to business services n.e.c

Aclivities supplementing education

Repair of computer peripherals

East Site Ingatlanforgalmazé és Ingatlanhasznosito Kft

681008
6820'08

Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
Rental and operation of own or rented property

Karolyi Ingattan 2011 Kft.

6810'08
682008

Purchasefsale of own properties (main activity)
Rental and operation of own or rented property

Sberbank Europe AG (Schwarzenberg Street 3. 1010 Vienna Austria) prepares consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS for the smallest unit of the Group which includes
Sberbank Magyarorszag Lid, as a subsidiary. Sberbank of Russia (Vavilova Street 19. 117997
Moscow, Russia) has 100% of the Sberbank Europe AG shares and prepares the consolidated
financial statements for the |argest unit of the Group.

The consolidated annual financial statements of the Bank must be audited. Audit is
performed by Emst & Young Konywvizegalé Kft. (Vaci dt 20 1132 Budapest, Registration
number: 01-09-267553; Chamber of Hungarian Auditors registration number. 001165),
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The (natural) person responsible for the audit. Gergely Szabé (CHA registration number:
005676).

Person responsible for the Bank's accounting records: Mrs, Eva Gyéngyésy Tudisco Finance
Director. (CHA registration number: 005782).

Richard Szabo Chief Executive Officer and Mrs, Eva Gyéngytsy Tudisco Finance Director
are authorised to sign jointly the consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

6.2 Senior executives

Senior executives of the Bank as at 31 December 2019:

Supervisory Board members Function Company
Alexander Witte ~ chaiman Sberbank Europe AG. |
Sonja Sarkozi - deputy chairman Sterbank Europe AG
Martin Frank deputy chaiman Et:e;iatank Europe AG
Komél Halmos rn;mhar Ebemank Europe AG
Michael Oberhummer i membper Indep&n;;lt

_dr. Zoltan Fényi member employee delagale
_Til:mr Bodnar : member employea delegale
 Members of the Board of Directors Function

Richard Smbé i chairman

Eva Tudisconéd Gybngyosy .mnhur

Bence Kalr;lﬂr i member

Tamés Fodor marmbar

6.3 Statement of compliance

As at 1 January 2018 the Bank switched from applying Hungarian accounting regulations to
the application of international accounting standards, thus these financial statements, based
on the option provided by Section 10 (2) of Act C of 2000, have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as announced as a regulation in the official
gazette of the European Union.

Consolidated subsidiaries continue to prepare their financial statements according to
Hungarian accounting standards. During the preparation phase of completion of the
consolidated financial statements, Bank assesses whether information disclosed in the
financial statements of subsidiaries is compliant to the international accounting standards. In
case of any material derogation in the consolidated financial statements Bank adjusts the
figures of the subsidiaries in order to ensure the compliance with international accounting
standards.
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6.4 Accounting policies

The Bank prepares its consolidated financial stalements applying the same accounting
policies as in the preparation of the stand-alone financial statements.

Data in these financial statements are in Hungarian forints, which is the functional and
bookkeeping currency of the Bank. Unless otherwise indicated, data disclosed in the financial
statements are presented in Hungarian forints rounded to the nearest million.

The reporting date in the financial statements is 31 December 2019.

When preparing the financial statements and during bookkeeping the Bank assumes that the
going concern principle Is met, that is, the Bank intends and is able to maintain its operations
for the foreseeable future, can continue its aclivity, and a closure of operations or any
significant reduction therein is not expected,

Section 6.8.14 Subsequent evenis contains analysis of the siluation caused by the
coronavirus in the first quarter of 2020.

As a conclusion it can be stated that Management of the Bank believes that going concern
assumplion does exisl. Cessation of the operation or significant reduction thereof for
whatsoever reason is not expected in the foreseeable future.

Basic measurement principles

In accordance with the fair presentation principfe, the Bank presents the Group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows fairly. Fair presentation requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with
the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in
IFRSs.

Assels and equity and liabilities are reported in the financial statements basically at cost or
amortised cost, except for financial instruments held for trading, derivatives and available-for-
sale assets and financial assets failed at SPPI test, which are presented at fair value.

Revaluation of foreign currency assets and foreign currency liabilities

Foreign currency assets, liabilities, income and expenses are booked in the currency of the
transaction, but are recognised in the financial statements in HUF.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted to HUF on a daily basis at the middle
rate published by the Bank.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are measured in the financial statements at the
exchange rate published by MNB and valid on the last day of the year.

Measurement estimates

As a result of inherent uncertainties in business activities, many items in financial statements
cannot be measured with precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves
judgements based on the latest available information and does not undermine the reliability
of the financial statements.
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The Bank applies accounting estimates when quantifying the following items:
determining doubtful receivables, impairment and provisions;
obsolescence of inventories;

useful lives, residual values and depreciation of depreciable assets;
calculation of amortised cost;

determining the fair value of financial instruments.

s & & & @

An estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate
was based or as a result of new information or more experience.

By its nature, the revision of an estimate does not relate to prior periods and is not the
correction of an error, thus the effect of the change shall be recognised in the period of the
change and future periods (prospective recognition). Prospective recognition means that the
change is applied to transactions and business events from the date of the change in
estimale.

Estimating impairment and provisions

Information relating to measuring and assessing credit risk are presented in Section 6.11.3
Credit risk.

Estimating depreciation

The Bank records depreciation on property, plant and equipment as well as amortisation an
intangible assets from the first day after such are ready for use. The depreciation on
property, plant and equipment and the amortisation on intangible assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis, taking into account the expected duration of use and the residual value.

The Bank assumes that the commissioning date and the date assets become available for
use is one and the same, given that the business model followed by the Bank means the
commissioning of assets is not preceded by a lengthy stockpiling period.,

Intangible assets always have definite useful lives. Straight-line rates used considering useful
lives determined individually:

a,) rights and concessions 15%
b.) goodwill 15%
c.) software max. 25%
d.) other intellectual property max. 25%

Straight-line rates used for property, plant and equipment:

Land and buildings
Buildings, parts of buildings, held by own | 2,00%
| Investment of bulidings hakd by awn depending on use, max 10,00%
| Investmant of buildings. ranted | according lo lease contracts (20%)
Plant and other machinery
“Office assets and equipment 14,50%
Copying machines and equipment 14.50%
" Other office equipment “14.,50%
Telecommunications eguipment 14,50%
Administration and other (office) filings | 14,50%
Tools | 1450% =
' Computers and IT equipment max. 20,00%
Sacurty equipment 14,50% =
e d A
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| Vehicles | 2000% |

The depreciation rates of right-of-use assets are determined according to the length of the
related contracts.

Calculation of amortised cost

Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method, which is also used to
determine interest income.

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
caiculating the effective interest rate, the Bank shall estimate the expected cash flows by
considenng all the contraclual terms of the financial instrument but shall not consider the
expected credit losses,

The calculation includes all fees and commissions related to the creation of the deal and paid
or received between parties to the contracl that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

During the calculation the Bank applies the effective interest rate to the gross carrying

amount of the financial assets, except for.

- purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, For these assets the Bank
applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
assel from initial recognition.

- financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, but
subsequently became credit-impaired financial assets. For these financial assets the
Bank applies the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial assets in
subsequent reporting periods.

By applying the effective interest method the Bank identifies the fees that are an integral part
of the financial instrument's effective interest rate. Fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate of a financial instrument include:

- ongination fees received by the Bank relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset. Such fees include for example compensation for activities such as evaluating the
borrower's financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees, collateral and other
security arrangements, negotiating the terms of the instrument, preparing and
pracessing documents and closing the transaction,
commitment fees received by the Bank to originate a loan when the loan commitment is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss and it is probable that the Bank will enter
into a specific lending arrangement. If the commitment expires without the Bank making
the loan, the fee is recognised as income on expiry,

- origination fees paid on issuing financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These fees are an integral part of generating an involvement with the resulting financial
instrurnent.

The Bank distinguishes fees and costs thal are an integral part of the effective interest rate
for the financial liability from origination fees and transaction costs relating to the right to
provide services, such as investment management services.

16
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When applying the effective interest method the Bank generally amortises any fees, points
paid or received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts that are included in the
effective interest rate calculation over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities, the periodic re-
estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rate of interest alters the
effective interest rate.

In some cases the financial asset is considered credit-impaired at initial recognition because
the credit risk is very high, and in the case of a purchase it is acquired at a deep discount,
The Bank includes the initial expected credit losses in the estimated cash flows when
calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for financial assets that are considered
to be purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial recognition

For the Bank, the transactions that do not have a cash flow which can be reliably estimated
in advance are not included in the amortised cost calculation, i.e. their effective interest rate
is the same as the transaction rate, and the amortised cost is the same as the oulstanding
contractual amount, Such transactions include current account overdrafts and revolving
loans, credit lines and guarantees.

Estimating the fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (j.e. an exit price).

The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value can be categorised into a fair
value hierarchy which includes the following levels:

Level 1 inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.

Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Such as for example:
- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active
other observable inputs:
o interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals
o Implied volatilities
o credit spreads
market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk.

Where possible, the Bank uses principal market prices to determine fair value.

Given the Bank's low market share on principal markets and its relatively low total assets, the
Bank does not adjust observed prices The IFRS allow both call prices and bid prices to be
used for valuations, so in line with the consolidated accounting policies of its owner the Bank
« uses bid prices for debt securities
« and mid prices in all other instances for valuations.
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If there are no observable prices on the principal markets then to determine the fair value of
receivables from customers and credit institutions with terms of more than 90 days the Bank
uses the DCF (discounted cash flow) method to estimate fair value with due consideration of
the following:

* The Bank adjusts future cash flows from the Core Banking System so they reflect
estimates of future interest rates, This adjustment appears in the cash flows with the
help of projected (forward and FRA) curves.

¢ \When discounting the Bank uses money-markel reference rates in line with the
nature of the transaction (for example: BUBOR3M or LIBOR3M).

« The Bank takes liquidity costs into account too by adjusting the discount rate as
appropriate. These are key parts of assel and liability pricing, and can be derived
from market parameters under Level 1 inpuls (for example: material asset swap
spreads).

= When pricing assets (specifically in the case of loans), the price has to include
compensation for expected losses stemming from any non-payment by the debtor,
Alongside the cash flows the Bank adjusts the discount curve as well in line with the
expected loss, so the fair value is not distorted.

= The Bank's internal rating system furnishes faithful information on credit risk
premiums in relation to expected credit risks; the adjustment applied is calculated
from the product of PD x LGD, where the LGD data comprises various collateral
levels.

The fair value of receivables from credit institutions with terms of less than 90 days is
determined based on the present value calculated in the Murex system.

If the camrying amount Is a good approximation of the fair value (for example, current
receivables and liabilities of no more than 80 days: sight deposits and short-term deposits),
IFRS does not require any fair value measurement or calculation; in these cases the Bank
considers the carrying amount to be the fair value

Although the Baby loan product launched in 2019 based on the Govermment Decree on
supporting child-bearing and child-raising is classified in 'hold' business model, because of
the special conditions of the product (see below) the SPP| test provided the result that the
contractual cash flows are not consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Therefare these
loans are not allowed to be measured at amortised cost

Durlng SPPI tesl, the Bank detected the following critical contractual conditions:

the reference interest rate published by the Hungarian State Treasury is
calculated from the government yields of the previous 3 months and is applicable
from the first day of the month after publication therefore it does not reflect the
ylelds avallable on the date of disbursement, bul it refiects an average from a
significantly earlier time period
in the formula for determining the interest rate of the deal the 130% of the
reference rate shall be applied therefore the above mentioned effect is multiplied
by 1.3 and so enhanced

= In the formula for determining the interest rate of the deal the margin rises
significantly by 300 basis points independently of credit risk of the customer when
no child is conceived within 5 years after the disbursement

The Bank uses the DCF (discounted cash flow) method to estimate fair value of Baby loans
with the following amendments.
future cash flows are determined as expected values based on the data from
sludies analysing fertility rates and aclual birth data and published by the
Hungarian Central Statistical Office (KSH).
During calculating future cash flows, the possible outcomes are classified into
two scenarios as follows:
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o the first cycle lasts until maturity or the conception of the second child,
when the government grant for 30% of principal outstanding are drawn
down

o the second cycle lasts from the conception of the second child until
maturity or the conception of the third child, when the government grant
for the whole remaining principal cutstanding are drawn down

the calculation model takes into account the repricing of the deal in every 5 year
and derives the future reference interest rates on which the nominal interest rate
of the deal is based from yield curves as forward/forward interest rates

The Bank measures financial assetsfliabilities on fair value which are: debt securities
(Hungarian government bonds) designated at fair value under fair value option, and held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, loans and advances in the same business model, loans
and advances which failed at SPPI test, other (not consclidated) equity investments and
derivatives. The Bank uses the following inputs for the fair value calculation of these
instruments:

Fair value hierarchy 1 (level 1)

The Bank calculates the fair value of the Hungarian government bonds using the
directly observed composition of quotes of contributors on the active market,

Fair value hierarchy 2 (level 2)

The Bank deals with derivatives (swaps, forward, options) only on the OTC markets,
meaning there is no directly observable market quotation in this case. However, the
fair value calculation is made with using input data which are observable on active
markets (yield curves, volatility surface) discounted cash flow method and option
price models (Black-Scholes, Garman-Kolhaegen).

Fair value hierarchy 3 (level 3)

Only the fair value of Visa Inc. investment can be defined reliably from the other
equity investments of the Bank: the Bank has ,C" series convertible stocks, which can
be converted to A" series common stocks on a specified rate. The Bank calculates
the fair value of the _C" series convertible stocks as the multiplication of the directly
observable market price of the ,A" series common stocks and the fixed conversion
rate.

The fair value of the Bank's remaining other equity investments cannot be defined reliably
after the initial recognition, therefore, in accordance with the Accounting Policy of the Bank,
the equity investments are measured on their initial costs less accumulated impairment after
the initial recognition. In these cases, the fair value difference of the equity investments is
calculated as a difference between the Banks' portion of investment's equity and the
historical cost and recognized as impairment, which is not directly observable input data.
According to the impairment tests performed at the reporting date and the comparative
reporting periods, there were no indication of impairment so no impairment was recognized
for these investments.

The calculation of the fair value is similar for the non-performing loans which are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets. In these cases the past due days of receivables are more than 90
days, therefore the general cash flow method cannot be applied because eslimated cash
flows are not reliable. The net carrying value of these loans equals the gross value of the
loans reduced with accumulated impairment, as a directly non-observable input data, that
Bank considers the realistic fair value of non-performing loans. The impairment movement
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and its causes for these loans are disclosed in the impairment movement table of chapter
664

The classification in the fair value hierarchy may change on account of changing market
conditions, modernised models and the sensitivity of input factors. If the market becomes
inactive for instance, the input parameters previously observable on the market may become
unobservable parameters. If a new fair value measurement model is applied that uses
several input factors observable on the market, this can refine the fair value calculation. The
impact of a used input parameter can become significant or insignificant

This is why the Bank revises the fair value calculation methodology and hierarchical
classification at the end of each reporting period.

Principles of presenting financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, nostro accounts, the minimum reserve placed with
MNB as well as overnight deposits placed with National Bank of Hungary (MNB) and other
credit institutions and accrued interest thereof.

Initial recognition

The Bank treats all contracts as financial instruments that give rise to a financial asset for
one entity and to a financial liability or an equity instrument for another entity,

The Bank treats all contracts as equity instruments that evidence a residual interest for the
Bank in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Bank recognises financial instruments in the statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Except for derivatives, the Bank recognises regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
using settlement date accounting, while in the case of derivatives it accounts for the
transactions on the trade date.

At initial recognition the Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at their fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial assel or financial liabllity not valued at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs thal are directly attributable to the acquisition or
Issue of the financial asset or financial liability. An exception to this are frade receivables that
do nol have a significant financing component. These receivables are measured at their
transaction price as defined in IFRS 15.

If the Bank originates a loan that bears an off-market interest rate, and receives an upfront
fee as compensation, the Bank recognises the loan al its fair value, i.e, net of the fee it
receives.

If it is determined that the fair value al initial recognition differs fram the transaction price, the

difference is accounted for as follows:

- if the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss:;

- In all other cases the fair value at Initial recognition shall be adjusted by the deferred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
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recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the
extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability.

Classification and measurement - business model for managing the financial assel

Based on the business model for managing the financial asset, specified in a resolution by
the Board of Directors, the Bank classifies financial assets upon initial recognition into one of
the following models:
a) business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows;
b) business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets,
¢} other business models, of which one is a business model, in which the Bank
manages the financial assets with the objective of realising cash flows through the
sale of the assels.

The business model is determined at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular objective. The business model does not depend on
management's intentions for an individual instrument. Accordingly, this condition is not an
instrument-by-instrument approach to classification but can be determined on a higher level
of aggregation, and more than one business model can be used for managing financial
instruments, The portfolio segmentation of the Bank is decided on by the Board of Directors.

When assessing its business model, the Bank considers all relevant information that is

available at the date of the assessment, which includes, but is not limited to:

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the Bank's key management personnel;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within the model), and particularly the method for managing these risks;

- how managers of the business are compensated.

The Bank classifies financial assets at initial recognition into the following categories based
on the business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost,
- assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;
assels measured at fair value through profit or loss;
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

Financial assets are measured by the Bank at amortised cost, if both of the following

conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows,
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are measured by the Bank al fair value through other comprehensive

income, if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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The Bank examines whether the cash flows of a financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding by using a decision tree designed
for this purpose (contractual cash flow lest, SPPI test).

Based on the SPPI tesl, it can be decided whether contractual cash flows are consistent with
basic lending arrangements.

Contractual cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are consistent with basic lending arrangements. In a basic lending
arrangement, consideration for the time value of money and credit risk are typically the most
significant elements of interest, however, interesl can also include consideration for other
basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. Contractual terms that introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that is unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement give rise to contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. In this case the Bank measures the financial
assel al fair value through profit or loss.

Of equity instruments, the Bank records other investments that do not qualify as related
companies and therefore are not consolidated as investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss. However, if at Initial recognition it is likely that the fair value of an investment
cannot be measured reliably in the future, then these interests are classified into assets
measured at fair value through comprehensive income upon initial recognition of interests. If
the fair value of such interests cannot be determined reliably after initial recognition, these
interests are recorded in the books at cost less accumulated impairment al measurements
after initial recognition,

According to the principals above the Bank evaluates its other equity investments as follows:

_Eﬁ;ﬁr investment Vlﬁmﬂhn mathod

Fundamentn- Lokazkasaza -

Laksstakarakponztar Zrl Fair valos thraugh Other Comprahensive |noomas
Garantgn Hitelgaranca Zn, Fair valso through Cther Comprshensive lneame
SWIFT Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Visa Inc. Faw vals through Profit or Loss

The Bank may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at

fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because

gither:

- It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition Iinconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases:

- agroup of financial assets or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or invesiment strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the Bank's key management personnel,

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities shall be classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except

for:

- financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities include for example
derivalive instruments that shall be measured at fair value.
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- financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies.
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- financial guarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan at a below-market
interest rate. An issuer of such a coniract shall subsequently measure it at the higher of
the following two options:

« the amount of the loss allowance;
« the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of income.

The Bank may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as measured at
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because
either:

- It elminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;

- agroup of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and Information aboul the group is provided
internally on that basis to the key management personnel of the Bank,

Modification of contractual terms for financial instruments

If a transaction is modified because of a customer request. and not because the customer is
struggling with financial difficulties (performing customer), and the new conditions are
measured at market price, then the modification is deemed market-driven.

In this case, if the impact of the modification is significant, the old instrument has to be
derecognised and the renegotiated loan treated as a new instrument. If the net effect of the
derecognition and the new recognition is not zero, this impact has to be recognised through
profit and less upon derecognition. The Bank recognises the impact of the derecognition
under Other operating income.

Among other things, the Bank considers the following to be a significant modification of
contract.

- change in debtor

- change in contracl currency

- increase in loan amount, refinancing

- change in SPPl-critical condition

- significant change in term (at least 100%, but no less than 2 years)

If the modification does not count as significant, the instrument is not derecognised; the
modification gain or lass is accounted for separately in the net interest incomel/expense, and
It also adjusts the amortised cost of the instrument. This gain or loss is subsequently
amortised over the life of the transaction using the effective interest method.
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Write-off of financial assels

The Bank writes off the amount of unrecoverable receivables against profit or loss.

A receivable is considered unrecoverable if,

- there is no collateral for it during enforcement;

- it was released in the framework of an agreement,

- there is no collateral for it according to the written statement issued by the liquidator,
- there is no collateral for it based on the proposal for the distribution of assets;

- the costs of collection are not in proportion to the amount of the receivable;

- the debtor cannot be located and this is "documented”,

- it cannot be enforced in a court of law;

- it has expired.

Reclassification

Financial assets may be reclassified when, and only when, the Bank changes its business
model for managing financial assets. A change in the business model will occur only when
the Bank either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant lo its operations
(e.g.; a business line). The following for example are not changes in business model: a
change in intention related to particular financial assets or the temporary disappearance of a
particular market for financial assets.

Reclassification shall be applied prospectively from the reclassification date. This means that
any previously recognised gains, losses or interest shall not be restated.

Financial liabilities may not be reclassified.

Financial assets pledged as collateral

Under financial assets used as collateral, the Bank discloses collateral placed at other banks
to cover losses from derivative transactions as well as securities and SME loans used to
cover FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards related to ownership of the financial assets used
as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheet. Their presentation is
based on the accounting policies of cash and securities.

Interest income and interest expense on derivative transactions

For derivative transactions the Bank presents the related interest income and interest

expense broken down by the transaction objective:

- for derivatives in the trading book, the related interest income and interest expense are
recognised in the Net trading income/expense;

- for transactions in the banking book, the related interest income and interest expense
form part of the net interest income/expense.
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Accounting for leases

As of 1 January 2019 the Bank adopted IFRS 16 instead of IAS 17. During transition the
Bank used the option provided by the standard and applies the requirements of the standard
prospectively. As a result, reporling-year data and comparative information have been
prepared based on different rules: at the end of the reporting year (2019) figures are
presented under IFRS 16, while comparative information includes data under IAS 17,

The Bank applies the rules of IFRS 16 standard as follows:

the Bank does not apply the standard to intangible assets
- the Bank does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of the standard
to right-of-use asset and lease liability to
* leases with a lease term less than 12 months, and
e |eases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Bank sets the threshold
for low-value assets in the context of this standard at EUR 4,000.

- for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Bank
recognises the lease payments associated with the leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term,

- at the commencement date, the Bank recognises

* aright-of-use asset at cost, which comprises
o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease Incentives received
o any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset
« alease liability in the amount of the present value of the future lease payments
the Bank applies the rules relating to short-term leases to operating leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application
The Bank applies a single discount rate to a portfolioc of leases with similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of
underlying assel in a similar economic environment)

- for vehicle leases the Bank uses the interest rate implicit in the lease, while for property
lease contracts, considering that determining the markel value of leased parts of
property would cause unnecessary costs and effort to the Bank, it uses the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate

- the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT part of the lease liability and the right-
of-use asset

- the Bank determines the lease term as follows:

o1 the non-cancellable period of a lease

o increased by the periods by an option to extend the lease if the Bank is
reasonably certain to exercise that option

o decreased by the periods covered by an oplion to terminate the lease If the Bank
is reasonably certain to exercise that option

- the Bank revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of
lease (e.g. the Bank exercises an option not previously included in the determination of
the lease term)

- after the commencement date, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost
madel and determines its book value as follows:

o cost of the asset

o less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses

o adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability
to calculate the depreciation of the right-of-use assels the Bank applies the general rules
of depreciation
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the Bank depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term,
however, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Bank by the end
of the lease term or if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
Bank depreciates the right-of-use asset until the end of the useful life of the underlying
asset
the Bank applies IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether the right-of-use
asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified
after the commencement date, the Bank determines the book value of the lease liability
as the sum of the followings:
o lease liability at inception
& Increased by the amount of the interest on the lease liability
o decreased by the lease payments made
o modified by any remeasurement or lease modifications
the Bank determines the interest on the lease liability as the amount that produces a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability
during lease term, the Bank recognises the interest on the lease liability and varable
lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in profit or loss
the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate, if there is a change either
o inthe lease term, or
o Inthe assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset
the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments, if
there is a change either
o inthe amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
& in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to
determine those payments
in this case, the Bank uses an unchanged discount rate, unless the change in lease
payments results from a change in floating interest rates
the Bank recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset, however, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero, the Bank recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss
the Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both
o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets, and
o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract
for a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective
date of the lease modification the Bank remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset for the lease modifications

Before 1 January 2019 IAS 17 was in force, therefore comparative data included in the
financial statements are presented under IAS 17, whereby rules are as follows,

Under IAS 17 a lease s an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for
a payment or series of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.
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A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset, irrespective of the form of the contract An operating lease Is a lease
other than a finance lease.

A lease can be a finance lease if

- the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term:
the lessee has the option to purchase the asset al a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to
be reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that the option will be exercised:

- the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not
transferred,

- al the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts
to al leasl substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and
the leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modifications.

The Bank treats assets oblained under finance lease as if they were own assets: they are
recorded at cost and are amortised over their useful lives.

The amount of fulure lease liabilities is recorded as lease liability when the asset is
capitalised. The principal portion of lease payments made during the term reduces this
liability, while the interest portion is accounted for under interest paid.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Bank does not lease out assels as part of its normal course of business.

Accounting for government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or fulure
compliance with certain conditions.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 20, the Bank recognises government grants only if
there is reasonable assurance that it will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
the grants will be received. Receipt of a grant does not of itself provide conclusive evidence,
especially if compliance with the conditions is checked subsequently,

In accordance with the provisions of |IAS 20, the Bank treals the benefit of a government loan
at a below-market rate of interest as a government grant

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systemalic basis over the periods in
which the Bank recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value. are
presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and nol by deducting the grant in arriving
at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants related to Income are presented in the same profit or loss category that
includes the expenses for which the grants are intended to compensate.

The Bank accounts for government grants for the following items:
MNB interest rate swaps conditional on lending activity (HIRS)
- Preferential deposits at the MNB.

I8
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In contrast to the above, the Bank accounts for its HUF monetary policy interest rate swaps
with the MNB (MIRS) under IFRS 9 using the practice that has developed in the Hungaran
banking sector based on the opinion of the Chamber of Hungarian Auditors and as approved
by the MNB as the supervisory authority; here the government grant is not separated during
the presentation, and its impact on fair value is immediately recognised through profit or loss
as the day-one gain or loss.

Accounting for hedges
The Bank did not apply hedge accounting until the end of 2019.

Fair value option

Under IFRS 9 an entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities on different bases. The application of the fair value cption shall result in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The fair
value option may be applied for example when an entity has financial assets that share a
risk, such as interest rate rigk, and that gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend
to offset each other. In such cases the entity may measure the asset that otherwise is
measured at amortised cost at fair value.

The Bank chose to apply the fair value option for disclosure of Hungarian treasury bond
portfolio (amounts to 10 billion HUF at face value) whose interest rate risk is hedged by
interest rate swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based Lending
Scheme), The deal expired in 2019

Treatment of events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

The amounts included in the financial statements shall be adjusted for events that provide
evidence of condilions that existed at the reporting date.

Such events include for example the receipt of information after the reporting date indicating
that an asset was impaired at the reporting date.

If after the reporting date the management of the Bank decides to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, the financial statements may
not be prepared using the going concern basis of accounting. This fact must be disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in the financial statements shall not be adjusted to reflect those
events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date. However,
additional disclosure may be necessary in the notes to the financial statements,

Such event is for example a decline in the market value of investments after the reporting
date,

Dividends approved after the reporting period shall be treated as a non-adjusting event, thus
these shall not be recognised as a liability at the reporting date, If dividends are declared
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before the financial statements are authorised for issue, this fact shall be diselosed in the
notes.

Rules relating to corrections of accounting errors

Financial statements do not comply with IFRSs if
- they contain either material errors
- or immaterial errors made intentionally.

The Bank considers an error material, if its aggregate amount together with any other errors
exceeds 2% of the balance sheet total, or HUF 1 million, if such 2% of the balance sheet
total does not reach HUF 1 million.

Current period errors discovered in that period are corrected in the current period.

Significant errors made in financial statements for previous years are corrected by
retrospeclive restatement in the first set of financial statements after the discovery of the
erTors.

During refrospective restalement comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in
which the eror occurred shall be restated. If the error occurred before the earliest prior
period presented, the opening balances for the earliesl prior period presented shall be
restated.

An exception to this is when retrospective restatement is impracticable; in this case opening
balances shall be stated for the earliest period for which it is practicable (which may be the
current period),

The effect of insignificant errors on assets, liabilities and equity shall be corrected in the
current period. Opening balances are not restated The effect of insignificant errors on prior-
year profit or loss |s accounted for through current-year profit or loss.

Changes in accounting policies
As of 1 January 2019 the Bank adopted IFRS 16 instead of IAS 17.

Due to application of IFRS 16 Leases the Bank as lessee supplemented its accounting

policies as follows:

- the Bank recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings at the date of initial application in
the 2019 financial statements, and it does not recognise comparative information:

- the Bank only applies the standard to contracts existing on the date of transition that
were previously idenlified as leases applying IAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease;

- the Bank does not apply the standard to intangible assets

- the Bank does not apply the recognition and measurement requirements of the standard
to right-of-use assel and lease liability to

» |eases with a lease term less than 12 months, and
= |eases for which the underlying asset is of low value, The Bank sets the threshold
for low-value assets in the context of this standard at EUR 4,000.

- for shori-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Bank
recognises the lease payments associated with the leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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at the commencement date, the Bank recognises
» aright-of-use asset at cost, which comprises
o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received
o any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
remaving the underlying asset
« a lease liability in the amount of the present value of the future lease payments

for leases previously classed as operaling leases under IAS 17, as of the date of initial
application the right-of-use asset is measured at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application;
at initial application of the standard the Bank does not make such adjustment for leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value;
the Bank applies the rules relating to short-term leases to operating leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application;
for operating leases the Bank excludes initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and
it uses hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease
The Bank applies a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of
underlying asset in a similar economic environment);
for vehicle leases the Bank uses the interest rate implicit in the lease, while for property
lease contracts, considering that determining the market value of leased parts of
property would cause unnecessary costs and effort to the Barnk, it uses the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate
the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT part of the lease liability and the right-
of-use asset

The impact of transition from IAS 17 to IFRS 16 on the assets, liabilities, equity and
comprehensive income of the Bank is presented in chapter 6.5 Transition to IFRS 16,

Consolidation process

The Bank involves every subsidiary in the consolidation over which it has control, namely it
has all the following:

power over the subsidiary
The Bank has power over a subsidiary when it has existing rights to direct the relevant
activities of the subsidiary,

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary
The Bank is exposed to variable returns from its involvemnent with the subsidiary when its
refurns have the potential to vary as a result of the subsidiary's performance.

the ability to use its power over the subsidiary to affect the amount of the Bank’s return

The Bank considers all facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls a
subsidiary. If facts and circumstances indicate there are changes to these elements of
control, the Bank reassesses whether it controls a subsidiary.
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Recognition and valuation of assets and liabilities of consolidated companies are based on
the methods applied at the parent company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are based on the stand-alone financial
statements of the Bank and its consaolidated subsidiaries

The Bank has started to apply international accounting standards from 1 January 2018, while
consolidated subsidiaries confinue to prepare their financial statements according to
Hungarian accounting standards. During the preparation phase of completion of the
consolidated financial statements, Bank assesses whether information disclosed in the
financial statements of subsidiaries is compliant to the international accounting standards. In
case of any materal derogation in the consolidated financial statements Bank adjusts the
figures of the subsidiaries in order to ensure the compliance with international accounting
standards.

in 2018 the Bank as owner decided to dissolve V-DAT Kft. through voluntary liquidation. The
voluntary liquidation procedure was not completed in 2019, therefore their profit or lass for
the whole year is taken into account in the consolidated financial statements.

All intra-group receivables, liabilities, income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Profits and losses relating to transactions between members of the Group are
also eliminated in the consolidation process.

Standards issued by IASB and adopted by the European Union not yet effective, and

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts issued in May 2017 and effective from 1 January 2021
regulates accounting for and recognising insurance and re-insurance contracts.

Considering that the Bank does not provide insurance services, the introduction of the new
standard has no effect on the financial statements and bookkeeping of the Bank.

Amendments not yet adopted by the European Union

- Amendments to the Framework
effective from 1 January 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
effective from 1 January 2020

- Amendments to 1AS 1 and |IAS 8, Definition of Material
effective from 1 January 2020

The Bank plans o apply the above amendments after they are adopted by the EU,

The Bank's IT systems supporting bookkeeping processes

The Bank’s books are kept in an integrated core banking system (MIDAS) recording loans
and deposits with related sub-ledgers, running on an AS/400 server:

Clavis — securities

Spectrum - derivatives, MM transactions

SAP Fl - customers, suppliers, property, plant and equipment records, mixed accounting
ABC Card management - bankcards
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BW3 - credit cards
Smartleaser — lease transaclions
Appello - collateral, guarantees, letters of credit

These sub-ledger systems — with the exception of Appello — provide electronic ledger
postings on a daily basis to the MIDAS general ledger via the GPSI interface as part of the
daily close; Appello prepares its bookkeeping file once a month, at the end of the reporting
maonth.

Purchased and issued securities are recorded in the Clavis Securities settlement and
registration programme, which posts electronically to MIDAS.

Derivative and money-market transactions are settled, recorded and booked in the Spectrum
registration and bookkeeping system, which sends electronic postings on a daily basis to
MIDAS.

Deposit, loan and interbank transactions as well as account-management bookkeeping take
place in MIDAS.

Petty cash items related to cash transactions are also booked in the integrated MIDAS
system, thereby ensuring that cash balances recorded by denomination in the sub-ledgers
tally with the balance of petty cash accounts in the general ledger.

Given that MIDAS only records the contractual transactions and balances of transactions, the
Bank uses an application called IFRS Tool to calculate effective interest rates and the
corresponding amortised costs; as part of the closing procedure it calculates the necessary
adjustments once a month, on the second day after the end of the month, before sending
them to the MIDAS general ledger through the GPSI interface.

Bankcard settlements take place via the Card booking card management system, which
automatically prepares GPS| postings to MIDAS every day.

The integrated SAP application facilitates the settlement of operating costs and income
arising during nen-banking business, and the booking of related accrualsideferrals.

GL items for payroll settlements are posted to SAP by the external sub-ledger payroll system
operated by the HR Department on the last working day of the reporting month (the sub-
ledger payroll system used is NexonBér, owned by NEXON Kft.).

SAP compiles the payment files for the payment of frade payable invoices and tax liabilities,
elc., and connects — via an interface — to the MIDAS GIRO module.

The general ledger data of business events booked in SAP are posted to MIDAS — via the
GPS| interface — during the daily GL close.

Following the daily close, data is transferred from MIDAS to the data warehouse (DWH),
from which a full general ledger statement along with other sub-ledger transactions and data
can be retrieved using Cognos.
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6.5 Transition to IFRS 16

As a result of transitioning from IAS 17 to IFRS 16, the Bank's balance sheet changes as
follows from 1 January 2019

Changes in ansols
Right-of-use assels (property) a 3451
| Right-ol-use assels (vehicles) | b 26
g " =
[ Total 1 1 3#6

Loase labilties n.b 3530

Accrued discount from kasing fos L Bt
o — = S .
a. Properties

In case of property rental contracts previously identified as operative lease the Bank
records the lease liability in its books at the discounted present value of future lease
payments (HUF 3 535 million),

Prior to 2019, property-related rental fees were recognised under IAS 17 in such a
manner that all the discounts received during the lease term were accounted for on a
straight-line basis in profit or loss over the term of the contract, regardless of which
period's rental fee the discount was taken into account. According to the requirements of
IFRS 18, these accrued discounts decrease the value of the right-of-use assets at
transition.

The Bank does not consider non-reciaimable VAT to be part of the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset.

b Vehicles

The leased vehicles were considered as finance lease before transition and were

recognised as leased assets in the balance sheet of the Bank (HUF 31 million at the end

of 2018). The transition brought a change to the accounting methodology as follows:

- the assets previously recorded as leased assets are recognised from 2019 as right-
of-use assets in the financial statements of the Bank

- the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT (HUF 5 million) to be part of the
lease liability and the right-of-use asset,

in
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6.6 Notes to the Balance Sheet

6.6.1. Cash and cash equivalents

31122019 | 31.12.2018 |
Cash and cash soquivalents
Cash in hand & 655 igaz
Current account with Central Bank 1837 2841
i '_hrnpuimnl far current account with Central Bank 1] =T
__ Deposils with Central Bank - B4 453 21 400
impainent for deposds with Central Bank E 0
Nostro accounts and overnight loans B 052 273 943
Impaimment for nosire accounts and ovarmight loans 0 =1
Total of cash and cash equivalents 98 846 61 808

The balance of the account held at the National Bank of Hungary (MNB) includes a minimum
reserve of HUF 1 633 million, which the Bank does not use during its day-to-day operations.

In order to the increase the Banks's cash equivalents the Bank significantly raised the
amount of deposits with the MNB, in contrast reduced the volume of nostro accounts
compared to the previous year. At the end of 2019, no impairment is reported for the balance
of current account including minimum reserves.

In 2018, collective impairment of HUF 1 million was recorded for the balance of nostro
accounts and overnight deposits at other banks, with a view of the partner banks’ standard

risk rating. In 2019, this impairment did not reach the amount of HUF 1 million.

Changes in expectod credit loss (ECL) durln!_!lje year

Current
account
with
Central Bank

31.42.2019

Deposits
with
Central Bank

Nostro
accounts,
ovarnight

loans

Total

opening balance

-7

allocation

=11

-12

release

18

19

write-affs

modifications without derecognition

changes in ECL measurmmant model, ui!nnllnm and inpuls

B other movements {inmgn mmnq_mmunqj

closing balance

siolo|o|a

Lioc|lo|olaja|ls|a

clola|la|alaje

~lolo|lo
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31.12.2018
Curront Hostra
account Deposits | accounts;
with with ovemight
Changes in expacted credit loss (ECL) during the yoar Central Bank | Central Bank |  loans Total
‘opening balance T e 0| 187 A7
aliocation 1 s o] & EY
release a 4] 187 178
 wite-offs B 0 0 0 0
modifications withoul dorecognition = i 0 0 0 0
changes in ECL m;&;iimml modal, assumplions aﬁ I'n;_rm o 0 3] 0
other movernenta (foregn currency transtation) o 0 5 8
l:lmi‘hn balance . o ] _-T 0 - R= 4

6.6.2. Securities

In this section the Bank's portfolio of debt securities is presented, In this portfolio the Bank
holds, on the one hand, government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills issued by the
Hungarian State, primarily for managing surplus liquidity but also for managing Interest
income and partially hedging interest risks.

On the other hand, the bank also holds corporate bonds in its portfolio of debt securities. The
bonds were issued in the framework of the Bond Funding for Growth Scheme started on 1
July 2019 by the MNB. The Bond Funding for Growth Scheme launched and supported by
the MNB - besides facilitales the development of the Hungarian corporate bond markel —
provides a lasting and stable lending opportunity towards large corporate clients with fix
interest income for the Bank. Besides this, participating in the issuance of corporate bonds
also strengthens the existing customer relationships.

| Dabl securities 31.12.2018 3.12.2018
 Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills 27156 | 43 975
~ impainment of govemment bonds and zero-coupon treasury bils 48 a1
Corporate bonds _ 3953 0|
impalmment of comparate bands A D
Total of debt securities 31016 43884

The Bank had no securities held for trading at either the end of the reporting year or at the
end of the comparative year, although there were small purchases during the year but these
stocks were sold before the year-end.

Securities purchased under the HIRS programme to hedge at portfolio level the risk arising
from the decrease in variable interesi rales were designated by the Bank at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option to eliminate the inconsistency between the
measurement of the derivative at fair value through profit or loss and the measurement of the
securities at amortised cost (see also Section 6.9.7. Fair value option), This deal matured in
2019

The government bonds classified in "hold” business model on the date of transition to IFRS
9, (i.e. 1 January 2018), and measured at amortised cost after the date of transition matured
by the end of 2018,

3
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On the date of transition to IFRS 8, i.e. 1 January 2018, the Bank reclassified its securities
held in the available-for-sale category to the “hold and sell” business model, and since
Hungarian government bonds only pay principal and interest cash flows to their owners, the
Bank recognises these in its books as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income after the transition.

Among the corporate bonds purchased in 2019, there are bonds measured at amortised cost
(classified in “hold" business model) and bonds measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (classified in “hold and sell business model),

Book value of debt securities broken-down by valuation
categories Ma22010 | 31122018
‘Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills
AL fair value through profit and loss 0 10 641
Trading 0 o
Designated at fair value through proft of foss 0 10 641
At fair valus thraugh other comprehensive income 27107 32 234
At amonised cost 0 1008
Corporate bonds =
Al fair valua through profid and loss ¢ 0
Trading 0 0
E!"'ﬂ'l!l?d al fair value through profit or loss 0 o
At fair value ihrough other comprehensive income 144 0
At amortised cost A7ES o
Total debt securities 31 016 43 B4 |

The designated at fair value through profit and loss row contains the government bond
portfolio, whose interest rate risk is hedged by the HIRS deal. The deal expired in 2018.

The following table shows the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's securities
portfolio, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected
credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

31,12.2019

Fair value/gross value of dobt securities 12 month | lifetime

broken down by the categories of internal credit rating
E’:::-rﬂl‘umnl bonds and zero-coupon reasury bills
Dabt Securities at falr value through other comprehensive income
~ Iugh grade ' 27107
standard grade 0
average grade 0
sub-standard grade 0
mpaired 0
Total
Dobt Socurition at amortised cost -
high grade 0
slandard grade i
average grade 0
sub-standard grade ]
k. : =
a

impaired

ECL ECL Total

alocloaclalo
2D o 0o
[=

impaired
Total

elolocalola
oloclojlo|lo|o
||=1=;|::|:||:-:=

37



Consolidated Financial Statements 31. December 2009
Sberbank Hungary Lid,

data in HUF million

Fair valua/gross value of debt securities

h:mm by the categories of internal credit rating
5]

Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bilis

31.12.2018

12 month | lifetimo

Impaired
ECL ECL

Dabt Securitios at fair value through other comprehensive
incoma

high grade

standard grade

average grade

sub-siandard grade

=]
E-ZE-JR-3f=aN-1K-]
(=A== =y =] ]
=

1022

‘standard grade

average grade

Riiiietinlnizioio

Iubﬂll]lq-:ld grade

fmpaired

Total

i,

olo|o)a
ooioioola
ojo ojojalo

1022

Fair value/gross value of debt securities

broken down by the categories of internal credit rating
systom
Corporate bonds

M.z2.2018

12 month | litelme impalred

ECL ECL aEsats

Debt Securities at fair value through other comprehensive income

high grade

sub-stindard grade

mpaired

Tota

= ]
-RE-SN-30-0E-00-]

|ojojoio|o|o

Debt Securities at amortised cost

high grade

_Stendardgrede
avarage grade

sub-standard grade

. .i-np:tirﬁ:l

Tokal

|

el oloio|s

e ciojejale
ololo

The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018

The following table shows the volume changes in the Bank's securities portfolio, broken
down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss
categories at the end of the reporting year. For securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income the table contains changes to fair value, while for securifies
measured at amortised cost the table shows changes to gross carrying amounts.
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Changes in Tair valuefgross value of debt securities
broken down by the categories of expected credit loss (ECL)
‘Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

31.12.2019
lifetime

ECL

impaired

Total

Debt Securities at fair value through other comprehensive incoms

opening balance

32234

purchases during the year

15 148

derecognsed or matured (excluding write offs)

wirita-affs

maodifications without derecognition

reciassification to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to [fetime ECL category

reclassification impaired category

change in fair vaiue

other movements (loreign curmency translation)

closing balance

[-IN=FR=3N-ER=RN=00=0F=0Q="R0E=0E-]

ojojolo|o|jo|o |0 O|DS

Debt Securities at amortised cost

opening balance

purchases duting 1he year

~ Il K §
nE1 ﬂﬁaaaannﬁ

darecagnised or matured {excluding write offs)

[
—_—

write-affs

modificatons without derecognition

raclassification to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to ifetime ECL category

reclassilication impaired category

ﬂ]ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ

athar movements (foraign curmmency transiation, accrued interest)

L

closing balance

oooialoc| oo e a

Sioiooaojooo|alo

Changes In falr valuelgross value of dobt securities
broken down by the categories of expected credit loss (ECL)
Governmant bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

Debit Securities at fair value through other comprehonsive incoma

31.12.2018
lifetime

ECL

impaired

opening balance

purchises during the yeiar

derecognised or matured {excluding write offs)

wiite-offs

modifications withoul derecognition

reclassification to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to ifetime ECL calegory

reclassification inpaired calegory

change in fair value

other movemants (foraign curency (ransiation)

clasing balance

cloocioocooeo ol

olaloclo|o|jlo|OjQ|@IOl2

Debt Securilies at amortised cost

opening balance

purchases during the year

derecognised or matured (oxcluding write offs)
write-offs

modifications without derecognitkon

ru-mnilﬂtimm__lirrmlh ECL category

reclassification to lifetime ECL category

reclassihication impalred categary

oliaio| o Q|lo|o

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂ-ﬁi

other movaments (foreign curmency transtation, accrued |nienmst)

23

L]
Lad

closing balance

sloo| oo oD D e

oloolo|lclale|laia|a

-
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31.12.2019
Changos in falr value/gross value of debt securities 12 month Iifetime impairod

braken down by the categories of expected credit loss (ECL)
Corporate bonds ECL ECL annols Tatal

Debt Securities at fair valus through other comprehensive income
2 oug =
purchases during the year oI
derecognised or matured (excluding write offs) 431
motlfications without detecognilion 0
reciassification 1o 12 manth ECL category o
reciassificabion to Melme ECL catogory .
reclassification impnired category i
D

0

575

&
iy

chango in fair value
| other movemants (foreign currency transtation)
closing balance - 144
| Dbt Securities at amortised cost
apening balance ]
]

eiclololoiclolaiclole
Riolololaelals

-

purchases dunng the year 3780
derecognised or maturad {axciiding wiite offs) 0
write-offs N o 0
modifications without derscognition 0
reclassification to 12 month ECL calegory 0
reclassification to Wfetime ECL category 0

0

L

|
nlnln olojo B

| othar movements (oreign curmancy transiation, accrued intarest) | 24
closing balance 1804

24

ua:annnnnﬁla ociloio|ooolcolalaola

oo ooolooloia o

The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018,

The decline in the portfolio related to the derecognition of securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income stems from maturity and sale. Because of the sales,
HUF 1 million was transferred from other comprehensive income to the profit or loss.

The government bonds measured at amortised cost matured during 2019, The year-end
portfolio consists of corporate bonds issued in the Bond Funding for Growth Scheme.

The following table shows the reporting-year changes in expected credit loss For securities
measured al fair value through other comprehensive income, these movements reflect
changes during the reporting year lo the portfolio’s fair value due to credit risks. These fair
value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income to risk costs in the income
statement.
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Changes in expected cradit loss (ECL) of
dobt securities during the year
Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury bills

12 month
ECL

3122019

lifetime
ECL

impaired
assels

g

Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income

apening balance

78

purchases during the year

derecognised or matured {excluding wrile offs)

wirite-offs

modifications without derecognition

due to change in credit risk

due to unwinding of discount

reclassification to 12 month ECL eategory

reclassification to (Wetime ECL category

reclasslficallon impaired category

changes in ECL measurement modal, assumplions and inpuls

ather movements (foreign surrency transiation, rounding)

closing balance

$-nnanngan:'l

o ooecooio|loo|Djo OO

ecojooojoooc|oaO

=—aaalau$n¢b'§§ l

Dabl securities at amortised coat

apening balance

-
a

purchases dunng the year

[=]

derecognised or matured (excluding write offs)

BB

wite-affs

modifications without derecognition

due to changa in cradil rsk

dug to rwinding of discount

raclassification to 12 month ECL eategory

reclassification o ifetime ECL categary

reclassification impaired category

changes in ECL measuremant model, assumptions and inputs

other movemnents (foreign curmency transtation, rounding)

closing balance

ololocoojoo|= o0

olooco|piojoloo|olo|lala

alojojojo|ola|lclo|o|o|olo

- IR-RE-FR-AR-RE-AN-2 0 -0 0 -]
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Changes In expected crodit loss (ECL) of
debit securities during the yaar
Government bonds and zero-coupan treasury bills

12 manth
ECL

31.12.2018

litatime
ECL

impaired

Total

Dabt securities at foir value through other comprehensive income

opening balence

purchases during the year

2| &

derecognised or matured {exciuding write offs)

0
——

wirite-affs

modifications withou! derecognition

__:Imt\udm[wlnmditmh

dua 1o unwinding of discount

recdassificalion o 12 month ECL category

reclassificalion o fetime ECL calegory

raciassification impaired category

changes in ECL measurement model, assumptions and inputs

ather mavements {foreign currency transialion, rounding)

closing balance

Halalatalals

Dobt securities at amortised cost

ooo|lojlalojlolalolelalals

S0 | o)olo|Q 0 oD DO G| o

au_nnnnnﬁunm

~ opaning balanca

pirchases during iha year

detecognised ot matured (excluding wiite offs)

wiite-offs

maodifications withoul desecognition

-dmlnr.hinpnin cmdit risk

—_—

due o unwinding of dizcount

reciassification 10 12 month ECL category

rachasaficalion to Iifetime ECL categary

reclassification impaired category

changes in Eﬂmeumnmﬂmud&i assumplions and inputs

other moverments {foreign cumency transiation, rounding)

dulnn balance

tloloolooolRiooool =

oaoodcoooooaleoiola

SO olalo.o|lalol o
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31.12.2019
Changes in expectad credit loss (ECL) of 12 month Iifetime impalred
%‘:‘;"‘W“‘ the year ECL ECL assets Total
Debt securities at falr value through other comprehansive income J
oponing balance 0 o o 0
purchases during the year 5 "] 0 B
derecogiisad or matured (excluding wile offs) Q 0 0 1]
wrile-offs 0 0 o 0
moddications without derecognition 0 0 0 0
| due to change in credit risk 0 0 0 [}
due to unwinding of discount o 0 0 0
reciassification to 12 month ECL category 0 o 1] 0
reclassification to Iebme ECL category 0 0 0 0
raclassification mpnim_d ﬂtoqu 0 0 0 0
changes in ECL measurement model, assumptions and inpuis a 4] 0 0
other mavements (foreign currency transkalicn, rounding) 4] ¥ 0 1]
cloning balance -] 0 0 &
Debt securities at amortised cost
opaning balance o o 1] [}
purchases during the year 3% 0 0 30
darecagnised or matured {exciuding write offs) 0 i) 0 0
write-offs 0 0 0 0
moddications without derecognition 0 ¥ 0 0
due o change in crédit rsk: [1] 0 0 1}
due to urwinding of discount 0 a ] 0
recinssification to 12 month ECL calagery 0 1] ] o
reclazsification to lfetime ECL category 0 1] 1] 0
reciassification impaired categary 0 0 0 0
ehanges in ECL measuremant model, assumptions and inputs | Q [1] 0
other movements (foreign currency transtation, rounding) 0 0 0 1}
closing balance k] ] [i] a9

The Bank did not hold corporate bonds in 2018

The following table shows the Bank's debt securities broken down by their original maturity.

Book value of debt securities broken-down by
original maturily categories 31.12.2018 31.12.2018
Government bonds and zero-coupon treasury hills
securities with original maturity within 1 year deg2 0
sacunties with onginal malurity over 1 yeéar 23415 43 BBA
of which due within 1 year 8353 14712
Total debt securities 7 107 43 884 |
Book value of dobl securities broken-down by
ariginal maturity categories 34.12.2019 322018
Corporate bonds
securities with anglinal maturity within 1 year i} 0
sacurities with orginal maturity over 1 year 3009 0
of which dus within 1 year 0 0
Total debl securitios 3809 o
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Neither in the reporting year nor in the comparative year does the Bank's balance sheel
contain overdue receivables related to any of the securities presented here,

6.6.3. Receivables from credit institutions

Changes to receivables from credi institutions:

| Receivables from credit institutions 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Receivables from Central Bank 1319 697
Impainment for receivables from Central Bank a 19
Recevables from cradil nstilutions 12 829 21 812
Impairmen for recatvablis (rom credd inatiutions 4 .36
| Total roeivables from credit institutions. IR 22 456

e ————

The Bank classified all of its receivables from credit institutions in the 'hold’ business model.
In compliance with the SPPI tests performed, these receivables are recognised at amortised

cost.
Changes to gross values:
[ 31,12.2019
mmub:u":rmwm cradit institutions 12 month lifetime inpdind
of internal credit rating system ECL ECL assols Total
Performing receivables e8| o] 0 14 148
high grade 13 845 o| 0 13 845
standard grade 0 0 0 0
average grade N 103 0 ol 303
past due, bt nol impained 1] 0 0 0
_ Nan-performing raceivables 0 0 0 0]
individually impaired o] 0 0 0
collectively empalred 0 0 0 0
| Total gross book value 14148 0 of 14148
31.12.2018
Gross h:mh;;uuﬂ m;alwh::t from credit institutions 12 riicaith fitetime impaired
of l-ﬂ‘tﬂl'l_"-;l_ﬂlldlt rating system ECL ECL aszals Total
Perfoming recehabies 77 09 1] o 22 500
high grade 1147 0 0 1147
standard grade —— 21 382 0 0 21 362
avarage grade L] o i3 [+
past due. but not impaired 0 o 0 (]
Non-perfoming recenvables 0 0 0 0
intiividually mpaired 0 0 0 0
collectively impaired 0 0 0 0
Tnhlgrrmbuhkﬂluo B ___Em o [1] 22 509
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Changes in gross value broken down by the categories 31.12.2019
of internal credlt rating systom and the expected 12month | lifetime impairod
cradit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL pESEtE Total
opuning balance 22 509 0 o 22 508
placements and purchases during the year 3614 0 0 3614
derecognised or matured (excluding wite offs) 422 0 0 -422
wiite-offs a 1] 0 o
modifications without derecognitian 1] 0 ] 1]
change in volume in the same ECL category =11 958 o 0 -11854
" teclassification to 12 month ECL category 0 0 0 0
reclpssification 1o lifetime ECL calegory 0 1] ] o
reclassification impaired category a 0 o 1]
othar movements (forelgn curmancy transiation) 405 1] a 405
cloning balance 14 148 o a 14 148
Changes in gross value broken down by the categories 31.12.2010
of internal eredit rating system and the expected 12 month |ifetime Impaired
crodit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL ansets Total
opening balance 31 Ta2 o o a1 742
placements and purchases during the year 156943 285 1] 157 228
derecognised or matured (excluding write offs) -168 694 0 g| -106694
write-cffs - a o ] o
modifications without deracognition 0 o 0 1]
change in velume in the same ECL category 448 i} 1] -449
reclassification lo 12 month ECL calagory 574 BT (] 0
reciassification to [fetime ECL category -2 291 1] o
reciassification impaired category 1] 0 1] (1]
ather movements (foraign cutrancy transkation) 684 -2 1] sng_
closing balance 22 509 0 [ 22 509
Changes to expected credit loss:
3122019
12 month | lifetime impaired
Changes in expected credit loss (ECL) during the year ECL ECL mesels Total
apening balance 54 1] a 54
purchases dunng the year L] 0 1] ]
darecegnised or matured (excluding write-offs) 1] ¢ 1] 0
wiite-offs g 0 o o
modifications without demecogniion o a o o
dum lo change in credil sk 88 21| 0 -109
dug o unwinding of discount 3 0 o a
raciagsification to 12 month ECL category ] o o o
reclass/fication to etmea ECL calegory 21 b4 ] 1]
raclassification to impaired calegorny 0 0 i 0
changes m ECL measurement model, assumplions and 0 o 0 0
inputs
other movements (forelgn currency transiation) 1 0 a 1
closing balance ar ] o ¥
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311.12.2018
12month | Iifetime | impaired
Changes in expacted credit loss (ECL) during the year ECL Et:!. assels Total
opening balance 114 o 0 114
purchases during the year 7 ¥ 0 14|
 derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) -12] a ] -12
wrribe-cffs 0 0 0 1]
modifications without derecognition 1] i) 0 0
due to change in credit nisk -55 -7 0 42
due to-unwinding of discount a 0 0 o
reclassification to 12 month ECL catagory a o 0 L]
reclassification 1o lifetime ECL category 1] o o 0
reciassification 1o mpaited categony o o o 0
changes in ECL moasuremant mode|, asaumptions: and 0 0 a0 0
[rpeeits
olher mavemanti (farsign curmancy translation) o Q a o
| closing baiance s J L] 2l
Receivables from credit institutions by remaining maturity:
) L 31122018
Receivables from credit institutions m“'"““"" <30 days | 31-90 days | ’: m t-5year | >Byear | Total
| Recalvables from Central Bank 1316 0 0 o] 0 0 1316
Recaivablos from cradit institutions 147 a7 5423 o 0 5814 12785
Total receivables from credit institutions 2787 ar 5423 0 1] 5814 14111
= 31122018
Recelvables from credit institutions :.m <30 days | 3190 days ’_11 :.“; 1-5year | >5year Total
Recaivables from Central Bank 678 o] 0 0 ol 0 678
Recevables from credit institutlans 943 3138 i Bad 383 1041 G411 2777
Total recelvables from credit institutions 1621 3136 9 863 g3 1041 6411 22 465
Receivables from credit institutions by geographic region:
- 31.12.2019
 Recoivables from credit institutions Domestic Russia EW Other Total
Receivables fram Central Bank 1316 0 0 0 1316
Receivables from credit instilutions 1481 6035 A 05 ana 12785
Total receivables from credit institutions 27 6035 | 4 996 203 14111
311220148
Flrl__!tﬂbl_- from credil Institutions Domaatic Russia EU Other Total
Receivables from Central Bank BT8 0 ] 0 B78
Recelvables from cradil instilutions 13179 8180 438 1] 21 7T
Total recetvables from crodil instituiions 13 857 B 160 438 L] 22 i!-_!_
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6.6.4. Loans and advances to customers

This section presents receivables from customers broken down by following segments:

data in HUF million

Loans and advances 1o customers 31122019 | 31.12.2018
corporate lnons 175819 157 007
mmpairment for corporate loans 7837 -7 928
pivate lcans 102 344 88 131
~ impairment for private loans -4 889 8575
Total loans and advances to customers 265 637 228 635

Loans measured at fair value through profit and loss

The Bank measures only the Baby loan product launched in 2019 based on the Government
Decree on supporting child-bearing and child-raising al fair value through profit or loss. While
the Baby loan product is classified in 'hold' business model, the SPPI test provided the result
that the contractual cash flows are not consistent with a basic lending arrangement due to
the special conditions of the product. Therefore these loans are not allowed to be meastred
al amortised cost.

Loans and advances to customers 31.12.2019 | 31122018
mrmmlé loans & 0
private loans 19147 0

Total loans and advances to customers 19147 0

The product was launched only in July 2019, but thanks to its popularity the Bank could build
up a portfolio significant both in units and in value by the end of the year.

The following table shows the changes to fair value of the portfolio in reporting year.

Changes in tha fair value of the loans 2019.12.1

opaning 0
purchases during the year 18 981
:::;mgnm or maturad {axcluding write- 458
write-offs 1]
changes in fair valus 323
modifications without derecognition 0
other movements (FX translation, i
Intarest aconials)

closing balance 19 147

Loans measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

On transition to IFRS 9 the Bank classified a non-performing part of the portfolio into 'hald
and sell' business model, for which it was known at the date of transition that it will be
recovered by the revenue from the planned sale of receivables rather than by future cash
flows of principal and interest.

These loans have been held in the FVOCI category since the date of transition.
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Loans and advances to cuslomars 31922010 | 31122048

" corporate loans 52 B4
private loans. o o|] 4

| Total loans and advances to customars B 52 127

data in HUF miflion

The volume of the portfolio and the number of transactions therein dropped significantly
during the reporting year as a result of the intensive selling activity. Section 6.9.17 Result on
sales of receivables contains detailed information of the selling activity,

The following table shows the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's portfolio
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, broken down according to the
Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss categories at the end of the

reporting year.
1.12.2019
Fair value broken down by the 12 month letime impalrad impaired
categortes of internal crodit rating system ECL ECL assets assels POCI
and impairmant categor collective | collective | colloctive individual ansots Tatal
corporate loans 0 0 41 1 [ 82
Perfoming 0 0 0 0 of 0
standard grade 1l 0 o 0 0 o 0
| average grade o 0 0 = I:I a ]
Non-performing o 0 41 N 1 a 52
- impaired 0 0 a1 " o 52
private loans B 0 0 0 0 0 0
Numpgﬂmnlng o o i} 0 o| 0
Impairea 0 0 0 0 o 0
Total fair value - 0 0 41 ] 0|
31.12.2018
Fair value broken down by the 12month | liletime impaired impaired
catagores of internal credit rating systom ECL ECL pEsots assots POCI
and impairment categories collective | collective | collective individual assots Total
corporato leans | 0 0 21 T 0w
Parfarming . 1] 0 il 0 0 o
standard grade 0 0 0 0 0 0]
average grade ] ol 0 0 ¢ 0]
Man-parfoming ] 0 3 1 1} B4
impaired 0 ] T3 11 o B4 |
private loans 0 0 4 of o 43
Nan-parfarming 0 0 43 0 0 43
wnpaired - 0 0 43 0 0 4
Total fair value ol o 116 " o]

The next tables show the changes to fair value of the portfolio in the reporting year. The fair
value of the portfolio during the reporting year was largely influenced by the increased sales
of receivables: the decrease in volume owing to such derecognitions amounted to HUF 249
million, while other amounts received mainly due to claiming collateral totalled HUF 18
million. This trend is continuing in the following year, and will ultimately lead to the complete

elimination of the portfolio.
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Changes in tha fair value of the loans
broken down by the expected crodit loss
{ECL) categories

corporate loans

12 monih
ECL
colloctive

lifetime
ECL
collective

MnA2.2018
impaired
assels
collective

impaired
assols
individual

POCI
assels

8
g
3

PQCI
assals
Individual

3

opening balance

183

162

purchases during the year

derecognised or matuisd (axciudng write-
offs]

write-offs

changes in fair value

madifications witheul derseognition

raclassification to 12 month ECL calegory

reclassification to lifetime ECL category

reciassificstion o impaired category

other movements (FX transtation,
interest accruals)

Qﬂﬂﬂ-ﬂ'\lﬂéﬁ

o (oojo | Dalo

closing balanca

alo | ool aslals o | 0lo

e o ool o o0

154

170

oo oe e e a9 o |9\ D

ol o | 2 o\ o o o oo

k|o|®
§Hﬂﬂﬂﬂ"lﬂ|ﬁi’ﬁ

Changes in the fair valua of the loans
broken down by the expected credit loss
(ECL) calegories

corporate loans

12 month
ECL
collective

lifetime
ECL

g
:

M.12.2018

impaired

POCI
ansols
collective

individual

Total

individual

opening balance

purchases during the year

| derecognised or matured (excluding write-
offs)

o | Qlo

251

-305

write-affs

changes in fair value

modifications withoul derecognition

reciassification to 12 month ECL category

mcinssilication 1o lifstime ECL calegory

reclassification lo impaired category

I:Iﬂﬂ-a_ﬂk;ﬁ

| oiher movements (FX transtation,
interest accruals)

M ioooolalo

closing balance

ol oloaolocio|a]

o o |oloo|lojle|lo o Oolo

162

el o ooolooclo o o | oo

oo | oooQIolo] O |O; o

i:lurlgu:‘ln&uhjrmununhum
broken down by the expectad credit loss
(ECL) categorias

private loans

12 month

collective

3

3122018
impaired
assels
cofloctive

impaired

individual

POGI
assels
collective

POCI

individual

)

opaning balance

purchases during the year

derecognised or matured (excluding write-
offa)

]

changes in fair value

modifications withoul derecognition

reclassdfication to 12 month ECL category

reclassification to lifetime ECL category

reclassification to impaired category

other movamanis (FX translation,
mterest aocruals)

closing balance

e e oo lale 2 9 O 0

uanan==,=¢n¢§

o olooclao|le oo o | oo

[-SE - -E - AN -ER-AE-T0 -2 - -R -
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Changes in the fair value of the loans
braken down by the expected crodit loss
(ECL) catogories

privata loans

12 month
ECL

§

litetimo

collective

3.12.2018
Il o
nssols

impaired

Irdiviel ual

g
g
5

POCIH
assoln
individual

Total

apaning balance

| _Purr.lma_an during | year

ﬁ:ihr?pngnhad or matured (excluding wiite-
4]

winie-offs
changes in fair value

-'-gn:-E

-29

| modifications without derecognition

o

reclassification ln 12 menth ECL category

rectassification to Mefime ECL category

rucipssiication to impaled calegaory

other movements (FX translation.
Interest socriaks)

B o |odgjoaojojla| o | oo

o Qoo oo ool o | ol

3o oo ololal| o oo

8 o oo o cjaelol o | alo

ol o |olololaleial s lale

§ Lt ] ﬂiﬂ =)

u:u:lng_ balance

The following tables show the reporting-year changes in portfolio fair value due to credit
risks. These fair value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income to risk
costs in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of the loans due to
change In credit rink broken down by the
expacted crodil loss (ECL) categories
corporate loans

12 month
ECL

|
E

m3
3

JMa22018
impadred

assols
inclivicluat

PoCI

individial

apaning balance

-159

purchases during [ha yoar

=)

oo

darecognised or maturad (excluding write-

__offs)
write-offs

modifications without deracognition

v |

dun to ehangs in credit rlsk

due to unwinding of discount

-----

= | =3 O

mclassificalion 1o Hfetime ECL category

reclassification to kmpalred calegany

changes in ECL measuremeant mogal,
assumptions and Inpuits

ole|lelalein|le| ool

olher movements (FX translation,
Inbeirest accruaks)

closing balance

oo |a oelealoelol e |ale

sl o o

alo |5 oBlse
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Changes in the falr value of the loans due to
change in credit risk broken down by the
expected credit loss (ECL) categories
corporate loans

12 month

collective

collective

31.12.2018
impaired

¥

POCI

:
:

Total

opening balance

purchases during the year

derecognised or matured (excluding write-
affs)

219

286

write-offa

madilications without derecognilion

dus to change in cradd risk

e to unwinding of dscount

reciassification to 12 month ECL eategory

reclassification lo lfetime ECL category

reclassification o impaired category

changes in ECL measuremen| model,
assumptions and nputs

oloole|lw|d ole

" oher movements (FX ransiation,
inferast accruals)

i
—
=

closing balance

ol o | o|ogo|ejle Qoo o |O o

ol o | o aocjojo|jojojal o |22

Bl e cannnhan:ﬂu

=4

%
o
—=

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ-ﬂ§

2l o| o oo e|egio o o9

Changes in the fair value of the loans due to
change in credit risk broken down by the
expected credit loss (ECL) categories
private loans

12 month

g
:
g
i
g

31.12.2019
impaired
_assels
collective

impaired

individual

FOCI

udlhﬂlv_l

POCI

Imlvi&ﬁl

Total

opening balanco

-214

purchases during (he year

derecognised or malumed (axcluding write-
offs}

17T

wrie-offs

modifications withaul derscognition

due to change in credid rigk

due to unwinding of discount

reclassification 1o 12 month ECL calegory

reclassiication to lifletme ECL category

| reciassificabion to impaired category

changes in ECL mensurement model,
| assumptions and inputs

other movemants (FX transiation,
interes! acoruals)

elosing balance
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daia in HLIF million

Changes In the fair value of the loans due to
change in credit risk broken down by the
expecied credit loss (ECL) eategories
private loans

12 month
ECL

%

ECL
collective

opening balance

purchases during the year

Naz.2018
impaired
‘assels

collective

impaired

Individual

P0G
assefs
collective

POCI

Individual

8

287

Hr?mgnlnﬁ of maturad (exciuding write-
olfs

wrile-olfs

muodilicalions withoul derscognition

e 1o change i cred ik

due to unwinding of discount

reclassificalion to 12 month ECL category

| reciassification to lflime ECL category

reclassification 1o Impaired calegary

changes in ECL measuremsnt model,
assumpltions and inputs

O o/oo Qoo DO |ojo

olher movements (FX iransistion,
interosl Bocruais)

bl o lojlaolo|l=

closing balance

elc | o|lololo|e ool olala

Q|9

214

alo | 9  Qolgac ool O Io|la

=T ] Q| a|leolalo|odl o ol

= D O oo o | S |o ool o oo
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the

end of the reporting year,
Ageing of fair value of overdue loans 31.12.2018
brokon down by the eategories of internal
eredit rating system
<30 days | 3180 duys | 61-90 days ’d":;:“ b m‘ > 1 year Total
‘corparate loans o 0 o E o 52 52
: Hwﬂnmﬁng 0 L] 0 1] 0 52 52
i'rlpu.l'_md o 1] 1] 1] 4] 52 52
private loans ] a 0 0 a ] i
Non-performing ] 0 1] of n ol o
impaired 0 0 0 1] [ o 0
Total lair value 1] L1} 0 0 1] 52 52
Ageing of fair value of overdue loans 3122018
broken down by the categories of intermal
credit roting system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days ';;;'f’ ‘:";‘;‘ >tyear | Total
corparate loans 0| 0 o 0 B L) B4
Mon-perdomming 0 0 0 0 & 7a B4
impaired 4] i a0 0 8 Ta B4
private ioans 2 0 0 0 1 40 43
Non-parforming L 2 1] g 0 1 Ao 43
Impaired 2 o 0 a 1 40 a3
Total fair value F 0 o (] 7 118 127
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Sberbank Hungary Lid. data in HUF million

Loans measured at amortised cost

The following table shows loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by business
segments.

Loans and advances 1o customers 31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018
“corparate loans 175767 | 186923
impairment for corporate loans -7 637 -7 928
-_priuahe loans 83w 88 088
-_mrnpni-m for privale loans -4 BAG -8 575
Total loans and advances to customers 246438 | 220 508 |

The Bank's lending portfolio displayed stable growth over the last two years, which is
primarily down to increases at two business divisions, the commercial loans of the corporate
customers division and the persanal loans of the retail division. Retail overdrafts — though
starting from a lower level — also produced significant growth (25%). The portfolio of private
morigage loans is declining, partly due to the sale of the non-performing loans, partly
because the Bank's management intentionally concentrates less on this business due to its
lower profitability,

In the corporate division, project-financing loans increased by 47%, overdraft loans by 15
% and investment loans by 5%. On the whole, the corporate loan portfolio rose by HUF 18,8
billion (12%).

In the years presented in these financial statements the Bank only has originated credit-
impaired loans it disbursed, it did not purchase such loans. The portfolio of originated credit
impaired loans stems from the non-performing foreign currency loans converted into
Hungarian forints during the 2015 debtor relief programme.

8] te lopans

The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of loans measured at amartised
cost, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected
credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

Gross book value broken down by the 31.12.2019
catogories of internal credit rating system and | 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired POCI POCI
the expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assets assots asgels
colloctive | collective | collective individual | collective individual Total
Porforming 166027 | 11007 0 o 643 o] 166883
high grade 9751 81 0 0 [} 0 8812
standard grade #8 462 6o41| O 0 0 ¢ g5 403
warage grode 50 646 2814 0 0 G549 a 54 108
below average grade 6 168 1191 0 0 0 0 7359
" MNon-performing 0 0 2197 & BA7 0 0 9084
slandard grade 0 ] 25 0 0| 0 25
gveroge grade 0 a 53 0 1] o 53
below average grade o o 0 T 0 1] 0 7
mpaired 0 0 2112 6887 0 0 8999
Total corporata loa 155 027 Hoor|  a2t97| 6867 | 648 0 175 767
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data in HUF million

Sberbank Hungary Lid.

Gross book value broken down by the 31.12.2018
categorios of internal credit rating system and | 12 month | titetime | impaired | impaired POCH POCH
the expected credil loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assals assels EEsels assels
collective | collective | collective | Individual | collective | individual Total
Performing 136 623 10 883 0 0 0 0 146 506
high grade 5987 0 0 0 0 o 5 987
standard grade 39 475 7 068 0] 0 0 o 46 543
avorage grade B5 7 2005 o 1] a o &7 796
below average grade 4370 1810 0 0 i} 0 6 180
Non-performing o 0 2470 7 628 0 121 10417
atandard grade 0 i i) ] ] o 29
average grade o 0 a7 o/ 0| 0 a7
| — bl aversge greda o 1] A7 ] 1] i AT
impaired [ 0 2047 7 528 0 721 10 204
Total corporate loans 135625 10683 2170 7626 0 721 156 923
The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at
amortised cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss
categories al the end of the reporting year.
Changes in the gross book value 31122018
broken down by the 12month | lifetime | Impaired | impaired | POCI POCI
expoctod credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assetn assols asseis assols
collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual | Total
opening balance 135625| 10883 2170 7526 0 1] 156923
purchases during the year asan | 187 " 522 0 o  ss08
:"“’T’“ﬂ"m B ITsiced (enciucling wike: 7 348 846 613 1871 f 0 10 478
~ wite-offs 0 o 120 an 0 o 531
changes within the same ECL categary 14 260 726 807 | 556 7 0| 18240
modifications without derecognition 0 0 2 8 720 -T2 e
reclassification 1o 12 manth ECL category Ba32| BT 5 0 D 0 0
 reclessification to lifelime ECL calegory 8847 5131 484 0 0 0 0
reciassification o Impaired categery 246 1509 1755 0 0 0 0
mﬂm {FX transiation, 1768 14 o8 1 669 0 0 113
closing balance _= 165027 11007 2197 6 087 649 o 1rs7er
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Sherbank Hungary Lid, data in HUF million

Changes in the gross book value 31,12.2018

brokaen down by the 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired POCI POCH

expected oradit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assals asspls asseis

collective | colloctive | collective Individual | collective | individual Total

opening balance 106 976 12733 2362 7 705 0 791 130 567
purchases during the year 64 078 B85 ] 452 ] 1] 65 218
miw'“‘ o matumd (exciixtiog write- 30 379 2548 465 220 o 33610
write-offs A 0 433 1928 0 0 2063
changes within the same ECL category -2 600 -1 148 402 1 101 0 71 747
medifications without derecognition o o o a o 1] o
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 2 545 -2 442 -45 -58 0 o -6 156
reclassification to lifetime ECL category -6 023 418 288 -85 i} 0 0
reclassification to impared category -1 541 «2 145 1170 2518 a 0 0
ather movemants (FX transiation,

J intarest als) 1 567 a7 71 258 i} 1 2222

_tlullng balanca 135 623 10 883 2170 T 526 o 721 156 ME.

The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the
loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by category of expected credit loss.

Changes in the expected credit loss 31.12.2019

broken down by the expected 12 month lifetimo Impaird Impalred PoCI POoci

credit loss (ECL) catogories ECL ECL assots assots assets | assets

collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual |  Total

opening balance -1 068 413 -908 5 675 0 -264 7928

 purchases during the year -381 16 A .239 0 0 837
W or:malured {axcliding wrile- 426 76 789 1213 14 o 2518
write-offs 0 0 144 394 0 0 538
modifications wilhout derecognition 0 ) 340 340 264 264 0
due to change in credit risk 72 ET a4 480 240 0 1 747
due to unwinding of discount 0 0 -33 -116 5 0 -169
reclasa/fication 1o 12 month ECL category 42 a1 1 0 0 0
reclassification o iiletime ECL calegory 104 138 2 0 0 0 0
reclassification to impaired category 3 51 51 -3 ] i} 0
:hnnnu_ln E?l;d m_;m mgdel, n 0 0 0 0 a0 0
:?:“::"m::mg (FX kransletion, 12 2 26 180 2 0 222

closing balance 1 042 2| 4280 5186 7 0 1837
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Changes in the expoacted crodit loss. M.12.2018
broken down by the expecied 12 month Hiatime impaired Impaired POCT POCI
credit loss (ECL) catogories ECL ECL assels -assels asgels assels
colloctive | colloctive | collective Individual

8
:
.
]

Total

aponing balance -¥55 -261 1173 -6 182

-8 587

purchasas during the year 574 -19 1 227

-821

m"“‘“w e et iscliding Yoy 120 388 787

write-olfs 0 114 19249

mid|ficalions withaul derscognition

due to change In eredil risk

0
= 14 zg._q -1 441
due o unwinding of discount 22

regiasakfication to 12 month ECL categary 18

b

rectassification to ifetime ECL category 117

reciassificabon to impaired category

85
131 -54
a

changes in ECL measurement model, o

asaumphons and inputs

1
—
g-n fsun!:
oc|olojole

ofher movemeants (FX transtation,

interesl accruals) 3 8

Eub ﬁﬁggﬂéﬂﬂﬁ
< |

closing balance

N

113 -908 -5

%
0

lolo o |lele|le cleielel o ale
2

Taking collateral into account may result in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there is still no need to record impairment. The following tables break down such
overdue receivables by age.

Ageing of the gross value of overdus but 31,12.2019
not impaired loans broken down by the
eategories of the internal credit rting

aystom 31-60 days | 61-90 days 1180 Widays | it

A year

8
§
§

Total

Porforming

standard grade

balow nw'ar_lﬁu'umi:h

impaired

E

2

1k

3
oloooocaoicolo oo
slooio|ole|loloio|ela
(=R =R =R =L -Rl A -0y =-E =R
o o:ocoa oo ool
- QoIS o|o|oa

Total corporate loans

|
= oiooo{= 00| 0| c| o
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e

Agelng of the gross valuo of overdue but
not impalred loans broken down by the
categories of the internal credit rating
system

% 30 days

31-60 days

3.12.2018

61-80 days

181 days
-1 year

=1 ymar

i

Performing

Iigh grade

standand grade

avarage grade

below average grade

Mon-performing

standard grade

average grade

balow average gratde

impaired

Tolal corporate loans

= 00D o e | R | 0| =0 -
aoo|o|a g a|ala
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the
end of the reporting year and in the previous year.

Ageing of tha gross value of overduo
loans broken down by the categories

of the internal credit rating systom

£ 30 days

31-60 days

31.12.2018

61-90 days

01-180
days

=1 yaar

Total

Porforming

high grada 1

standamd grade

£l

average grade

141

183

below average grada

Qoo || o

~ Non-performing

43

anT

Eﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬁ

£

5038

standard grade

average grade

L=

barlow average grade

impaired

43

216

5033

Total corporate loans
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5§"uu=§uuaﬂn
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EEQQGEﬂGHDﬂ

I
BIBlul-lo
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qulngnfumnrm valug of overduR
loans broken down by the categories

of the Internal credit rating system

< 30 days

31-60 days

3122018

61-90 days

181 days
<1 year
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_-Pﬂﬂnrrrﬂnn

14
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standard grade
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=0 RE=00=00 2

oo o
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103
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standard grade

average grade

below average grage
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103
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The ageing of lhe expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related
overdue receivable is presented below at the end of the reporting year and in the previous
year.

Ageing of the expectod crodit loss 31.12.2019
braken down by tha calegories
of the Intemal credit rating systen
| avardue <=1 yoar =1 year Total
Parforming -4 -394 827 1232
high grade 0 5 a8 43
standard grade 1 132 -394 527
average grade 7 218 -360 585
below average grade -3 -39 65 -107
Non-parforming -3 737 -1 562 1106 -6 405
| standand grade 0| 0 5 5
sverage grade -1 42 o 13
bolow avernge grade -4 0 -1 B
Irrvpetred 3732 -1 550 <1100 -6 382
Total impairment for corporate loans 3748 1956 1933 -7 837 |
Ageing of the expacted credit loss 31.12.2018
broken down by the categories
of the internal credit rating systam
) overdue <=1 ysar =1 year Total
Porforming 4 228 950 1180
high grade 0 2 5 7]
standard grade 0 -9 171 -210
average grade 3 ~1El T2T 891
bolow avernge grade 1 2 AT 2
~ Non-parforming -4 093 1019 -1 636 6748 |
standard_grade 0| 2 0 2
average grade -1 -3 1] -
below average grade 2 3 -1 B
impaired 4 090 1019 1635 8736
Total impaimient for corporate loans 4007  aus|  2see 7 928

58
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data in HUF million

Private loans

The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of loans measured at amortised

cost, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected
credit loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

Gross book valuo broken down by the 422010
categories of internal credit rating system and | 12 month | lifetime impalred impaired POCI POCI
the expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assols assols assels ansols
collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual | Total
Performing 74 061 2703 o o 281 o 77 045
high grade 0 0 0 0 0 o ]
standaid grade 50 580 498 0 0 149 0 51227
average grade 18 847 aT7 0 0 10 0 19 334
below average grade 4634 1728 0 0 122 0 6 484
Non-porfarming [ 0 3716 0 2340 06 & 152
standard grade 0 0 22 0 3 0 25
average grade a 0 43 0 1] [+ 43_1“
bisiow avernge grado 0 1] 132 o a5 0 167
impaired [ 0 1519 0 2302 o8 5917
Total private loans 74 081 2703 3716 0 2621 96 83197
‘Gross book value broken down by the 31,12.2018
catogories of internal credit rating systom and | 12month |  lifetime |  impaired impaired POCI POCI
the expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assets assets assels
collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual Total
 Porforming 69 697 2817 0 0 92 0 72 606
high grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 40 784 558 0 0 a5 0 41367
average grade 21 564 1186 '] 0 33 4] 22783
below averaga grade 7389 1073 0 0 14 0 B456
Non-performing 0 0 5958 1 9047 475 16 482
standard_grade o 0 15 0 76 0 91|
average grade o 0 32 0 ) 0 121
belaw average grade 0 0 83 0 43 0 136
impaired 0 [ 5819 1 8839 475 15134
Total private loans 69 687 2817 5959 1 8139 475 88 088

i



Consolidated Finnnclal Stntements 31, December 2019

data in HUF million
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The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at
amortised cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss
categories at the end of the reporting year,

Changes in the gross book value nAz2M9
broken down by the 1Zmonth | lifetime | impaired | impaired | POCH pocl
axpectad credil loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL ansots anpels ansols ansnls
collective | collective | collective | individual | collective | individual |  Total
opening balance 60 807 2817 5959 1 8139 TS 86 088
| puichases during the yoar 20 567 7 104 0 0 0 20 744
m"““*’“ or matued (axcludiog writs- 5500 168 5352 ol 11387 22| aasee
write-offs 0 0 108 0 213 0 108
| changes within the same ECL category 9126 225 2002 a 4857 345 2347
modifications without derecognition 0 0 P 0 A7 2 8
reciassification 1o 12 month ECL category 5381 4084 97 0 0 0 0
reclassHication |0 lfetrme ECL catagory 6158 6812 754 0 0 0 0
reclassification o impaired category 553 | 1747 2300 0 0 0 0
mm;m Ao, 23 22 45 4 4 o 215
closing balance 74 061 2703 1716 0 2621 96 B3 197
Changes in the gross book value 31122010
broken down by the 12 menth | lifetime impained Impalred POCI POCI
expected cradit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assets assets | assels
collective | collective | collective | Individual | collective | individual | Total
| oponing balance 63008 3116 6 741 1] 12140 a7 8s4an
purchases during the year 18778 a3 133 [ o] [ 20 243
m““"m or matured (mecliding wrte- 4829 254 -1 800 ol .4080 o| 11082
| write-offs 0 0 150 0 75 o] 225
chanigos wiltn (he same ECL catogary T 87T 298 218 o] 1108 0| B84
modifications without demcognition 0 0 -1 0 0 o K
reclassification (o 12 month ECL category 5066|462 540 0 0 0 0
raclassification to fifetime ECL catagory 5 464 6 058 505 0 0 0 0
rectassification to impaired category T -1 625 | 2 008 0 0] 0 0
nierenconaty | s ‘F? of e a4 s
closing balance 69 697 2817 5858 1] 913 476| BB 08B
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The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the

loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by category of expected credit loss.

Changes in the gross book valus 3122019
broken down by the 12 month | litetime impalred impaired POCI POCH
axpected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assots assols assols nasels
coliective | collective | collective individual | collective individual Total
opening balance 1101 -382 -2 488 o 4374 -230 -8 575
purchasas during the year -430 ] -78 0 0 0 -512
ﬂ;:;““"*‘“ ormaliced {exsiuding wrie- 343 88 | 820 ol  asor 195 5947
write-offs 0 0 110 0 148 0 258
modifications without derecognition 0 o o 0 0 o0 o
due to change in credit risk -30 816 420 1 442 7 +1 500
due to unwinding of discount 0 1] 108 -1 ~£00 19 “BE8
reciassification 1o 12 month ECL category 443 n2 )] o 0 0 0
recizssification to Ifetime ECL categary 386 -586 180 0 0 0 0
reciassification to imgaited category 10 Ecl -8 0 0 [t 0
changes in ECL measurament modal,
essumptions and inpuls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
other movernents (FX translation,
infecsst ackmalo) 4 -1 -5 ¥ 22 1 2[
closing balance -1 251 -400 -1 647 ] -1 545 46 -4 BES
Changes in the gross book value 31.12.2018
broken down by tha 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired POCI POCI
axpected eredit loss (ECL) calegories ECL ECL assols assuls ussols assols
collective | collactive collective individual | collective | individual Total
opaning balance 893 -353 -2 653 0 -4 945 -85 -5 929
purchases during the year -387 28 -33 0 0 A48
:;:;Wﬂ"m ar matured (excluding write- 226 o3 882 0 1 768 1069
writs-offs o 0 132 1} ane 4] 488
modifications without derecognition 0 o o 1] 1] 0 0
due to change |n cradit nsk -83 AT 407 0 -a27 -130 -1994 |
~ due to unwinding of discount 0 o] -108 0 626 15 <748
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 408 240 158 0 0 o 0
reclassification to fifetime ECL cafagory g -521 146 [§] 0 o f
reclassification to mpaked category 7 654 861 ] 0 o o
changes in ECL measurement mode,
assurnplions and inputs 0 0 0 e o 0 0
mamﬂ? (FX transiation, 43 1 45 0 0 0 12
closing balance -1401 -162 -2 488 o -4 374 -230 B 575
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Taking collateral into account may result in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there is still no need to record impairment. The following tables break down such

overdue receivables by age.
‘Ageing of the gross value of overdue but 31.12.2019
not impalred loana broken down by the
categories of the internal credit rating systom
- <30 days | 31-60 days | §1-90 days 3;;2“ ‘jl":.?' >1yoar | Total
' Performing 579 0 0 0 0 0 579
high grade [} 0 i 0 0 0 (]
slandard grade 579 0 (i 0 o [} 578
average grade 0 a ] ] 0 4] o
balow average grade 0 ] 0 o 1] 1] 1]
Non-performing 0 0 0 0 0 17 17
standand grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
avarage grade 1] o ¢} o) 0 ] 1]
below average grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
spaired 0 0 0 0 0 17 17
Total private loans 579 0 [ 0 0 17 596
Ageing of the gross value of overdus but 31.12.2018
not impaired loans broken down by the
categories of the internal credit rating system
| 30 days | 3160 days | 6190 days ’;;;“ ‘_'1*;:'-‘;“ > 1 yoar Total |
Perfarming 418 0 0 o 0 0 418
high gracia 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 418 0 0 0 0 0 418
averpge grade ] 0 o 1] 1] 1] o
bholow average grade 3] 1] 0 o 1] 1] o
Non-pedorming 0 0 0 0 0 4 a
standard grade 0 i 0 0 0 0 0
overage grade 0 0 0 0 ] 0 a
below average grade V] 0 0 0 ] ] 0
impaired 0 0 0 0 0 4 a
Total private loans 418 [i] I.I_ 1] 0 a 422

a2
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the
end of the reporting year and in the previous year.

Ageing of the gross value of overdue MA22019
loans broken down by the categories
of the intornal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days “;;::“ “ﬁ*j;‘;r’* >tyear | Total
Performing 1424 25 12 0 0 0 1 461
" high grade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
standard grade 1059 4 2 0 0 0 1 066
average grace 00 L 3 o 0 0 n
below average grade 65 13 7 0 0 o 85
Non-perfarming 10 1 6 7 17 2603 2072
standard grade a 0 0 2 0 1 3
average grade a 0 o i o 2 L
" below average grade o 0 0 4 1 B 13
impaired 14 1" -1 &1 170 2592 2 850
Total private loans 1434 36 18 7 m 2603 4333
Ageing of the gross value of overdue 31.12.2018
loans broken down by the catagorles
of the internal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-80 days ’;‘;:f’ "j“;:'”?" >fyear | Total
Performing 1089 20 12 ol 0 0 1121
high grade i i 0 0 (1] 0 [/
standard grada 653 n 2 0 0 0 658 |
average grade 301 [ 3 0 0 0 310
below average grade 138 10 7 1] o 3] 162
Non-performing 12 13 12 59 178 9 945 10 219
standard grade 1 0 0 2 1 1 5
nverage qrade 0 0 0 2 1 2 8
b&h@gﬂimuu grade o 0 0 3 1 | 7
impaired 11 13 12 52 175 9539 10 202
Total private loans 110 33 24 59 178 9045 11 340

The ageing of the expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related
overdue receivable is presented below at the end of the reporting year and in the previous

year.
Ageing of the expected credit loss HA22018
braken down by the categories
of the Internal crodit rating system overdua | <=1 year > 1 year Total
Performing 31 298 1332 1862
high grede 1] 1] 1] 0
standard grade ET -158 851 818
H__‘EI'H'BIHQH grade -10 -84 -388 483
below average grade 10 -58 -292 318
Non-performing 4933 222 A072| 3 22
standard grade 2 3 41 16
average grade 4 -6 <22 -32
below average grade -10 -7 -G <63
impaired 1917 206 993 3116
Total impairment for private loans -1964 521 -2 404 -4 BE9

63
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Loans and advances to customer — other information

Receivables from customers by country or group of countries of origin of the customers are

Ageing of the expected credit lass 3112.2018 ]
broken down by the categories
of the internal credit rating system overdue <= yoar =1 yoar Tatal
Performing 27 262 -1 208 A 487
high grade 0 D 0 0
stundard grode I ETY 47 ETT |
avarage grade 13 -B9 -A36 -538
batow average grade N _J -9 -62 =30 -372
Non-performing -5 230 -266 -1 502 -7 088
atandard grade 2 - -8 A1
average grade 4 -3 -20 -7
befow average grads 5 = ET 47 |
impairod 5219 255 -1 520 7003
Total impairment for private loans 5257 518 -2 800 B 575

presented below.
Nt book value broken down by country 31.12.2019
o  Domastic Russia EU Other Total
meMrmmmﬂnﬁ profil mnd 19028 0 85 34 18 147
| prvateloans 19 028 0 B | 34 18 147
Loans moasurad at fair value through ofher s =
| camprehensiva income : ; Ly i
corporate loans 52 0 o 0 62
private oans = 0 D 0] o] o
Loans measured at amortised cosi 228 380 189 12 868 4 990 246 438
corporats loans 161 855 0 12328 3947 168 130
| private loans 78535 189 541 1043 78008
| Total 247 470 189 12 954 5024 | 265637
Net baok value broken down by country CMaz2008 |
- Domostic Russia EU Othor Tatal
Loans moasured at fair valug though profit and 0 o 0 0 0
losa
private loans ] 0 o 0
Loans measured at fair value through other
| comprahonsive income: ar 9 2 s w
cotporate loans: 8 0 o o B4
_p:iﬂu loang 43 o ¢] 0 43
Lnlnlm!ﬂmﬂ#tmrﬂlldml! 210 804 15 204 2208 19 238 508
carporale laans 132 510 14 625 1 860 0| 148995
_g_ar!u“l_u Iaauns 78 354 578 48 19 78 513
Tatal — 11031 15 204 2208 181 228 835
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Receivables from customers by industry:

Nat book value

’;';:rmh;*ﬂ“'“ through other 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

corporate loans
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 1 |
Manufacturing 8 24
Water supply 0 0
Construction 2 i
Whaolasake and retail trade 19 21
Transport and storage 1 6
Accommodation and lood sevice activities 12 12
Infoimation and communication z 2
Real estate acivities 0 0]
Professional, scientific and technical potivilies [ T
Arts. entertainmant and recreation 0 0

Total 52 B4

Mot book value

Loans measured al amortised cost 3MA2.2018 31.12.2018

corporate loans
Agrculture, forestry and fishing 5 742 4716
Mining and quarrying 35 ]
Manufacturing 26 712 25325
Electricdly, gas, steam and air conditioning supply T 242 T
Water supply 430 873
‘Congtruction 7186 £ Dgg
Whalesale and retall trade 30933 ‘26 895
Tranaport and storage B078 5178
Accommaodation and food service activities 4 521 3489
Information and communication 15 B2B 16972
Financinl and Insurance aclivities ATl 1827
Real estate atlivilies 46 484 36730
Professional, scientific and technical activities 3 504 4 154
Administratlve and suppor service aclivities 2310 2778
Pubthie adminstration and defence, compulsory 2 448 2792
Education 1 581 1 GAG
Human heallh services and social work actvilies 172 1181
Arts, entertainmeant and recrestion 648 273
Other sarvices S48 64
Forelgn organizations, bodies a [¥]

| Total 168 130 148 895
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6.6.5. Plant, property and equipment

The Group measures its plant, property and equipment using the cost model.

Changes to plant, property and equipment:

Bulldings Hudmn Equipments Vehlcles Total
Acquisition cost
m.,:‘m o at 38 1203 909 1002 205 3445
Addition 0 168 369 52 625
Disposal o 0 -4 42 -42
Rusclassification 16 16 0 0 0
g“ln&[%b:hnu as at 27 1470 1214 1042 14 4 028
Adidition 0 197 864 158 1018
Disposal 0 35 -12 88 -151
| Rechssification 0 0 0 0 199 -198
thfam.a%ﬁ P 22 1640 1928 1108 4 694
Buildings Hardware | Equipmenis |  Vehicies Total
Accumulated depreciation .
nﬁm%:"'““ ) o 584 700 847 164 2203
Hngrmar deprecibon for th o I8 78 50 45 240
e m‘“w"""‘f’ fepmcetion o 0 0 0 0
_Ddapual [ ] 3 12 40
Reclassificatian a [¢] D (1] 1]
f,'f,'—.",“;f;h““““ 0 560 776 886 84 2602
R’:frudar depreciation for the 0 92 81 58 228
ﬁmw depreciation 0 o 0 0 0
' Disposal of 30| ] 70 132
_Heclmﬂ'lrxﬂm [+ i] 1] 0 169 169
v g 0 722 848 -862 2430
. Buildings Hardware | Equipmonts | Vohicles Total
Accumulated impairment .
o Hearich s 5 108 0 3 0 16
' Addition o -2 0 0 0 2
Relaase L] ] 0 o 0 a
| Disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassification o o 1] a 0 0
m;?m i 5 110 0 3 0 418
" Addition 0 0 0 i 0 [
Release 0 a1 0 0 0 a1
Disposal ] ] 1] L+ ] a
Reciassification a ] ) (1] 0 i)
Sloslin Balaon a8 r A9 0 3 o 21
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Land Buildings Hardware Equipments Vahicles Total
Mot book value L
01.01.2018 33 601 209 152 " 1036
3112.2018 17 708 499 154 0 1 408
31.12.2019 il 17| 699 1078] 243 0 2237

Plant, property and equipment rose by HUF 830 million in net terms in 2019. The main
reasons for this change are hardware (server and network assets) purchase and
development.

The Bank carried out renovation and development works on the properties in a total amount
of HUF 181 million in 2019,

The contractual commitments for the acquisition of plant, property and equipment amounted
to HUF 314 million at the end of 2019. All of these were completed and capitalised at the
beginning of the following year.

The Bank received HUF 0.6 million in 2019 and HUF 0.5 million in 2018 in the form of
compensation related to damage from third parties.

The Bank does not have any plant, property and equipment that has temporarily been
withdrawn from use.

Gross carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment still in use but completely written
off:

I 31.12.2019 31122018
‘Land g 0
Buildings a7 5
Hardware 606 | 625
Equipments 722 745
Vehigles o] 179
Tolal 1505 | 1648

The market value of assets still in use but completely written off is not significant.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment measured using the cost model is the same
as the net carrying amount since the Bank regularly adjusts the carrying amount to market
value by means of impairment,

6.6.6. Right-of-use assets

Book value of the right-of-use assets by the categories of the underlying assets.

n T 31422019 31.12.2018
Acquisition cost
Bulidings 3477 1]
| Vehicies o 189 0
Tatal J 666 0
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
hﬁl:l:l.ll'l'll.llntbd. depreciation _
e =3 =
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| Vehicles ET [
| Tatal -590 0
31.12.2018 31.12.2018

MNet book value

Bulldings 2618 0

Vehicles 158 0
Total 3078 0

The value changes of the right-of-use assets in 2019

pcxting r_lim?ﬂm Revaluation | Modification | Disposal m’""l pena
Rght-ol-use assels
Bulidings 3451 265 | -2 204 14 3477
| Vehicls 76 163 0 0 0 189
Total 3477 428 -2 -204 14 3 666

“Opening balance sccording to IFRS 18

Modification was necessary, since the Bank moved its Retek strest branch to a new place,
therefore the old lease contract was modified then terminated.

6.6.7. Intangible assets

The Group measures its intangible assets using the cost model,
Changes 1o intangible assets;

S ) Saftware Othor intangibles Total
Acquisition cost : =
Opening balance as at 01.01.2018 6 780 14 6794
Addition 2 358 0 2 358
Separate acquisilion ol o 0
Internally genarated 2 358 0 2358
Business combination 0 o| 0
Dispozal ] 1) a
_ Reclassification 0 0 0
Closing balance as at 31,12.2018 9138 14 9152
Addition 2 da2 0 2482 |
Separate acquistion a 0 1]
Intermatty 2 492 0 2492
Business combinition 0 0 0
| Disposal -1 461 =13 <1474
Reciazsification [ 0 0
| Closing balance as at 31,12.2019 10 169 1 10170

[
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Softwam

Other intangibles

Total

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance as at 01.01.2018

<13

Regular depreciation for tha

| year
Extroomdinary depraciation
for the year

Dsposal

Raclassfication

Closing balance as at 31.12.2018

Regular depreciation for the
__yeat

Extracrdinary depreciation
for the year

Disposal

Reclassification

Closing balance as at 31.12.2019

Othar i:l'll:lﬂﬂiu.-ﬂ‘ﬂ

Total

Accumulated impalrmant

Opening balanee as at 01.01.2018

 Addition

Releasa

Do

Reclassification

[ Closing balance as at 31,12.2018

Addition

Release

Disposal

Roclassification

anmné'ﬂnnﬂ

Closing balance as at 31.12.2019

5

=n}an=nannu=

ﬁa;nﬂnh!cnnrnb

Software

Other Intengibles

Total

Mot book value

01.01.2018

2378

=t

2 380 |

31.12,2018

4 DBY

4 069

| 31.12.2019

5577

58677

In 2019 partly for normal business reasons, partly for legislative changes necessary software
purchases, developments expansions and license renewals caused significant increase in
the intangible assets.

The Bank held the following main intangible assets in its books at the end of 2019

- Development and preparation of instant payment system's implementation totalling HUF
446 million

- Data warehouse developments totalling HUF 443 million.

- Netbank surface renewal and development totalling HUF 285 million.

The contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets amounted to HUF 87
million at the end of 2019. All of these were completed and capitalised at the beginning of the
following year.
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A o

Gross carrying amount of intangible assets still in use but completely written off

3422018 31.12.2018
Softwiare 567 525
Other intangibles Qa 12
Total 567 537

The market value of assets still in use but completely written off is not significant.

6.6.8. Equity investments

Investments of the Group:

..... Paricimiont™).
Equity investmont Main activity 31.12.2018 31.12.2018
Othar invesimanta
Fundaments- Lakd#skasszn '

| Laksalakarskphnztir e ?Hmmunﬂmy mudiation 1.39% 1,30%
Garantiga Hielgarancis Zrt Other financial services 0,13% 0,12%
SW.IFT. Financiai services . 0.01% 0,01%
Visa Ine Fimancial pervices 0,01% 0,01%
Carrying amount of the investments:

| Equity investment Valuation mathod 31.12.2010 31.12.2018
Fundamenta- Lakaskasaza Fair value through Ofhet . &7
Lakdntakorskps netds 20 Comprahensive |ncome
Garntign Hielgarancia 2, | £ "Im?vﬁ: m 10 10
SWIET E:i;ﬂluu lhr::ﬁ: hor 0 o
Visa Inc Fait valug through Profil or Loss 536 361
Total 813 438

The change in the value of Visa Inc. is due to changes in the market price and the exchange

rate.

Dividends received on the equity investments:

2019 2018
Fundamenin. Lakaskassza " am 35
Lakéstakarékpénetar 2it
Visa Inc 0 1
Total 38 36
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6.6.9. Tax assets and liabilities

‘H.a2.2018

31.12.2018

Current tax asseis

Local business tax

Innevation contribution

nio

Corporate income tax

Icl.mmt tax assels total

—_

Deferred tax assats

Tax assols total

Yio/¥wnlo®

—
| O] L |

A1.12.2019

3.12.2018

Currant tax labilities

Local busingssa tax

0

Innovation canttibution

21

Corporate incoma lax

]

[ Current tax liabifities total

21

Deferred tax kabilities

a

Tax Habilities total

21

2lol2lolols

Since the profitable operation is uncertain in the near future, the Group does not show
deferred tax assets in its Statement of Financial Position.

The following table presents temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credils for
which no deferred tax was recognised in the balance sheet.

31.12.2019
in Other
in Profit or loss comprehensive
—_ ingome
Losses carned forward, tax allowance regarding FX rescue &7 216 o
| program
Securities avallable for sale o A1
Temporary diffarences in refalion to discrepancies of HAS and 829 a
IFRS :
Tax base modifying items 0 0
Tatal 68 045 141
31.12.2018 ]
in Crthisr
In Profit or loss comprehonsive
| incomen
Losses camed forward, tax allowance regarding FX rescue 68 541 o
| program
Securities avallable for sale 0 -282
Temporary differences in relation (o discrepancies of HAS and 1658 0
IFRS N -
Tax basa modifying ilems 1147 ]
Tatal 71 346 -2832
The unused amount of tax allowance regarding FX rescue program by expiry:
31122019 | 31122018 | Changes T‘T':i"f“
amaiinl of tax allewance withoul explration 127 237 =110 110
1Tml 127 237 =110 110
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The unused amount of losses carried forward from previous years by expiry:

31122019 | 3122018 | Changes “’;ﬁ“
wmmnﬂmMMHmmmmu 58 874 0 8874 5298
mlﬂiﬁ;mum fram tax base with expiration il o 60 099 50 093 5400
deductible amount from tax base with expiration (il
3 122024 o 11 i 11 i

| deductible amount from tax base with expiration il s 8 0 0
31122023
deductible amount from tex base with explration il 4 d 0 0

| 31.12.2022
mﬁmnl from tax basa wilh expiration till 4 190 4190 0 0
deductible amount from tax base with exgiration 1l
31.12.:2020 4 002 i Im 0 0

Total 67 089 68 303 1214 -110

The unused amount of temporary differences due fo transition to IFRS by expiry:

3422010 | 31122018 | Changes '“ﬂ‘,;]"“"
deductible amount from tax base with expiration til -

31122020 i iz i y
deductible amount from tax base with expiration fill o P 688 110
31.12.2010

Tatal 687 1375 -688 110

6.6.10. Derivatives

Derivatives by type:

41.12.2019
Nomipal value | Nominal value ; Paositive
fassets Niabilities | Netposition | Ll oove | fair value
Exchange traded deals i 1] 0 0 0
OTC deals -
Interest rale swaps 52 367 62 367 0 179 755
interesi raly oplions 3389 -3 389 (] 0 -2
Basis swaps 0 0 (] 0 (]
FX options B 0 0 0 0 0
FX swaps 77 547 -78 016 418 18 466
FX forwards 7428 -7 443 -7 3 a2
Index options a L) 0 o )
Total 140 779 -141 215 436 228 -1.255
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31.12.2018
Nominal value | Nominal value Positive
lissots Nabllitles | VOtPOSItION | e value | tair value
Exchange traded deals o 0 ] (] 0
OTC deals
Intorest rate swaps 91 518 01 518 0 1084 -535
Interest rale options 3 296 3295 0 5 B
Basis swaps 0 1] o 0 0
FX options ] o o 0 0
FX swaps 22 670 22 AT2 188 T -104
FX l'unqmds @ 284 g 341 57 53 -87
Index oplions 0 1] 0 ¥ )
Tatal 126 768 126 627 141 1219 732
Derivative assets broken down by maturity:
31.12.2018 ]
RO v Up to 3months | 3 months to 1 year 1 to 5 years "“m“:"‘ Total
Interest rate swaps 364 T 945 18 399 25 658 62 367
Interest rate options o 0 3 389 a 3388
Basis swaps 0 0 0 0 1}
FX options 1] n 0 0 o
FX swaps 74 3565 3242 0 o 17 597
EX forwards 3 BBS 3 561 0 v 7 426
Index options 0 ] 0 o (]
Total 78 584 14 748 21 788 25 659 140 779
31.12.2018
M Ve Up to 3 months |3 months to 4 year | 1to B years ""m" 5 Total
Intarest rate swaps 50 000 2 880 16 289 19 569 91 618
Interest rate options i} o 3206 0 3 208
| Basis swaps 0 ] (1] 0 (1]
FX optiona 0 o 0 0 o
FX swaps 13961 8709 0 o 22 670
FX% forwards 4119 3950 1 206 0 9 264
Index options 0 ¥ 0 o [
Total 68 080 16 328 23781 18 569 126 768 |
Derivative liabilities broken down by maturity:
322018
Womingl.veioe Upto 3months | 3 months to1year| 1105 years Mare than 5 Total
interest rale swaps 364 7945 18399 25 659 52 367
interest rate options 0 o 3 389 0 3 388
Basis swaps 0 i] o 0 1]
FX options a 0 0 0 i}
FX swaps 74 753 3262 (] 0 78 016
FX forwards 3ars 3 567 0 0 7443
Index options o ] 0 0 (]
Total 78 893 14778 21788 25 659 141 218
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31.12.2018
o v Up to 3 months | 3 months (o 1 year 1to 5 yoamn mm“ 8 Total
Interest mio swaps 50000 2 660 19289 19 5609 91 518
Interest rate options 0 o 3296 0 3296
Basis swags 0 0 ] 0 0
FX options 1] ] o ] U]
FX swaps 13955 8517 0 0 22472
FA forwards 4112 3978 1250 o 9 341
Index options 0 i 0 0 (]
| Total 68 067 15186 23835 | 19568 126 627
6.6.11. Other assets
A1.12.2019 | 31.12.2018
HNet book value
Other linancial assats 1813 1780
Other nan-financial assets 56 101
Total B 1889 1895 |
Composition of other financial assets;
[ 31.12.2018 | 31122018
Gross book value of other financinl assets -
Business support receivables Hg 147
Receivables from the state- 40 14
Recaivables lrom deferred payments ] 53
Plastic cards selllemants 144 324
Other sottlements a2 49
Advances. 108 4 |
Initial kair value difference of FGS loans 514 487
Prepaid expanses snd sccried Income 788 727
Total 1827 1842
31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018
| Impalrment on other financial assets
Business suppon recenvables -5 <36
Recaivabies from the stale 0 0
Recaivables from dafermad payments o o
Plastic cards selliements & a
Ofher settlements -4 11
Advances 0 o
Initia! fair value difference of FGS loans a 0
Propaid expanses and pcorued Income i 0
Total 14 58
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Composition of other non-financial assets:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Othor non-financial assets
Raw materials and inventary 43 a8
Collaterals takan into possassion o u
__ Receivabies on operating taxes 0| 10
Other non-financlal assats L 3 1
Total 56 1'IIL

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans, very prababie, therefore they were reclassified into the held-for-sale category. The
negotiations did not close with the potential buyer till the end of 2019, therefore the sale did
not oceur. The Bank's management is still committed to the sale,

6.6.12. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Composition of assets held for sale:

31.12.2019 31.42.2018 {
Land and buikiings 13| 13
Tonl 13 13|
Changes to assets held for sale:
_ S
Opening balance as at 01,01,2018 667 557
Reclassification into Held for sale category BET 557
Sale 2 0 0
Closing balance as at 31.12.2018 13 13
ﬂuclnu'rl‘ﬁ:mtun into Hald for sale calegory 0 0
Sale 0 o
Closing balance as at 31.12.2018 13 13

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans, very probable, therefore they were reclassified into the held-for-sale category. The
negotiations did not close with the potential buyer till the end of 2019, therefore the sale did
not occur. The Bank’s management is still committed to the sale.

6.6.13. Liabilities to credit institutions

Liabilities to credit institutions are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost.
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Balances of liabilities to credit institutions:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Liabilities due to central banks 16 202 16 586
Up to 1 yoar 130 114
1 o b years 1] 0
Mare (han 5 years 16162 | 16471
Liabilities due to other credit institutions 36 405 18 353
Up to 1 year 11111 34 |
1105 yoars 1 141 10 341
More than 5 years 6153 7378
| Total 52 697 34938

6.6.14. Liabilities to customers

Liabilities to customers are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

Balances of liabilities to customers:

31.12.2019 3.12.2018

 Liahilities due to corporate customers 211681 162 528
“Upto 1 year 211 624 174 942 |
1to6years 57 7586
Mare (han 5 years — o b
Liabilities due to private customers. 90 204 82 781
Up to 1 yoar } 80 072 82 388
1B years 132 403
More than & years. b o
Total 301 085 265 319

6.6.15. Debt securities in issue

Issued bonds are recorded initially at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised

cost
Liabilities due to issued bonds:
3A2.2019% | 31122018
Dbt securities in issus
Up to 1 year 1310 2829
1 ta § years o 1348 |
Mone than & years 0 0
Total 1310 4177
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Information on issued bonds:

=
Bond Startdate | Maturitydate | hominal | Currancy | pere gk
VICTORIA & 2010.02.01 2020.02 01 261 EUR 40,00% 263
VICTORIA 6 2010,05.03 2020.05.01 3z7| EUR 25 00% 406
VICTORIA 7 2010.07.01 2020.07.01 275 EUR 35,00% 167
VICTORIA 8 2010.10 01 2020.10.01 132| EUR 35,000 174 |
Total 1310

* Interest rates relate to the whole term of the bonds, they are not annual interest rates.

Bond Startdate | Maturlty date | NOMINRl g prgngy | A0St | B .12.2010
VICTORIA 2 20090401  2019.04.01 634| EUR 50,00% 941
VICTORIA 3 2008.07.01| 20180701 452| EUR 30,00% 580
VICTORIA 4 20001201  2019.1202 965 EUR 40,00% 1308
VICTORIA & 20100201 20200201 265 | EUR 40,00% 37
VICTORIA 6 201006.03|  2020.0501 3728 | EUR 25,00% 387
VICTORIA 7 20100701  202007.01 a23| EUR 35,00% 46
VICTORIA 8 20101001  2020.10.01 140 EUR 35,00% 178
Total Rl

"+ Interest rates relate to the whole term of the bonds, they are not annual Interest rales,

The Bank paid back the completely the Victoria bonds which matured in 2019,

The change in the value of issued bonds is due to changes in the exchange rate and the

buying back.

The loss on buying back own bonds was HUF 2 million in 2019, HUF 5 million in 2018.

6.6.16. Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated debt is recorded initially at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised

cost,
Composition of subordinated debt;
31122010 | 31.12.2018 |
Bubm:dlnltud debit
Upto 1 year 1] 1]
1 to § yoars 0 0
More than § years 9313 9 062
Total 9 313 9062
Information on the individual loans:
B Nominal
Lender Start date “:' .‘;’.ﬂ" amount in | Currency Interest rate E"";': ::";::; ot
currency - o
Ehumank Europe AG 20150727 | 2025.07.27 | 15000 000 EuR IM EURIBOR + 3,63% 4 B86
| Sbarbank Europe AG 20%6.04.11| 2027.0400 | 13000000| EUR 3M ELRIBOR + 363% 4327
Total %313
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Nominal
Maturity Book value as at
Lender Start date date urm::lﬂ :rn Currency Interest rato 31.12.2018
Sbarbank Europe AG 20150727| 20260727 15000000 EUR | 3M EURIBOR + 3,63% 4 881
Eﬂ@?ﬂk Europe AG 2015_0! 11 20240411 | 13 000 0OD Eur am EUR‘H@H* 3.63% 4 211
Total 9062

6.6.17. Provisions

Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments related to off-balance sheet
lending

As part of its universal banking activity and in addition to opening credit lines the Bank also
offers its customers financial guarantees as well as letter of credit facilities. Financial
guarantees means furnishing bank guarantees for various purpases, while letters of credit
satisfy the needs of a special group of customers, so they are small in number but stable.

Future and contingent liabillties 31.12.2018 | 31.12.2018
' creditlines 56918 45208
provisions for cradit lines -102 -168
financial guarantees 29721 34 520
provisions for financial ﬂ_l_tl-_rﬂ._nllt_i 228 282
_lelterofoedts woar|  saory
pMIuinnl far ktler of cradils 2 28 |
Total ' 100 352 113321

The tables below present off-balance sheet maximum credit nisk exposures broken down

according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss categories
at the end of the reporting year.
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Oif-balance sheet exposures broken down by 31.12.2019
the internal cradit rating system categories and | 12 month | IHetime impalrod Iimpaired
the categories of expected crodit loss (ECL) ECL ECL assols assets
collective | collective collective individuai Total
crodil lines 65 406 1460 1 49 56 916
Performing 55 406 1460 0 o| 56888
high grade . 14 658 4 o 0 14 662
standard grade 27 265 425 [+] 0 27 680
average grade 12374 810 o 0 13 284
beiow. average grade 1118 121 1] 0 1240
impaired 0 0 1] 0 [
Non-parforming 0 0 1 49 60
standard grade 0 0 0 0 1]
average grade 1] ] 0 1] 0
balow avarage grade o 0 1] 0 a
impaired 0 0 1 49 50
financial guarantees 28 228 1227 0 266 20714
Perlorming 28 248 1227 o [i] 29 455
high grade 13318 o [ 0 13318
standand grade 9048 506 (1] 0 9 B4d
sverage grade 5816 619 0 0 6435
below average grade 6 12 0 0 58
Non-perfosming 0 0 0 266 266
standand grade 0 ] ﬂ_ﬁ o i}
average grade 0 o 1] 4] 1]
impaired 0 (1] o 268 266
letier of credits 14 047 '] 0 0 14 047
Parfarming 14 047 0 ] 0 14 047
standard grade 14 047 0 o 0 14047
below average grade o o 1] 0 ]
Nan-perarming 0 0 0 1] 0
standard grade 0 0 0 0 0
average grade 1] 1] 1] 0 /]
Total a7 681 2 687 1 35 100 684
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Off-balance sheet exposures broken down by 31.12.2018
the internal credit rating systom categodies and | 12 month | lifetime |  Impaired impairad
the categiories of expected credit loss (ECL) ECL ECL assols assets
collective | collective | colloctive Individunl Tatal
crodit fines 44128 s0| 3 485| 45208
Pedamiing 44128 | 581 0 o 44708
high grade 2 868 15 0 0 2913
standard grade 25 597 5 0 0 25 602
average grade 13805 396 0 i 14 301
balow average grade 1758 138 0 a 1893
impaired 0 0 0 0 0
Non-perfarming o L ] 3 485 407
standard grade 0| ] 0 0 0
avernge grade 0| ] 0 0| 0
below average grade o a - 1] 0 8
impaied 0 0| 3 485 488
financial guarantoes 33097 | 50 0 539| 34526
Perfarming 33920 50 0 o] aarm
high grade 8 158 0 0 0 & 158
stanoard grade. 20650 0 0 0 20 650
average grade ag73| 0| 0 0 4973
below average grade 148 50 0 0 188
Non-parfarming (] 0 0 539 547
| standard grade 0 0 0 0 0
avarage grada | 8 1] 0 1] B
ampained 2 0 0| 539 541
fettor of crodits 3077 0 0 0| 3077
~ Performing 077 0 0| o  aom
standard grade 33178 0 0 0 33778 |
bealow averagn grada 3z 1] 0 0 o2
Non-perorming 0 0 0 0| 0
 standard grade 0 0 0 0 0
average grade o 0 o 0 o
Towl (LR S| toaa| viaos

The following tabies reveal the reporting-year changes in off-balance sheet exposures
relating to lending, broken down by category of expected credit loss at the end of the
reporting year to credit lines, financial guarantees and letters of credit.

The main reason for the drop in credit lines was the use of such facilities, and only a smaller
portion was credit lines expired without being used.
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Changes in the off-balance sheel exposures 31122019

broken down by the 12 month lifetime Impalred impaired

axpocted crodit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL asgets assots

credit lines collective | collective colisctive individual Total

opening balance 44120 580 3 4f5 45 208
now oxposuras during the year 14 322 71 ] 1] 14 293
derecognised as matured 0 -195 2 456 655
derecognised as used -2 324 =36 0 -2 360

" reciassification between collective and 0 6 ) 0 0

individual categories
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 7740 -T 740 0 0 o
reclassification to fifetme ECL category a7s8 8759 0 -1 0
reclassification 1o impaired calegony -23 a ] 23 0
other mavemants (FX translation, rounding) 321 1 0 0 332

closing balance 55 406 1480 1 a8 56 816

Changes in the off-balance sheel exposures d1.12.2018

broken down by the 12month | lfetime | impaired | impaired

expocted credil loss [ECL) categories ECL ECL assols ansols

credit lines collective | collective | collective | Individual |  Total

opening balance 74004 | 452 B 4 75 368
naw sxposures during the year 6155 20 0 a 6175
defecognised as malured -2 20 43 1] 0 -2 244
derecognised as used -35 245 -163 48 114  -35342
mw caRecthn vl 0 0 129 120 0

_rqphuﬁmm to 12 month ECL category 423 -399 -24 o o

reclassification lo Hiebme ECL catagory “FE2 767 <5 o o
reclassification to impaired category -Ap2 A5 202 245 IV
other movements (FX translation, rounding) 1256 1 A -T 1248 |

closing balance 44128 590 3 485 45 206

Due to one financial guarantee claiming the Bank lent an overdraft with an amount HUF 104
million in 2019. The deal is reported in Loans and advances to customers in the balance

sheet.

Changes in the ofi-balance sheet exposures 31.12.2019 ]

broken down by the 12 month | |ifetime impalred impaired

aupected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assots assols

E.".’“ﬂ" guarantess collective | collective collective individual Total

‘opening balance 33 937 50 0 639 34 526
new exposures durlng the year o 0 i (3] 0
derecognised as matured 4 682 ~405 a =280 -5 267
derecognised as used 104 o 0 a 104
reclassification betwsen collective and G ﬁ' b 0 a
individual categories
reclassification to 12 month ECL category A82 482 0 0 0
m::lm_lﬁ_nilnn to lifetima ECL calagory -1 lﬁ# 1 864 o 1] 1_:|_
reclassification to impaired category 0 1] ] 0 0
other movemants (FX transiation, rounding) 51 0 ] 7 358

closing balance 28 228 1227 1] 3“ 29721
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Changes In the off-balance shoet exposures 31.12.2018
broken down by the 12month | lifetime Impaired impaired
expected credil loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assets assels
financial guarantoes collective | collective olleative Inetlvidual Total
opening balance 28 097 0 ] ] 28 087
ninw exposures dunng the year 16 747 3 | =35 16 714
darecognised as matured 10815 0 o 0 10 B15
dorecognised an used 0 0 0 [} 0
reclassification between collechive: and 0 0 5 5 ﬂ'_
 Individual
reclassification to 12 month ECL category 18] 19 [ 0 [}
roclassification 1o ifetme ECL category 66 66 o 0 0
reclassification o smpained category STT 1] A 670 -1
ﬂﬁmrmmmm_ﬁ _t[nn!lminn. nestiriing) - 5% E!I a -1 BN
closing balance 13937 50 | 0 539 34 625
Changes In tho off-balance sheot oxposures 31.12.2018
broken down by the 12 manth lifetime impairod impalrod
oxpected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assols
latter of crodits colipctive | collective collectivi individual Tgul
Opening balance __Saomr) 0 0 0 34077
| new exposures during the year 136 0 0 - 0 136
| derecognised as matured 21 114 0 0 0 21114
dorocognied as used a 0 o] 0 0
reciassification between collective and 5 3 p 3 %
| indlvidual categories : 2
recipasification to 12 month ECL category ] ] i (1] 1]
reclassification ta lfetime ECL categary 0 ) 0 0 0
reclass fication to impaired catogory 0 D 0 0 0
other movamants {FX franslabon, founding) 348 0 D o 948
closing balance 14 047 0 0 0 14 047
Changes in the off-balance sheet axposures MN1z2018
broken down by the 1Zmonth | lifotime impaired impadrad
sxpected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assels assels
Intter of crodits collective | collective eollaetive individual Total
opening balance 31 308 0 o 0 31 308
new exposures dunng the year 3108 -3 ] 7] 3106
derecognised ss matured 483 0 0 o 453
derecognisad as used -1 082 [ 0 [ -1 062
reclassification batween collecive and 0 o 0 o 0
inclividunl valegorias
reclassification to 12 month ECL categary 1) (1] o a 0
mclassification to lifetime ECL calagory 0 0 ] o o0
rslassification o impaired category 0 0 0 0 0
other mavements (FX transtation, munding) 1178 3 a 1] 1 E
closing balance 34 077 0 0 0 34 077
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The following tables show the provisions for off-balance sheet exposures related to lending,

broken down according to the Bank's intemal credit rating system and the expected credit

loss categories.

Provisions for off-balance sheol

broken down by

the internal credit rating system categories and
the categories of expected credil loss (ECL)

12 month
ECL
collective

lifatimo
ECL
callsctiva

M.az22019

impaired
aszets
collective

impaired
‘assels
Individual

Total

credit lines

12

102

102
10

Parforming
high arade
standard grade
avarage grade
below average grada
Impaired
Non-parfarming
standand grada
average grade
balow avarage grade
impained
 fimancial guarantess
" Parforming
high grade
standand grade
average grade
hielow average grade
Mon-peroming
standard grade
avemge grade
impaired
| letter of credits
Parfarming
standand grade
below average grade
Non-parfamming
Wﬂdﬁ
average grada
Contingent Habilities and commitments total

Blololololalolalgls

1

—_— =

Ylolololoiolo|loioiclalclov|luonnolcolololo|=is

49

olalelalulnlulalalelalald|2le|DlYlclclalalale|luik|h|5|8]8

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂaﬂﬂgﬂﬂbﬂﬂ:ﬂﬂ'ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

nnnjnmmuaungzn!ﬂ:ﬁm
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8
3
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broken down by

| Pravisions lor off-balance shoet

the internal credit rating system categories and
the categories of expectoed credit loss (ECL)

12 manth
ECL
collective

lifetime

g

3.42.2018
impaired

{

impaired
assots
Indhflﬁugl__ Total

eredit lines

2

168

Parfomming

g

110

high grm:la_

slandard grade

average grade

I_':ilgwaumuw

impaired

Mon-paaming

Ea_rh_mrd grade

average grade

balow avarnge grade

mpaned

financial guarantees

Pertarming

Egacnﬂ,a|eunauﬂ

high gride

oloioalo

E i

=]

average grade

ﬂnﬁhgigm[jggi_ngnguj:giu

=

_ impaked

| lntter of eredits

2
y R

Caontingent Habilitles and commitments total

28
2
5
0
0
0

ﬁnaal.nﬂﬂgunnnugﬂu:gannnnaniaﬁu

'I-lﬂﬂﬂ-l:lﬂlnﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬁ—lﬁbndzﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂnﬂu—ﬁﬂhw-g

ﬂﬁjﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁlﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂnﬂﬂ

Eoooio oo 9

ar 488

The following tables show the reporting-year changes in provisions for off-balance sheet
exposures related to lending, broken down according to the Bank’s internal credit rating
system and the expecled credil loss calegories. In light of the low interest rates, the impact of
discounting the provisions for long-term transactions Is negligible and so this is not presented
on a separate row and is not reclassified to interest expenses.
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Changes in tho provisions
broken down by the expected
credit loss (ECL) catefories
credit lines

ECL
collective

31.12.2019
impaired
assets
collective

impaired

apaning balance

new exposyres during the year

derecognised &8 matunad

<12

due to change in credit rsk

17

due to unwinding of discount

recinssification to 12 month ECL categany

rectassification 1o lifetime ECL category

reciassification to impaired categary

changes in ECL measurament model,
assumptions and inpuls

other movemenis (FX translation,
interest accruals)

closing balance

12

el o |l o oocloc|looo|o|o

Changes In the provisions
broken down by the expected
credit loss (ECL) categories
cradit lines

lifetime
ECL
collective

31.12.2018
impairad
nasuls
collective

impairad

individual

Tatal

opening balance

166

new expasures during the year

173

darecognised as matured

41

dua to change in credi risk

due to unwinding of discount

off|~njw

reclassification to 12 month ECL categary

a2

reclassification (o fifetime ECL category

reciassification (o impaired category

changes in ECL measurement model,
assumptions and inputs

o | elsldlelsikina

= nannmaﬂn

other movemants (FX transiation,
interes! accrunis)

(- R - - A - ==

closing balance

108

al o | o aa

168

Changes In the provisions
broken dawn by the expected
credit loss (ECL) categories
financial guaranioes

i

e
EGCL
collective

MA2.2019
impaired
nasots
collective

impaired
assols
individual

|

 opening balance
naw exposures during the yaar

derscognised as maluréd

=]

due to change in crodit risk

47

due to unwinding of dscount

mctassification 1o 12 month ECL calegory

meclassification to lifetime ECL calegory

reclassification 1o impaired category

changes in EGL measurement mode,
assumplions and inputs

o eoeooio o e

o |eloo|o

other movements (FX translation,
interest aceruats)

...
ol olooloelallalala

Tlminn batlance

g
fole andniﬁ'ﬁﬁaFg

i
L

=2 =]

179




Congsolidated Financial Stmtements 31, December 2019
Sberbank Hunpary 1.1d.

data in HUF million

Changes In the provisions 31.12.2018
broken down by the expectad 12 month | lifetime impaired lrmpaired
credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assals assots
financlal guarantoos collective | collective | collective Individual Total
| opening balance N 1 0 a3 7
| Mew exposures dunng the year 25 o 0 0 25
derscognised as maturad -4 Li] o 0 -4
due to change in credit risk 19 [} ] 181 200
due to unwinding of discoun 1L 0 i} o o a
reclassification 1o 12 month ECL category 0 0 0 0 [
reclasalfication lo Hetime ECL category (1] 0 d o Q
reclassification I.n'il'ﬂ:nlmd calegory- vl 0 0 'y o
changes in ECL measuremant mode, 0 P 0 0 0
_.!?;",!EM!” :
other movements (FX ranslation, 1 0 0 A o
__intergs| accruaks) )
closing balance T0 1 Q 2 2'._!_1_
| Changes In the provisions 31.12.2018
broken down by the expected 12 month | lifetime impaired impaired
credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assets assots
lotter of credits collective | collective | collective individual Total
opening balance £l 0 0 0 26
new exposures during the year 1 0 0 0 1
derecognised as maturad | -3 0 (i} a -3
due to change in credi risk 24 0 0 0 24
m to urwanding of discount o 0 7] 0 )
| tectassification to 12 month ECL calegosy a a o 0 o
rectassification to lifetime ECL category 0 0 0 0 o
 mclassification to impaired category 0 0 0 0 0
ehanges in EGL measursmeant model, o 0 0 o 0
| assumphions and inputs
| B o oo o
closing balance 2 o o o 2
‘Changes in the provisions 31.12.2018
broken down by ihe expected 12month | lifetime | Impaired |  impairod
‘credit loss {ECL) catogories ECL ECL assols assols
lotter of credits collective | collective |  collective individumi Total
nmlng_huhm 23 0 L] 1] 23
new exposures during the year 12 7 0 1] 19
arecognised as malured -T o 1] 0 -F
due o change in cradil risk - 7 0 0 4
dud 10 unwinding of discount = i 0 0 0 /]
reclassification 1o 12 month ECL category 0 [ 0 0 0
mclassification o [fetime ECL catagory 0 1] [i] 4] ]
reclassification o Impaired l:ﬂ*l:ﬂwr i o D o a
- changes in ECL measurement moded, o a o i 0
essumptions and inpuls :
other movements (FX iranslation, 1 1] 0 1] 1
| interes! accruals) - U
closing balance 28 o 0 o 28 |




Consolidated Financial Sttements 31, December 2009

Sherbank Hung‘a;r).r___l.td.

data in HUF million

The following tables reveal the off-balance sheet exposures related to lending broken down

by geographical region.

Off-balance sheet exposures by 31.12.2018

goographical region Damaestic Russia EU Othar Total

T credi lines 53 584 4 3308 20| 56916
financal guarantsss 26 046 2 259 1410 B 26721 |
letter af credils 14 047 0 o ] 14 047

Total 93 677 2 263 4718 26| 100684

 Off-balance sheet exposures by 3M.12.2018

goographical region Domastic Russia EU Other Total
credit lines 38 304 ' 2 4 626 1984 45 206
financial guaraniges 22 558 11 652 316 o 34 528
letler of credits 34077 0 0 0| 34077

Total 95 029 11654 5142 1984 113 BOG

The following tables show the off-balance sheet exposures related to lending broken down

by division.
Of-balance sheel exposures broken down 31.12.2019
by industry financial

credit lines: | guarantees I:m;! Total
Agricullure, forestry and fishing 1 626 88 0 1714
Mining and quarrying 1 0 0 1
| Manufacturing B 445 770 0 8215
Electricty, gas. steam and air conditioning supply 1277 1454 0 273
Water supply 47 21 0 68
Construction 8610 20121 [ 28 740
Wholesale and retail trade 12 896 1456 14 DAT 28 369
Transport and siorage 5344 L - o & _alm'
 Accommaodation and food service activities 1000 1 o 1001
Information and communication 1158 7 0 1229
Financial and insurance actvities 1 118 3788 0 4 904
Real estate activities 9403 21 [ G424
Professional, scientific and technical activilies 2679 1350 0 4029 |
Adminisizative and support service activities 798 472 1] 121
Public admintstration and defence, compulsory 100 0 0 100
Education - 48 o 0o a8
Human health services and social work activities 242 0 0 242
 Arts, entertainment and recreation 58 4 i 50
Other Sorvices 95 [ 0 95
Foreign organizalions 0 g 0 6
Individuals 1963 a5 0 2 o
Total 56 916 29 721 14 047 100 684
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‘Off-balance sheet exposures broken down 31.12.2018

by Industry finaneial

. erudit lines | guaraniees 'm;' Total
Agticulture, forestry and fishing 1183 31 0 1214
Mining and guarrying ki 1] 0 S an
Manufacturing 8 74D 841 0 o 381
Electricily, gas, steam and air conditioning supply 1121 1 028 0 2 147
e e o Y S, B i = s
Construction 6131] 17578 0| 23709
Wholesala and refail irade 8 247 1281 34 077 43705
Transport and stosage & 161 8 0 6217
Accommodation and feod service ctivies 453 1 0 454
Information and communication 2810 a7 0 2837
Financial snd insurance aclivities 1539 3963 0] 5502
Feal estate activities 2081 0 0 2081
Professianal, scienlific and technical activilies 2793 9612 0 12 408
Administrative and support service activites 836 149 o]  @ss
Public: sdministration and I:InFam:'l'l: compulsary 702 | | 0 02
Education 57 0| 0 57
| Human health services and social work aclivities 67| o| 167
Arts, enterainment and recreation 55 4 [ 59
| Other sarvices 69 0 0 69
Individuals 2087 36 a| zom
Total 45 206 34 526 34077 113809 |
Other provisions

The Bank records other provisions for expected llabilities stemming from legal and other
contractual obligations if it has a present obligation from a past event making it probable that

it will have to make a payment and the amount of said payment can be quantified,

Composition of other provisions:
— 122019 | 31122018 |
SNsE peovisioi e | i
Proviaions for pending legal issues L =
Provisions for plastic card liabilities - =
Provisions for other iiabililies \ 742 14

Provisions for other expected liabilities includes a provision in amount of HUF 708 million
allocated for the repurchase liability of the Bank relating to the sold non-performing private
mortgage loans.

Legal disputes are initiated against the Bank as defendant mainly in the ordinary course of
business. The maximum amount of the expected financial liability from these disputes was
HUF 271 million at the end of 2019 and HUF 521 million one year earlier. In case of ongoing
legal disputes the provision is calculated based on the best available estimate of the amount
of potential financial losses.
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Changes in other provisions:

Provisions for Provisions for
Provisions for
pondiglegal | et | Ciiriomies | T
Opening balance as at
31.12.2018 233 4 34 261
Adlocation 2?: 22 708 757
Release 100 -1 o -111
| Usa 0 7 0 -7
Closing balance as al
31.12.2019 160 B T42 900
Provisions for Provisions for
: Provisions for
pending logal plastic card Total
issups liabilities S e
ing balance as at
31.12.2017 ar 34 264
Aliocation aa 9 0 T |
Ralease 41 0 -42
L -4 -7 0 A
Closing balance as al
31.12.2018 s i i
6.6.18. Other liabilities
M.12.2018 31.12.2018
Mot book valua
Other financial llabilites 7 094 5621
Other non-financial kabiities Ta4 669
Total 8 638 6290
Composition of other financial liabilities:
B 31.12.2018 | 31.12.2018
Other financial Habilities
Business support payables 620 581
Payablas to the state A34 347
Flastic cards setflements 0 4
Other seitiements. 1286 2 449
Advances - 0 a
Initial fafr value difference of FGS loans 634 526
Lease labilties socording to [FRS 16 3303
Lease liabilties according 10 IAS 17 EY
Acorved expanses and deferied incoma 1 637 1683
Total 7 894 5621
Composition of other non-financial liabilities:
M.12:2019 322018
Other non-financial labilities
__ﬂ-pcl‘ailhg tax payables 615 557
Cither non-financial kabilibes 129 112
Total Ta4 (1:1:)
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6.6.19. Share capital

The Bank's share capital only comprises "A" ordinary shares. The shares in the “A” series
are printed, registered ordinary shares that come with voting rights. All "A" shares provide
one vote at the Bank's general meeting.

Ownership structure and breakdown of shares:

~ aa22019 | 322018 |

i pleces | amount | pieces. | amount
Sberbank Europe AG : ]
AT 1010 Wien Schwarzenbergpiatz 3. TRDR| J06) Wemel AN
Tiirkiye Halk Bankasi
TU 06240 Ankars Eskisehir Yol 2 Cadde No 400 40 400 40
B3, Btigltasd i :
Total = =. | dwam| 3vav| arz] AT

In 2018 Sberbank Europe AG decided to raise capital again, increasing the Bank's share
capital by another HUF 100 000. The capital increase was registered by the Court of
Registration on 4 December 2018

There were no significant direct issue costs in connection with the share issues in 2018.

In 2019 there was no change in the Bank's share capital.

6.6.20. Capital reserve

The capital reserve contains the contributions made by owners in relation to the capital
increases.

Following the capital increases the capital reserve rose by HUF 2 916 million in 2018.
In 2019 there was no change in the capital reserve,

6.6.21. Other reserves

The other reserve only contains the general reserve.

Act CCXXXVII of 2013 on Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises prescribes that the
Bank must transfer 10% of its reporting-year profil after tax from retained earnings into the
general reserve. The general reserve may only be used to cover losses derived from
operations. No dividends may be paid from the general reserve.
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6.7 Notes to the Income statement

6.7.1. Interestincome

Details of interest income:

2019 2018
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest income caleulated using effective interest method
Gash and cash equivalents 183 156
Recevables from credit inatilutions AG4 532
Loans and advances o customars 5938 @322
Securities o 580 728
Other '] o
Interest income caiculated using effective interest mathod lotal 11 165 10738
interes| income calculated using other than effectve interest =
" Loans and advances to customers 217 0
Securilies 312 853
Derivatives - . 222 348
Interest income calculated using other than effectve inlerest 751 i 004
methad total i i
Total 1916 11738

The amount of government grant received in the interest of preferential deposit facilities is
presented under ‘Receivables from credit institutions’.

Interest income rose by HUF 177 million (+1,5%) in 2019 owing to the robust growth in
lending activity, The interest income on loans disbursed to customers rose by HUF 833
million (+8,8%), while the net interest income on securities and derivative transactions fell by
HUF 615 million.

This all corroborates the Bank's more efficient asset management strategy, which is primarily
aimed at raising net interest income.

6.7.2. Interest expenses

Details of interest expenses:

2019 2018
Interast payable and similar oxpansoes
Interest expense calculated using effective interest method
Liabilities to cred|t institutions i -804 657
Liabilities to customers &1 780
Debt securities in issue -97 176
Subordinated liabilties -302 -299
Lease |labilillies according o IFRS 16 -118
Lease liabilities according o IAS 17 B
 Others 0 o
Interest expense calculated using effective interest methed total -1993 -1 087
Interast expanse caloulated using olher than affective interest
method
Derivatives 44 360
“intetest expense calculated using ather than effective interes! 7 “' a0
methad total
Total -2 437 -2 357
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In 2019 the amount of interest expenses rose by HUF 80 million (+3,4%). The Interest
expense on issued securities fell by HUF 79 million. The reason of this is the maturity of
Victoria 2, Victoria 3 and Victoria 4 issued bonds, which caused less interest expense. This
decrease was compensated by the increase of liabilities to credit institutions, which rose by
HUF 107 compared to last year. The interest on liabilities to customers decreased compared
to last year, due to the increasing weight of demand deposits and the decreasing weight of
term deposits.

6.7.3. Net provision charge for loan impairment

Changes in loan loss allowance are detalled in Sections 6.6.1-6.6.4.

6.7.4. Fee and commission income

2018 2018

Feo and commission incoma '
MHE business and guaranteos 871 "y
Cash and seitlements : 4315 414
 Transactions with securities 7 B
Plastic cards operations 1 085 925
~_ Operations with foreign currencies 2515 2214
_“q-ggrp._“ e B 2 :ﬂi
Total o 02068 B 346

Non-recurring fees (disbursement commissions and contracting fees) related to lending
activity are taken into account during the effective interest calculation and thus recognised
under interest income. Lending business and guarantees issued row contains fees related to
current accounts, overdrafts, issued guarantee fees and handling fees of government
subsidies.

The primary reason for the increase in fee and commission income related to payment
services is the growth in the payment services used by customers

In 2019 commission income Increased by HUF 860 million (+10%) mainly thanks to the
growth in income from operations with foreign currencies (HUF 301 million), but there was
significant rise also in case of plastic card operations and payment services. Fee income
from lending business rose by 18%, mainly due to the income from Baby loans.

The 58% increase in the number of active customers to 70 170 (+3 867 customers)
contributed to all this.
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6.7.5. Fee and commission expense

201% 21313

Foe and commission expense o
:m business and guaraniees 409 426
Cash and sattlemants -136 131
Transactions with securities 0 i
Plastic cards operations -800 -GAA
Operations with foreign currencies 18 15
Others -69 48
Total 4422 1208

Non-recurring fees (agent commissions, appraisal and notary fees) related to lending activity
are taken into account during the effective interest calculation and thus recognised under
interest income. Lending business and guarantees received row contains brokerage fees
related to overdraft loans, paid guarantee fees and other administrative fees.

Commission expenses rose by HUF 214 million (+18%) owing to the increase in items
related to lending and plastic card operations,

6.7.6. Net trading income

08 2018
Net trading income -
Operations with foreign currencies 617 120
Derivatives 735 1631 |
Revaluation of loans 612 0
Total 394 1851

In the case of the monetary policy HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNB, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in profit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion.

The revaluation of loans row contains the fair value change of Baby loans. For the fair value
calculation of Baby loans the Bank uses inputs at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

6.7.7. Net gain or loss on securities

2019 2018

Net gain or loss on securities =
Trading debt securities 1 A
Debt securities designated at fair value through profit or loss -303 -G48
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 45 40
Debt securities at amonised cost -26 -12
Dividand incoms 35 a5
Equily nstruments 155 AT
By back of own bonds 2] 5

Total i 95 624
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The Bank reached an income from securities higher by 85%, HUF 529 million in 2019 than
last year. The net gain or loss on equity instruments row shows a significant increase owing
to the revaluation of VISA Inc shares. The debt securities designated al fair value through
profit or loss matured in the middle of 2019,

6.7.8. Changes in allowances for other risks

Changes in reserves for other risks are detailed in Section 66,17,

6.7.9. Other operating income

B o [ 2019 2018
‘Other operating Income ) T
 Saleollans 2458 133
 Sale of tengibde and intangibie assels 238 L
Incom from recharged items 23 3
Administration and sucooss fees I 245 127
__ Others - | 166 14
Total 2655 784

In 2019 the intensive activity of selling receivables continued, during which the Bank
successfully sold the significant part of non-performing loans. Section 6.9.17 Realised profit
from sale of loans contains detailed information.

The Sale of tangible and intangible assets row contains the profit from selling the former
head quarter (HUF 499 million) in 2018, In contrast, in 2019 the result on the disposal of not-
in-use software can be found on this row.

The Administration and success fees row conlains fees received for the further
administration of the previously sold non-performing loans

The increase on Others row is due to a compensation for an early repaid loan.
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6.7.10. Other operating expenses

| 2018 2018
_I_D'I‘.l'lnr mmﬁng BXpENSEs

Materials and supplies -4 274 4 769
Training costs -50 -84
l’.':lllar_mmmra!j!u BXPAnNses 2229 42 020
Advertising and marketing cosls 877 508
Consulting and assurance services 477 -B54
Telacommunicalion expenses M -332

L Repair and maintenance costs -4 24 A114
Personnel expanses 5168 5704
Wages and salanes - -4 534 -4 493

Othar employee berefits 264 278

Socinl Security costs -1 058 060
Changes in acerued expense on unused vacations 22 27
Depreciation and amostization ' -1 537 917
pmnﬂ:lb;l‘ﬁi' tangible assels 228 249
Amartization of intangible assols -703 G658
Amortization of righl-of-use assets ) -606 0

Other taxes -4 053 -3 a0

. Others -50 -129
Others - | -B4 -123

"~ Mandalory deposi insurance expenses I 6
| Total A6 122 -15 354 |

The average headcount in 2019 was 606 people and 604 people in 2018.

Expenses on materials and supplies fell by HUF 495 million (-10%) in 2019 which can be
explained with the following reasons

The 62% fell on repair and maintenance row is the consequence of transition to IFRS 16
standard. The rent costs of branches and head office was shown here in 2018 (HUF 721
million), while in 2019 it is reported partly in the depreciation of right-of-use assets (HUF 574
million), partly in the interest expenses of lease obligations (HUF 114 million) (detailed in
section 6.9.1 Leases).

Training costs rose by HUF 6 million, caused primarily by the increased costs of internal
group trainings.

in 2019 the amount of other administrative costs exceeded the previous year's data by HUF
209 million, partly due to the rise in IT costs and partly due to the higher amount of
supervisory fees of banking supervision.

Marketing costs rose by HUF 72 million (+12) in 2019 primarily because of the increase in
the costs of advertising campaigns, direct marketing and external events.

Advisory and insurance costs fell by HUF 177 million (-27%) in 2019 mainly due to the
decreased costs resulting from the service contract concluded with the parent company.

The 31% rise in data transmission costs, the 13% rise in electronic mailing costs and the
67% rise in the mass sending of text messages meant that communication costs increased
by HUF 85 million (+26%) in 2018.

Staff costs rose by HUF 464 million in 2018, owing to the 7% increase of salary costs and the
increase of the connecting social contributions.
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The fall in other employee benefits (HUF -24 million) is owing to the changes in the
conditions of housing loan repayment as benefit in kind,

The rose in social contributions is due to the increasing salaries.

Depreciation in 2019 rose by HUF 620 million compared to the previous year, The increase
15 owing mainly to the depreciation of the right-of-use assets (HUF 606 million) recognised
according to the rules of IFRS 16 standard.

Mandatory deposit insurance did not change compared to the last year.

6.7.11. Income tax

The Group's current tax payment liability:

] 2019 2018

Cument income taxes
Local businass tax 406 A6
Innovation contribution &2 61
~ Corporate incorne tax 0 ]
Guerant income taxes total 468 497
Deferred income laxes 0 o
| Total 468 497

The Group generated a profit before tax in both 2018 and 2019. That said, taking the use of
loss. carry-forwards from previous years and tax differences related to consumer loan
contracts (FX rescue program) into account, the Group's corporate tax liability was
immaterial. The current tax payment liability comprises local taxes.

The corporate tax rate in both years was 9%. The calculation of effective tax rate is
presented below:

B 2019 2018
Profit bofore tax 2820 1644
o —l e
Calculated corporate income tax - . -286 166
Tax impaot of modiying items.
| Disatiowed jtems = 254 65
| Deductible ltems _ 227 138
Temparary differences due to iransition 1o IFRS ] 62 62
Losses carmied forward from previous years s 10 32
Tar redfuclions =
Tax allowance regarding FX rescue progam 10 ap
Deferred lax - ' 0 0
| Corporate income tax R 0 0
Lozal business tax, innovalion contribution AGE 457
| Current Income tax expenses I 468 497
Effective tax rate 16,53% 26,94% |
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6.8 Notes to the Statement of Other comprehensive income

1 million HUF was transferred from ather comprehensive income to the reporting year profit

or loss because the sale of securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income.

I A2.201%

Changes in fair value of debt securities measured at fair value through Other comprehensive incoma

Changas in fair value

Reclassification of changes due to credit risk changes to Proflt and loss 24
Changes reparied in Other comprehensive Income 4
| 31122008
Changes in fair value of debt socuritins moasured at fair value through Other comprehensive incoma
Changes in fair valua ATH
Reclassification of changes due (o cradiil sk changes to Profit and loss 32
| Changes reported in Other comprehensive income : 447
D 31,12.2019
-éhnngu in fair value of loans moasurad at falr value through Other comprehensive incoma "
-r.‘.'nnngu in fair value -162
Reclassification of changes due to credit risk changes to Profit and loss 162
Changes reported in Other comprehensive income 0
31122018
Changes in fair value of loans measured at fair vaiue through Other comprehensive income
Changes in fair vislee 487
Reclassfication of changes due 1o credit risk changes to Prafit and loss -457
Changes rnpurhd in Other nomprahnnnl-';-inmnw o
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6.9 Other notes

6.9.1. Leases

The Bank adopted IFRS 16 standard as of 1 January 2019. During transition, the Bank
recognised the cumulative effect of Initially applying the standard as an adjustment to the
opening balance of the retained eamings al the date of initial application in the financial
statements and did not show comparative information.

The Bank, as lessee, rents mainly the buildings of branches, head office, and the vehicle
fleel. These assets appear in the right-of-use assets In the statement of financial positions,
Besides, the Bank rents low value assets, in such cases lease payments are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Faor these deals, leased assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial positions.

Section 6.6.6. Right of use assets shows the book value of right-of-use assets.
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

2018
Right-of-use assets |
 Property 575
Vehicle a1
iinal _ | Eai_

lLease liabilities are reported within Other liabilities in the statement of financial positions.
Breakdown of contractual, not discounted amounts of lease liabilities by maturity:

Uptod | 3 months o | More than 5
— months | iyaw | '103vears | 3t0Syears | Ty0qq ol |
Lease liabilties 204 493 1351 w8 672 3645 |

Interest expenses on lease liabilities:

B 2019
Right-of-use assats
__ Property 114
Vehicie ry
Total Ty

Expenses relating to shorl-term leases:

2018
Underying assets ot
| Property !
Vehiclo 20
Other assets 61 |
Total 8

Lease payments for short-term leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term ameng Other administrative expenses.
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Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets other than short-term:

2010

Underlying assets
Proparty
Vahisa
Other assats

Total -

o | L =25=1

Lease payments for low-value assets other than shori-term, the Bank recognizes as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term among Other administrative expenses.

The Bank did not disregard the expense relating to variable lease payments in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

There was no sublease or leaseback transaction in 2018,

During the reporting period, there were no lease costs recognized in the carrying amount of
another assel.

The total cash outflow of lease deals was HUF 744 million in 2019. Thereof the principal
repayment (HUF 540 million) is reported in cash flow from financial activities, the interest
payment (HUF 119) is reported in cash flow from operating activities in the Cash Flow
Statement. The cash outflow from leases of low-value asset (HUF 3 million) and from short
term leases (HUF 82 million) can be found in cash flow from operating activities.

Lease payments recognized as income:

[ 2019 2018
i Rental of buikding ! 1
Total 1 1

Basically the Bank does not have rental activity. The income above partly come from the
rental of an empty office.
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6.9.2. Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

31122019 -
Gross amount Gross amaurit of Het amount of
Mote of financial offsatting financial financial Cash collatara)
e __o@ssets __Niabilities | ssuels
Dervative assels wilh netting
_agranman — _l"_ = hd 0
Darivative assets wilhoul nelling 86 0 BE o
_agtesment S : TS =
amodwin amount
of offsetting Pt sl financial | Cash collateral
. Ainancial assels masia liabilities
Derivative liabliities wilh nelting
reement 1 655 58 !UCI_
Derivative Rabilites without
nelling agreement 0 590 550 0
Total b 220 1285 800
f B 31122018 n
Gross amount Gross amount of Not amount of
Note of financial offsatting financial financial Cash collateral
I assofs liabliitios Ansis d
Mm“’m eding 1106 418 689 884
Derivalive assets withoul netting I
agreement = o ! = o
Gross amount Mot amount of
mmount of
of offsetting 1$$m poiirhal financial | Cash collatoral
- financial assets liabilities |
Derivalive labites with netting
| agreemant 83 2 139 521
Darivative labilibes without 0 g9 62 0
 metting agreemient L L
Total 5'3'* 1218 732 1415

6.9.3. Transactions with related parties

The Bank considers those entities related parties which have — directly or indirectly —
influence over the Bank, or which are under the influence of the Bank or under joint control

with the Bank.

Other related parties mean the companies which are in the same consolidation scope and
are not Owners or Investments.

Key management personnel are also considered related parties — transactions with them are
presented in the next section (6.9.4).

The Bank enters into transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis.
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Other related

M.2.2019 Owners parties Total
Cash and cash equivaiants 4 540 818 § 456
Recoivables from credd instilulions 6 048 4 0RO 11037
Loans and advances o customers o 0 i
Equity investmants 0 0 ]
Dervative assats (nominal value) 1309 0 1308
Other assels 24 a 24
Liabilites due to banks 1672 15514 19 186
Liabilities dus to customarg 0 ] 1]
Subardinated liabilties 8313 o 08314
| Derivative liabilities (nominal value) 6727 0 6 727
Other linbilities 21 0 21
31.12.2018 Owners n“';ﬂ'ﬁ:‘“ Total
Cash and cash equivalents 24417 g9im 33 588
Recaivablas from cradit institutions TETT Q 7877
Loans and advances 1o customers 0 0 0
Equity investmaents 0 0 1]
Derivalive assets (nominal value) 8270 [1] B 270
Other assets 0 0 0
Liabilibes due to banks 182 270 452
_uuhlm due to customers 1] 105 105
Suberdinated Habilties B 062 0 8062
Dorivative Nabilities (nominal value) 12 607 0 12 607
Other Habilibas 50 4 54
2019 Owners ““‘:: Tl Total
Interast receivable and similar income 306 3 | a7
Interest payable and similar expense <379 53 432
Net provision charge for loan impalrment 0 1] 1]
Nel interast income minus risk provisions -13 22 -a5
Fee and commission income 0 12 12
Fos and commigsion expanse -5l -1 -58
Net fee and commissions incoma 58 11 47
Nt trading income 564 *] 584
Net gain o loss on sacurilles 0 1] o
Changes in allowances for other risks 0 0 0
Othar operating income 48 0 a8
Other oparating expanses =314 2 16
Resull before tax 881 -13 974
Income tax o 0 o
Profit or loss after tax from continuing operations -B61 -13 H7A |
Profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations 0 a [t}
Prafit or loss after tax -851 -13 -O74
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: Olhar
2018 Owners “"ﬁ“‘“ Total

Interest receivable and similar meome 207 1 225
Interest payable and similar @xpenss -340 B =346
Met provision charge for lean Imeainment o -5
Nal Imarest income minus riak provisions 138 12 -126
Fae and commission incoma ] 21 21
Feg and commission expenss -35 = -36
Nel fee and commissions income -35 20 -15
Net trading income 138 0 139
Mat gain of loss an securibes o 0 o

| Changes in allowances for afher risks 0 0 0
Other aperating income 125 o 125
Otier opasating expenses ~305 A7 32
Resuit before tax 492 15 477

| Income tx o 0 0
Profit or lnss after tax from confinuing operations 482 15 ATF
Profitor loss after tax from discontinued operations 4] [ 1]
Profit or loss afler tax B 492 14 477

2018 Owners m;g:‘“ Total

Gulrm-quln 2250 1410 3 EE__
Provisions -1 0 -1

| Guaraniees received 10 643 0 10843

i 2018 Owners “'*;T,u""“"“ _ Total
Guarantess glven 3483 1] Jan
Provisions K 0 =]

| Guarantees recaived 26 553 0 26 653

6.9.4. Compensation of key management personnel

The Bank considers the members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board key

management personnel

2010

2018

Companssation of key managament personnel

Shortderm employen benoits

423

Paost-employment banafits:

‘Ohier kong-term employes benefils.

Temiination bonelits

Oithars

Total

§ - F
a ol oclald

lﬂ%na ala
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Loans granted to key management personnel;

31.12.2019 | 31.12.2018
Loans granted to key managemenl persornel ]
Mortgage loans 63 53
Total 61 53

in 2019, the Bank realised HUF 1 million interest income on loans to key management

personnel,

6.9.5. Currency balances

The Bank's assets and liabilities by currency:

31.12.2019
Assols EUR usb CHF HUF Others Total
Cash and cash equivalents 1188 2 409 159 8312 1 658 o8 846
Securibes 0 0 ol 3018 0 31 016
Recsivables from credit institutions 12121 0 0 1690 0 ITRER
Loans and advances to cusiomens a7 423 881 1 641 195 692 0| 265637
Plant. property and equipment 0 o 0 2 237 0 2737
Right-ol-use assets 0 0 0 3076 0 3078 |
Intangible assets 0 0 0 5577 (i 8577
Equity iInvestments 0 536 0 77 (i 613
investment property 0 0 0 0 i} 0
Tox pasets 0 0 0 27 a b
Derivative assets 87 19 0 152 0 228
Oiher assels ] 18 0 1747 -] 1 669
s hgiang and diaposal groups 0 0 o 13 o 1
Total assets B0 899 3 883 1 BOD 334725 1863 423 260
31.12.2018

 Assets EUR usp CHF HUF Others Total
Gash and cash equivalents 26 956 6184 48 27 284 1337 61 808
Securities ] 6 628 0 38 256 0 43884
Recaivables from credil institutions 8918 12711 0 B24 1 22 455
Leans and advances to customars 56 933 1494 2289 167 818 o 228 635
Plant, property and equipment 0 0 0 1408 | o 1408
Right of-use assets 0 0 [} 0 0 0

Intangible assets 0 0 0 4 069 0 4008
Edquily investments 0 80 0 78 ] 438
Investment property PI' 0 1] 0 (1} 0
Tax assets- 0 0 0 13| 0 13
Detivalive assets 218 78 0 623 0 1219
Ciher assels 273 0 0 1622 0 1895
m"::;“m St A 0 0 0 13 o 13
Total assets 83 208 26 455 2337 | 242409 1338 365837

103



Consolidated Financial Stwtements 31, Deceniber 2019

data in HUF million

31.12.2019
Liabilities EUR usD CHF HUF Othars Total
Liabilties due to banks 25 578 144 ] 26 970 0 52 687
Liabilithes due 1o customars B85 611 54 BO1 1163 177675 1946 301685
Debt sacurities in issus 1310 0 o [ [ 1310
Subordinated liabillies 9313 0 0 0 0 8313
Proviskng am I 0 103 a 1232
Tax liabilities o 0 0 2 0 21
Denvative labilbes 283  3e 0 577 A 1 255
Other liabiities - 3661 145 0 4 598 234 8638
nnmru rurw.lpmm and disposal groups o o [ 3 ; X 8
Total liabilities 108 257 56 574 1183| 211172 2185 376351
31.42.2018 .
Liabilities EUR UsD CHF HUF Others Total
Linbiities due to banks 7875 423 0 26 530 s i 34 938
Linbilites due 1o cusiomers E3 980 A6 143 1035 162 897 1484 265 318
Debt securilies in issue 4177 0 0 0 0 4177
| Subordinates! labilities 8 062 0 0 0 o] oo
Provisions 186 0 0 563 0 749
Tax fiabilities 0 0 0 6 0 36
| Derivative iatiliben 214 6 2 510 0 732 |
Other liabilities 1463 608 ! 4123 15 6 290
;}Em and dispusal groups 0 0 0 o| 0 0
Total liabilities. 77 06T xiT 260 1038 184 468 1480 31 303
6.9.6. Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category:
31122019
At Tair valun
ﬂ?trJ::l::lmu:t m mn‘nthqd T“:,':l::“ Fair value
and loss i cost
Cash andl cash eguivalants 0 0| G8B46 a0 46 98 846
Securiies 0 27 252 3764 31 018 31 051
Recaivables from cradit instiutions a 0 14 111 LR 13812
Leanps and sdmmiu-w 10 147 &2 | 246438 285 637 267 11
Equily investments 536 77 0 613 613
Darnwvative assets 228 0 o 228 228
Other financial assets G 0 0 1613 1812 1a13
Total financial assets 19 911 27981| 364972 412284| 413474
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31.12.2018
Atfiirvalgs | A falcvalus At
through profit gnmxh":m“ur‘ , | amortised Tuﬂlgzot Fair value
and loss MEOme cost
Cash and cash equivalents o o 61 B0B 61 808 61 806
Secunhes 10 541 32 Z34 1008 3 884 43833
Recelvables from eredil instiulions 0 0 22 455 22 455 21478
Loans and advancas lo customerns O 127 228 508 Z28 B35 232168
Equity investments 361 1 438 438
Perivitive nesats 1218 1] 0 1219 1218
Cither financial assels o o 1786 1788 1786
Total financial assets 12 221 32438 915566 380225 362 863
31.12.2019
At Tair valoe ;::::hm Al Total book
h Fair
rough IS | comprahaniv | *Toriesd | v | Farvale
Liabilities due to banks 0 0 52 BO7 52 697 52 B&T
Liabilities due to customers ] 0| 301885 301 885 301 872
Detl securities in Bsue [1] o 131D 130 1298
Subardinated labilites 0 0 9313 833 9310
Derivative liabilities 1255 0 0 1255 1255
Other financial liabilities 0 0 T 894 7 894 7 Bo4
Total financial IIII:!_H-HIII 1 2565 1] 373098 374 354 a4 ﬁ;
3M.12.2018
it val At fair value
theough profi o i cnceiid Total book | iy value
and loas income eost
Liabilities due to banks o ] 34 938 34 038 34 845
Lisbilities due to customerns 1] 0 2685 319 265 119 265 2119
Debt securibes in ssue 0 0 4177 477 4 388
Subordinated Habidties 0 o a9 062 2062 89223
Denvatve liabilibes 732 0 o 732 T3z
Other linancial liabilities 1] 0 5621 621 5821
Total financial liabilities 732 0| 319117 31984s| 320128
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value:

M.12.2018
Tatal Fair
Note | Levelt | Lovel2 | Lovel3 “"::' Cont
Securilies 662
 Atfair value through profit and loss ) 0 ] 1] 0 o
Al tair value through other comprehensivg income 27 252 o| 0 27 282 27 045
Loans and advances to customers Ghid
At fair vaiue through profit and loss a o 19147 18147 18636
Al fair value ihrough olher comprehensive ncome a o B2 52 52
Equity investments 668
At fair value through profit and loss i} o 535 536 an
Al falr value Ihrough other comprehensive incame 0 0 77 T 77
Darnvative assets 6610
At fair value through profit and loss 0 228 0 228 0
Financial assels measured at fair value 27 252 228 19812 47 202 4B 031
31.12.2019
Noto | Levol1 | Lovel2 | Level3 | 'O% falf Cost
Detivative liabiities = 6.6 10
At tair value through profit and loss o 1285 0 | 255 0
Financial liabilitiss mossured at fair valuo o 1288 [ 1288 0
31.12,2018
Level1 | Level2 | Loveld wa Cost
Securties 662
| Atfair value through profit and loss . 10 647 o 0 10 641 11 887
At fair value through other comprehensive Income 32234 o 0 32234 32790
Loans and advances to customers 66.4
Al falr value thraugh other comprebensive income 1] 4] 127 127 127
Equity ivestments 858
At fair vaiue through profit and loss _ 0 0 361 381 211
At falr vaiue thraugh other comprehensive income 0 0 77 77 77
Derlvative assets B6.10
At fair value through profit and loss 0| 1219 0 1219 0
Financial assets measured at fair value 42875 1219 585 44659 45101 |
. 3.12.2018
Note | Loval1 | Level2 | Lavel3 T‘::lu"" Cost
Derivative isbililies _— 8510
At tair value through prott and loss 0 732 ] 732 0
Financlal lisbilities measured at fair value [} 712 0| 7a2 i}
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value:

32209
Mote | Level1 | Level2 | Level3 Tﬂl::" Book value
Cash and cash equivalents 651 14304 | B4 452 0 98 B4G 98 846
Securiies 6682
At amortised cost 0 0 A7e8 a7ae 3764
Receivables from credit institutions 663 i 5815 7887 13812 14111
Loans and advances o customers 664
At amortised cost 1] 0| 247812 247 912 246 438
Equity investments 667
Al amortised msl 0 i} 1] O o
Oiher financial pssats 6.610 0 0 1813 1813 1813
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 14 394 0 267 | 267 521 366 182 364 972
31.42.2018 e
Note | Level1 | Loveiz | Levetd | "o ™ | Book value
Cash and cash equivalents 861 22734 21392 17682 61808 61808
Securntien 662
Al amorised cost 1 064 0 0 1064 1009
Recelvables from credit institutions 863 0 a 21475 21475 22 456
Loans and advencas (o cuslomers 664
Al amortised cost 1] 0| 23267 2320M 228 535
Equity invesimeanis 668
At amortisad cost 0 0 0 o V]
Other financial pssats 6.6.11 0 o] 1786 1786 1 786
Financial asssts measured at amortised cost 23798 21392 273074 318 204 315 566
3MA2.2019
Note | Lovel1 | Lovel2 | Loveld | "o ¥ | Book value
Lipbilities due to banks 6613 0 4 385 48 282 52 BT 62 687
Liabilities due to customers 6.6.14 0 0] 3o1872| 301872| 301885
Dabt secunties in ssue 6.8.15 0 __I_.'l 1298 1288 1310
Subardinated llabilties 6,616 0 1] 82310 9310 83 1_
Oiher financial lmbilitios 6618 0 [¥] 7 Bo4 _1&94 T B;H
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost i} 4385 | 368656 373 041 373 088
3nAz.2010
Note | Level1 | Level2 | Level3 | TOWUM" | ook valuo
Lisbilities dus to banks G613 1] 539 34 306 34 845 34 838
Lisbilities dus lo customerns 6.8.14 1] @ 265319 265 319 266 319
Debi securilies in issve 8815 0 0 4 388 4 388 4177
Subordinated liabilitlies 6618 0 0 83223 8223 8 062
| Other fmancial liabilities 6.6.18 0 0| se2t 5621| 5821
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1] 539 | 2B 85T 319 398 a7

There were not changes in the fair value hierarchy; there were nol transfers between the

levels.,
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6.9.7. Fair value option

Under IFRS 9 an entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities on different bases. The application of the fair value option shall result in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The fair
value oplion may be applied for example when an entity has financial assets that share a
risk, such as interest rate risk, and that gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend
to offset each other. In such cases the entity may measure the asset that otherwise is
measured at amortised cost at fair value.

The Bank chose to apply the fair value option to hedge for disclosure of Hungarian treasury
bond portfolio (amounts to 10 billion HUF at face value) whose interest rate risk is hedged by
interest rate swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based Lending
Scheme).

The purchased government bond was classified in the available-for-sale category since the
Bank intends to hold it in the long term, so withoul applying the fair value option the
recognition of the HIRS transaction and the transactions hedging its interest risk would have
been inconsistent. The fact the Bank had the government bond designated at fair value
meant the fair value changes of the transactions were universally recognised in profit or loss,
thus providing a reliable and more relevant view of the aggregate impact of the transactions

The IRS and government bond market move closely in tandem with one another, as verified,
statistically, by the high coefficient of determination (R”) calculated for the time series:

R 2018 2018
IRSSY - GovsY o
IRS10Y - GowlOy | 08%

This deal expired in 2019,

6.9.8. Government grants

In connection with its HIRS and preferential deposit transactions concluded with MNB the
Bank accounted for the following amounts as governmenl grants.

Govamment gra;M
Amount o Mature Il
- 18 2018 2018 2018
HIRS deals. 257|246 inerestralesubsidy | mierest rale subsidy
| Preferantial deposits 105 1] Inberest rale subsidy | interes! rale subsidy
Tow 7] S ] I I

In the case of HIRS transactions the interest payable on the transaction is lower than the
market interest, while for preferential deposits the interest received is higher than the market
interest.
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In accordance with 1AS 20, in both cases the Bank recognises the government grant only if
there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attaching to the grant will be fulfilled and
the Bank will receive the grant. Accordingly, there are no unfulfilled items or other contingent
liabilities connected to the grants that have been accounted for.

6.9.9. Day-one profit or loss

The Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on initial recognition.
If the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the difference is
accounted for depending on the level of the transaction within the fair value hierarchy:

- if the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss;

- in all other cases the fair value at initial recognition shall be adjusted by the deferred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the
extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability.

In the case of the monetary policy HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNB, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in profit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion. In 2019 the Bank did not have
such deal, where day one gain or loss impact should have been recognised.

In the case of the FGS funds drawn from the MNB and the FGS loans disbursed using these
funds, the initial fair value difference is accrued because the Bank does not calculate the fair
value using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs. The following tables show the accrued amounts not yet
recognised in profit or loss:

B 31422009 | 31922018
nitiail fair vamm}?&dﬁvﬁaﬁ loans 807 ~-1142
nitial fair value difference of FGS funds 1043 1215

];Tml i 136 72

Changes to Initial fair value difference of FGS loans:

FGS loans ) 019 2018
Opening batance -1 143 | -1540 |
~ Initia fair value difference of new loans -A1 B
gmmu:laarnn af inilial fair value difference of 194 312
| Disposal of (he remaining indial fai valus 12_3 = =
difference of sold, matured of repaid loans - 7 - o bl
Closing balance 907 1143 |
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Changes to initial fair value difference of FGS funds:

FGS funds 2018 20168

Opening balance 1215 1 B8
Inmthk%mﬂmﬁmm 148 !
mﬂmﬁm of indial fair value diffarence of 200 393

" Disposal of the remaining il fair vaiue 120 T ;3;
difference of sold, matured or repaid loans

Cloaing balance 1043 1215

6.9.10, Modification gain or loss

The Bank’s recognised gain or loss neither from the significant nor from the not significant
contract modifications exceeded HUF 1 million in 2012, (In 2018 both were HUF -2 million )

6.9.11. Fees to the auditor

2019 2018
Audit of the annual financial statements. - e 91
| Other nudit fees a1 23
Tax advisory services 14 )
Ofther, non-audit fees ol 5
Total 132 122
6.9.12. Collaterals received
At full value,
| st2200 | 31922018
Callaterals recelved al full value
Cash collatorals 12 169 11025
~ Bank guarantees 1117 12075
Blde gunraniess 72 D64 AR 720
Socuriting 1 BO8 6453
Assigned sales rovenue 0 0
Assigned recevables Bl 667
Merigage 154 G54 148 031
Total 252 491 221174
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Up to the gross contractual receivable value:

- [ mazame [ 3ra22018
Collaterals received up lo the gross coniractual receivable value
~ Cash collalerals 11 070 10157
Bank guarantees 9 689 A 765
Stale guaraniess 68 579 46 0a3
~ Securities 1 801 687
Assigned sales revenus ] 0
| Assigned receivables 337 ar2
Morlgage 88 323 88 828
Total 179 609 165 792 |
6.9.13. Financial assets pledged as collateral
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
| Cash and cash equivalents = [} 0
~ Securities 14472 | 12 830
Receivables from credit institutions 2 787 1621
Loans and advances 1o cusiomen 16 BEd 17 070
* Other financia! assets 0 ]
Total o 34143 31581

Under financial assets used as collateral, the Bank recognises collaterals placed at other
banks to cover losses from derivative transactions as well as securities and SME loans used

to cover FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards related to ownership of the financial assets used

as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheet.

6.9.14. Subsequent events after the reporting date

In the first quarter of 2020 coronavirus has appeared also in Hungary. The epidemic has
significant turbulence in the real economy (production chains have been temporarily
discontinued, production plants were closed, etc.) that also affected financial markets
including Hungary. In order to moderate the unfolding recession, Hungarian Government and
Hungarian National Bank have launched several measures that also affect Bank's processes

and its risk management principles:

Regarding loan contracts concluded prior 18.March 2020, capital and interest payment
obligation was suspended until 31 December 2020 in case of private persons and
companies on a general basis. The moratorium does not mean that payment obligation
is released, but it means delay thereof to a later date. The capital bears interest during
moratorium, but the interest is not capitalised. First estimates of the Banks show that the

lost interest income will amount approximately to HUF 300 million.

Short-term entrepreneurial loans are prolonged until 30 July 2020
The weighting of funds over a year is differentiated as per maturity when calculating
foreign exchange funding adequacy ratio (hereinafter referred to as Hungarian

abbreviation: DMM)
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- Maximum leve! of foreign exchange coverage ratio (hereinafter referred to as Hungarian
abbreviation. DEM) has shrinked from 15% to 10%, hereby limiting the FX difference
within balance sheet.

- Members of the monetary policy may offer performing corporate loans as collateral,
regardiess of the maturity and denomination of the loans when performing activity via
Central Bank. MNB applies a unified 30% haircut for accepted loans.

MNB launches long term collateralised loan (maturity: 3, 6 and 12 months respectively 3
and 5 years) with fixed interest rate with unlimited frame amount, and by suspending the
sanction on shortfall it released banks from fulfilling the minimum reserve requirements.
The Monetary Council has decided to make the interest rate corridor symmetric. The
base rate remained unchanged at 0,9%, as well as O/N deposit rate remained
unchanged at -0,05%, meanwhile O/N and one-week collateralised lending rate was
increased to 1,85%

In order to ensure stable liquidity position to government bond market, MNB has
launched its government security purchase program on the secondary market and
relaunches its mortgage bond purchase program to increase long-term funding of the
banking system

- As of 20 April 2020 MNB launches a new Funding of Growth Scheme called 'Hajra’ to
support SME lending in the frame amount of HUF 1000 billion. The increased liquidity
will be drawn from money markets within 13 months with 4% preferential deposit

Considering the fact that coronavirus has appeared in Hungary and Europe in 2020, and
epidemic as well as measures to mitigate the effect of expecled recession were taken after
the end of the reporting period, the Bank does not adjust 2019 data presented In the financial
statements.

Epidemic, expecled recession as well as related measures will however have a significant
effect on profitability of the Bank within the upcoming years. Assessment of the effects of
introduced measures — considering the fact that detailed regulations are not available yet and
possible further measures are not known yet - is in progress. Some measurements ceteris
paribus temporarily worsen liquidity position (e.g. repayment moratorium), while other
measurements improve the liquidity position (long-term unlimited collateralised loan lending
to banks, release of minimum reserve requirements) There is uncertainty about the
performance of the economy that goes hand in hand with uncertainty regarding quality of
loan portfolio. According to reasonable assumptions, a considerable economic fallback is
expected, as a result thereof new disbursements will decrease significantly. Furthermore
quality of the currently performing portfolio will probably worsen too.

The recession caused by coronavirus is expecled to last until end of 2020 or first quarter of
2021 thal can be followed by an economic growth again, It means that the Bank has to cope
and calculate with a rapid crisis situation.

The Bank did not experience any liquidity difficulties and does not expect that the cumulative
effect of the announced measures would significantly worsen its liquidity position. Risk costs
are expected to rise in 2020 in a smaller and in the beginning of 2021 in a bigger extent.

Based on currently available assumptions the Bank has made calculations for the 12 months
following balance sheet date and it came to the conclusion that viability, liquidity and capital
position is not endangered

6.9.15. Dividends paid

The Bank did not pay dividend to the shareholders either in 2018 or 2019.
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6.9.16. Equity correlation table

Equity correlation table required by Section 114/B (1) of the Act on Accounting:

3422019

Components of equity as por the Act on Accounting

Share Subscribed, Profit ar
copas | St | Copl | oo | (il | Vot | Moot |
per lFRS | capital {-) ing ik
Share capial ayay 3727
Capltal reserve B4 418 B4 416
Retalned samings -54 051 2125 51 926
Othar resane an 421
| Revaluation reserve of
available-for-sale
fingncial assets, net of 0 261
tax
mmﬂ“" Ack 3727 0| s4a18| -se0s1| 2125 261 az1| 46899
31122018
Components of equity as por the Act on Accounting
mm"“ E;Tum' Capital | Retained :ﬂ":’:& Valuation | Allocated | o
parIFRS | capilal () raserve | earmings o resanve rEsETyE
Shara capilal arer arer
Capltal resemnve 84 418 4 416
Ratalned samings -55 384 1347 54 051
Cither resanae 185 185
Revaluation resemne of
availnbie-for-sale
financial assels, net of o=l L
1
m"‘”‘“ 3727 0| oaats| 55398 1347 257 185| 44534
Reconciliation of capital registered by the Court of Registration and the share capital as per
IFRS:
i 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Capitat registered by the Court of Registration 1T 32T
Instruments recognised as Nabilities (-) 0 i}
Share capital as par IFRS vz arnw
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Calculation of free retained eamings available for dividend payment:

31022019 .12.2018

Retained eamings - <51 926 <4 051
 Accumulated unrealised gain acoounted for dus | =

to increase in the falr value of investmon 1] ]
properies {-) g

Accumulated ameunt of relaled  income  tax 0 o
acoounted for based on |AS 12 Income texes (+) .
Adjusted retalned earnings -51 926 -54 061
Free retained earnings available for dividend 0 0
| paymont

6.9.17. Realised profit from sale of loans

As in the previous years, the Bank continued to sale the non-performing loans also in 2018.

The realised profit from sale of loans Is reported in Other operating income in the Income
staternent.

The following table shows the realised profit from sale of loans in 2019 broken down by
measurement type of the sold loans.

maasurnd at fair
L“;mmzm“ m through other Total
L comprehoensive income "
Income 6010 77 6 087
| Book value of sold loans 3418 26 | 3 444
Direct costs relating 1o the sale 188
Realised profit from sale - 2592 81| 2 458

In 2019, above its traditional quantity of sale, the Bank sold a pool of loans with a
considerably higher volume of loans Iin it, including a substantial part of the non-performing
private mortgage loans of the Bank. During the sale, approximately 800 non-performing
loans were transferred. As substantially all the risks and rewards of the loans were
transferred in the deal, the loans were derecognised from the Bank's books in their entirety.

The realised profit from the sale of this above mentioned deal

—_— | Loans meusired at faif
m::‘:::“ value through other Total
| comprahenslve income |
incomb 5233 76 5308
Bookvalyeofsoldioans B 3147 26 <173
__@_Ig_ur:i cosin relating 1o the sake == -1B5
Realised profit from sale 2 ﬁ!ﬂ 50 1081

Under the transfer agreement the buyer may require the Bank to repurchase certain loans.
This repurchase liability may only arise where subsequently s found that from a legal point of
view the receivable in question had no existence at the date of transfer (e.g. the Bank has
not become aware on time that the debtor died before the transfer) and shall not exceed 10%
of the purchase price. The Bank allocated HUF 707 million provision for this repurchase
liability at the end of 2019.
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6.9.18. Maturity of financial liabilities

Breakdown of contractual, not discounted amounts of financial liabilities by maturity:

3.12.2019
Uptoi 1to3 | 3months | 1tad | Mom than Total
maonth maonths | to 1 year years 3 years
Liabilities due to banks 1084 4 144 10 256 27 585 1123 54 280
Liabilfies due io ciestomens 240 633 29625 31809 148 51 202 064
Debt securities in issue 0 366 1047 0 o] 1413
Subordinated lizbilities &0 1] 210 576 10377 11213
Other financial liabilites 3 gas 52 1 041 1152 833 6 B26
Taotal 245 415 34 187 44 163 29 438 12 682 ATE T96
3122018
Uptoi 1te3 3 months 1tod More than Total
f manth months 1o 1 yaar yoar 3 yoars
Linblities due to banks 558 BBG 3870 18416 12 875 35 705
Liabilities due o customers 215 424 14 258 27 565 az3 27 265 505
Debt securities in [ssus 0 0 2 889 1408 0 4297
Subordinated Eablites: ] 1] 228 Bad 10 245 11183
Other financiat labilibes £ 895 0 0 — 0 0 5 E“QE_
Total 221 753 16 144 34 652 28 (99 23147 323395
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6.10 Information related to capital management

Determining the bank's optimal capital level and its continuous monitaring is a basic
process/task for every bank.

The level of capital is primarily determined by the Bank's risk appelite. Since high risks entail
higher losses, it is crucial for the Bank to carefully take into account both the expected and
unexpecled losses related 1o its various business activities. The economic capital determines
the required level of capital related to the actual risk profile while the level of the regulatory
capital represents a mandatory minimum leve! below which the Bank may not go even when
based on its own measurements its risk exposure would justify a lower level. The Bank's
capital management covers both the Pillar 1 and the Pillar 2 view. The fundamental goal of
capital management is to:

- ensure the optimal level of capital for the Bank,

- ensure the capital requirement necessary for the Bank's operation,

- facilitate compliance with European and national regulations.

Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (CRR), Act CCXXXVIl of 2013 on Credit Institutions and
Financial Enterprises (Hpt.) and Directive 2013/36/EU define uniform rules for the supervised
institutions with respect to capital requirements. The Bank calculates its regulatory capital
based on these rules with a monthly frequency and sends a quarterly report thereof to the
Supervisory Autharity (COREP, FINREP).

The Bank's ALM department regularly monitors capital adequacy (P1 and P2) and prepares
a report for the ALCO and the parent bank at least monthly and also for the Supervisary
Board quarterly. Based on its forecasts, whenever justified, it takes the necessary measures
to ensure capital adequacy at all times, in line with its recovery plan,

During its planning process, the Bank regularly monitors regulatory changes and updates
and calculates the required level of capital account taken of these changes.

The major business risks of the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including
interest and foreign exchange risk) and operational risk.

The following chart displays the structure of the Bank's polential capital requirement and
capital recommendation. In 2018 it was not required to maintain P2G.
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The Bank's capital level always complied with the regulatory requirements, the shareholders
ensured the required level of capital, in 2018 by providing EUR 9 million of CET1 capital. No
dividend was paid, the profit increases the level of CET1 capital,
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The Bank’s regulatory capital:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
| Regjulatory capital 47 898 49 420
Tier1 capital 38 898 40 418
Commaon Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 38 898 a7 502
Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 0 29016
Supplementary capital (Tier 2) 9100 4002
Development of capital requirement:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Tolal Risk Exposure amount (RWA) 224 699 223 280
|CET1 capital adequacy ratio 17,31% 16,80%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 17.31% 18,10%
Capital adequacy ratio 21,36% 22,10%
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6.11 Risk management policies

6.11.1 Liquidity risk

Liquidily risk is the risk of the institution nol being able to comply with its obligations
stemming from the expected and unexpected current and future cash flows and collaterals
without impacling its daily operation or its market position. These may include, among others’

- Short-term liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank not being able to meet all of its payment
obligations or nol being able to meet its payment obligations on time. Short-term liguidity
risk refers to a time horizon of 30-90 business days.

- Long-term liquidity risk is the risk of additional refinancing funds being accessible only at
a higher market interest rate. Long-term liquidity risk refers to a time horizon of at least 1
year.

- Concentration liquidity risk occurs when the Bank's exposure to a single depositor, a
single deposit instrument, a single market segment or a single currency is extremely high
primarily on the liability side. However, the concentration of an on-balance sheet or off-
balance-sheet instrument which may significantly alter the level of expected cash flow
may also cause concentration liquidity risk.

The Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits (e.g.
LCR, NSF, FLST, DMM, L/D, DEM, BFM, concentration indicators) in line with the
international and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the parent bank and
manages these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservative liquidity buffer.

The liquidity buffer is the Bank's source of liquidity. The Bank continuously maintains an
appropriate level of liquidity buffer, both in terms of amount, maturity and quality so that it can
continue meeting its liquidity obligations.

Section 412 (1) of Regulation (EU) 575/2013 of the European Council (CRR) prescribes a
general liquidity coverage requirement for credit institutions, creating at the same time the
LCR indicator; according to this requirement “institutions shall hold liquid assets, the sum of
the values of which covers the liquidity outflows less the liquidity inflows under stressed
conditions®. This regulation is supplemented and made more specific by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/61.

The LCR is defined as the ratio of the credit institution's liquidity buffer containing liquid
assets to its net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period. The net liquidity outflow is
the credit institution's liquidity outflows less its liquidity inflows. The liquidity coverage ratio
must be expressed as a percentage value and the regulator determined its minimum level to
be 100% (the Bank's internal limit is 110%); this means that the credit institution has
sufficient liquid assets to cover its net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period. In light
of this the Bank pays special attention to the LCR indicator, to its reliable calcuiation and to
that it manages its liquidity based on this Indicator.

Total weighted amount (average)

_ - 31.03.2019 | 30.06.2019 | 30.09.2019 | 31.12.2019
Number of abservation penods taken inle 5 S _3 3 ‘ ""_—"_3
account in average calculation (months) | 7 . T | . -
Liquidity buffer 41915 38 680 449 821 73630
Net liquidity outflow - 28618 23 862 26 348 54 235
| Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 157 47% | 162.14% 189.08% 135,58%
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The internal liquidity stress test is an integral part of the liquidity risk management limit
system, during which the Bank quantifies the impacts of predefined scenarios (idiosyncratic,
market-wide, combined). It is a requirement of the parent bank that the Bank meets the
minimum 1 month limit in terms of the stress survival horizon. In the course of 2018 the Bank
complied with this requirement.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the Board of Directors is also a member - is
the organizational unit responsible for the strategic management of liquidity risks. The ALCO
is informed at least monthly about the Bank’s liquidity position and the utilization of the limits.
Asset-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the
approved guidelines, responsibilities and limits.

6.11.2 Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the actual asset value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet positions changes as a result of the change in market prices (interest rates,
equity prices, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices etc.) due to which the Bank’s profit
and capital may decrease.

The Bank measures and limits its exposure to market risk using various methods depending
on whether the given exposure qualifies as a trading or as a banking book exposure.

Market risk — trading book

Based on criteria defined by the CRR and the FRTB, the Bank classifies as positions heid
with trading intent the positions intended to be resold short term, or positions intended to
benefit from expected differences between buying and selling prices. The Bank performs the
valuation of trading book paositions at fair value at least daily.

Compared to its size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates (market execution) where clients want to hedge
their risks stemming from their own operation.

Sberbank Group applies several methods for measuring and managing market risks, in line
with the international risk management standards and regulatory recommendations.

On the basis of the risk appetite, the parent bank defines every year the maximum level of
risk that the Bank can assume and defines, among other things, the open currency position
(OCP), the value at risk (VaR, Stress VaR), the interest rate sensitivity (BPV), and the
maximum loss (Stop Loss) limits.

Money Markets Trading and ALM areas are in charge of the operative management of
market risks. In order to avoid conflict of interest ("Segregation of Duties’), risk exposures are
monitored daily by an independent organizational unit , i.e. the Market Risk Management
unit, operating independently from the business areas assuming the risk and even from the
Board of Directors.

The Bank's management (Board of Directors, ALCO) receives at least monthly information
about the risk exposures, while the Supervisory Board receives reports quarterly.

Equity price risk
The Bank does not assume any open commodity and equity risks.
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Foreign exchange risk

The primary foreign exchange risk stems from the different structure of the Bank's assels
and liabilities (both on- and off-balance sheet). As a result of the changes in foreign
exchange rates the Bank may realise gains or incur losses recognized directly in profit or
loss.

The Bank manages its foreign currency positions in the trading book, it holds no strategic
open pasitions in the banking book. Assuming non-linear risks is not part of the strategy and
s0, for example, the Bank typically hedges its option positions back-to-back

Market risk — banking book

The interest rate risk in the banking book represents the possibility that the income stemming
from the positions in the banking book and/or the net present value of the positions change
unfavourably due to the change in market interest rates.

Every on- and off-balance sheet position that does not belong to the trading book is to be
considered a banking book position; that is, typically loan and deposit portfolios, the non-
trading securities portfolio and interbank transactions, investments, other receivables and
liabilities and non-trading derivative transactions, etc.

The Bank considers the so-called re-pricing risk as the primary interest rate risk, which is the
nsk stemming from the timing difference of the re-pricing structure of receivables and
liabilities and off-balance sheet items. Measurements cover the yield curve risk which is the
risk stemming from the changes in the shape and the slope of the yield curve.

When quantifying the extent of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approaches in line with regulatory recommendations and gquantifies both the
short term (income related) and longer-term impacts (appearing in the change of the
economic value of the capital).

Risk exposures are presented separately for the relevant currencies featured in the balance
sheel. Both the net interest income and the value of the economic capital are analysed
based on the re-pricing table and quantification of the re-pricing gaps.

When quantifying interest rate risk, the Bank uses different scenarios representing various
interest rate changes. From among these, we assume a +/- 200 basis points, prompt, paraliel
yield curve shock as the basic stress scenario. In arder to analyse interest rate sensitivity in
more detail the Bank also analyses the impact of additional scenarios which simulate the
different changes in the slope and the shape of the yield curve.

To measure the banking book’s interest rate risk, the Bank also applies the value at risk
(VaR) method where we calculate with the historically observed volatility of the yield curve
points - instead of the parallel curve shocks defined by the regulator - in such a way that the
estimated interest rate shocks match the value of the shifls spread over a one-year period at
a 99.9% confidence level

The Bank applies limits in line with its risk appetite. The ALCO defines the limit
proportionately to regulatory capital (maximum 15%) for the change in the value of the
economic capital, and proportionately to the annual budgeted net interest income for net
interest income change.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the whole Board of Directors is also a
member - is the organizational unit responsible for the strategic management of interest rate
risks. Asset-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the
approved guidelines, responsibilities and limits.
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The Bank primarily manages its interest rate risks through the harmonization of the pricing
parameters of its assets and liabilities (re-pricing period, maturity, interest base) or with the
help of derivative hedging transactions (IRS, CIRS).

The Bank distributes the risks (including interest rate and liquidity risks) among the various
business lines with the help of a market-based internal transfer pricing system and so the
profitability of the various profit centres is defined account taken of the risk they assumed.

Composition of assets and equity and liabilities by currency

Open positions as at 31 December 2019

[ " Net positions in the balance sheet | Total net positions
Mei open long positions 1070 " 545 |
Net open short positons - 75 040 606
Ne pasitions 74 870 &1{

Open positions as at 31 December 2018

Met positions in the balance sheat Total net positions
MNet ﬂpB;'l long positians 'I!:E 384 1 I.H-ﬂ-
Net open shorl positions -21 304 408
Net positions =3 000 ﬁ:l.i

Value at Risk (VaR)

The Bank also applies risk-sensitive indicators to measure foreign exchange risks. The
regulatory VaR model is a particularly important methodology, a so-called historical varnance-
covariance model that assumes the normal distribution of yields with an expected value of
ZEro.

The model results show the expected loss, assuming a 10-day holding period and taking
account of the price fluctuations in the past 250 days at a 99% confidence level.

The regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 1 is calculated based on the standardised
approach defined by the CRR, while the Bank uses the modified, more conservative version
of the above methodology to calculate the regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 2,
where the variance-covariance matrix is derived from a stressed period instead of the past
250 days.

Results of the FX VaR:
HUF milion
T 422018 o 31.12.2018 |
60 day average of FX Var B 93 18
80 day average of FX Stress Var 122 B3
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Interest sensitivity

We measure the interest sensitivity of trading book positions with the so-called BPV — Basis
Point Value sensitivity, which shows the impact on profit or loss of a 1-bp shift in yields. We
calculate both the net and gross exposure; in the latter case, we obviously disregard the
mutual neutralisation effect of the long-term and short-term positions.

Compared to ils size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates. Accordingly, the portfolio’s interast sensitivity
overall is very low.

Interest sensitivity of the trading book:

HLE mwlivon
31.12.2018 31.12.2018
Total BFV gross 5,13 5.06
Total BPV net - 0,16 0,56 |

In the case of the EVE model used to measure the interest risks of the banking book, the
yield curve shocks are immediate and have lasting impacts that are immediately priced with
the net present value approach. The model is hypothetical since the general Interest
positions (for example loans, deposits, interbank transactions) are recognised in the books at
cosl, so re-pricing has no direct impact on either capital or the income statement.

The interest risk sensitivity of the banking book remained within both the regulatory limit and
the more stringent internal limit

The results of the basic stress scenario according to the EVE model:

IMAz20M0 Mazame
impact of m_p_y_?amﬂul shift (HUF midlion) 1 445 2212
in parcantage of CETH 3TN 6,1%

The NIl model is an income-based approach. The model shows to what extent the Bank's net
interest income/expense would change due to re-pricing during a one-year period, assuming
an unchanged balance sheet structure, in the case of an immediate, 200-bp parallel yield
curve shock.

Results of the basic stress scenario according to the NIl model:

HUF mutlion

i M.92.2019 M.azz20a
HUF 197 610
EUR 190 104
. CHF T 13
usn 203 20
Total o 597 740
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The changes in fair value of Baby loans — after eliminating the effect of changes in volume -
depend in particular on changes in the shape and position of the yield curve used for
caleulating discounted cash flows as future values of reference interest rates in the
calculation model derives also from the same yield curve by forward/forward calculation. The
Bank determined the interest sensitivity of Baby loans by parallel shifting the discount yieid
curve applied at year-end by +10 and -10 basis points:

changes In fair value when shifted by +10 basis points: HUF -45 million

changes in fair value when shifted by -10 basis points: HUF +44 million

6.11.3 Credit risk

Overview

The Bank devotes significant resources to ensuring its risk management functions are
comprehensive. In 2018 the risk management function was further enhanced.

The following major projects were conducted in 2018:

Finalisation of the IFRS 9 project

Updates in the ICAAP models, implementation of CVA

Continuation of projects aimed at development of risk-related IT infrastructure
Improvement of credit risk models and model management

NPL reduction strategy continued

Improvement of interest rate risk management and liquidity risk limit framework

Risk management framework

Risk Management is in charge of the Bank's risk management function and is the second line
of defence within the Bank. For certain risk types, the tasks of the second line of defence are
carried out by organisational units outside of Risk Management, having the necessary
competence and resources and who have an interest in lowering the risk levels accepted by
the Bank to ensure compliance with risk tolerance objectives, limits and other limitations. The
units outside of Risk Management are not part of risk management.

Chinl Enecuties
Officar/ib
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The Bank's Risk Management area performs its work based on EU legislation in force, the
Bank’s risk strategy, the resolutions, policies and guidelines of the Bank’s governing bodies,
and it represents the interests of the shareholders. Risk Management operations are
integrated into the Bank's processes.

The head of the Bank's Risk Management area is the member of the board responsible for
risk management (CRO), who reports to the CEQ of the Bank. He supervises the work of the
Risk Management units and is a member of the Bank's special risk management committees.

The head of Risk Management complies with the qualification and business reputation
requirements defined by EU legislation and other rules (fit and proper approach).

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

The CRO is an independent member of the Board of Directors responsible for risk
management and for creating and operating a comprehensive risk management framework
within the entire organisation.

The CRO Is independent from the business areas and does not have any management or
financial responsibility in terms of operative business lines or income-generating functions.

The CRO places particular emphasis on increasing the risk awareness of the Bank's
employees and on strengthening risk culture at every level.
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Executive bodies and committees
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board, representing the shareholders, is responsible for supervising the
Board of Directors and provides assistance with governing the Bank, particularly with taking
key decisions.

The Supervisory Board and its subcommitiees supervise the risk management process and
the current risk exposure based on regular reports and special information from the CRO.
The Supervisory Board approves the risk management strategy and the risk appetite
declaration proposed by the Bank.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors coordinates the strategic objectives of the Bank with the Supervisory
Board and regularly discusses the status of strategy implementation with the Supervisory
Board. Management is based on the principles of good corporate governance as well as
open debate between the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and members of the
committees.

Risk management is the primary responsibility of the CRO, while the Board of Directors, as a
collective body, has additional control tasks, including the supervision of risk management
functions and approving relevant risk management policies

Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the balance sheet with a
holistic approach, and as a key decision-making body it is also responsible for the existing
and future interest and foreign exchange risks within the banking book. Moreover, its task is
to optimise the Bank's risk/return profile to maintain proper liquidity and financing and to
comply with regulatory capital management requirements.

ALCO closely monitors the evolution of risk-weighted assets, capital levels, P&L forecasts
and the regulatory environment since these are key drivers of regulatory capital
requirements.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee (RiCo) is responsible for controlling the Bank's current and potential
future risk exposures and for developing and implementing the risk strategy, which includes
defining and controlling risk appetite. The Risk Committee deals with risk management, risk
regulation, risk models and methodologies and the comprehensive risk management for the
entire Bank within the framework of the ICAAP.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee (CRC) is the central decision-making body responsible for collective
credit decisions in terms of individual transactions/limits. It processes all the transactions at
its level of authorisation. Within the Credit Committee, the chairman of the CRC (the CRO,
board member responsible for risk management) is entitled to reject proposals irespective of
voting results ("veto right”).

Distressed Asset Committee (DAC)

The DAC is the body responsible for drafting strategies pertaining to non-performing
transactions and special transactions exhibiting a high risk of non-performance.

The main topicsiresponsibilities of the DAC are contained in its own rules of procedure; these
include, among others, the acceptance of strategies and restructuring plans, the assessment
of recovery indicators and the review of reports on implementing the action plans.
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Risk Strate

The Board of Directors evaluates and defines the risk strategy for the entire Bank, reflecting
the current business model, while the Supervisory Board approves this risk strategy.

The purpose of the Bank's Risk Strategy is to define the general framework for the
continuous and prudent management of risks related to the Bank's business model It
describes the basic principles that ensure the Bank's overall capital and liquidity adequacy as
well as the appropriate defence approach by integrating risk management into the business
activity, performing the strategic planning for the entire organisation and developing it in line
with business risks. The Strategy takes the ICAAP principles and results into account.

The Bank's risk strategy is efficiently incorporated into daily operations through the following
four pillars:

Risk principles and Risk appetite and
Internal risk regulation risk profile

Group-level risk strategy

Risk adjusted performance
measurement, steering
and reporting

Risk governance and
management functions

The risk management function has a homogeneous structure within the Bank with the usual
roles and responsibilities. Every activity covered by risk management is documented in the
Bank's regulations. The Bank defines the accepted structure of various risks based on its risk
appetite and risk profile. The central part of the risk management function is an efficient
governance model independent from business areas. All of these components ensure thal
the Bank efficiently applies the risk strategy throughout the organisation. The continuous
improvement of the methods used for measuring and managing risks is integrated into the
risk strategy during the annual update process.

Regul ireme
Compliance with regulatory requirements relies on three pillars in line with the Basel Il rules:
Pillar 1: SBHU's minimum capital requirement

Under Pillar 1, the Bank uses the following methods to define the minimum capital
requirement.

» Credit risk: Standardized Approach;

« Settlement risk: Standardized Approach;

» Market risk: Standardized Approach,

= Operational risk: Standardized Approach.
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Pillar 2: Internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) and internal liquidity
adequacy assessment process (ILAAP)

ICAAP is one of the key components of the risk management and control activity covering
the entire Bank, including all risk types and risk portfolios, primarily focusing on the
implementation of risk management and risk control from the perspective of Pillar 2. The
main objective of the ICAAP framework is to ensure alignment with the legislative
(regulatory) and internal expectations and requirements with the ultimate objeclive of
developing and applying appropriate risk and capital management, thereby assuring the
sustainable development of the Bank and ensuring capital adequacy in line with its
operations to cover all material and relevant risks. ILAAP supplements the ICAAP process
from the perspective of the Bank having appropriate liquidity and being eligible for financing.

Pillar 3: Disclosure requirements

Every year the Bank complies with the disclosure requirements defined based on the CRR.
The document is accessible at www.sberbank hu.

ICAAP framework

The Bank's general risk tolerance is defined based on the requirements described under
Pillar 2 and the internal capital defined based on Pillar 2. The risk coverage capital is defined
with appropriate, risk sensitive measurement methods and by aggregating all of the relevant
risk types. This forms the basis of risk management as part of an appropriate limit system.

The process developed by the Bank for managing its risk tolerance must be suitable for
determining, quantifying, managing and monitoring all material risks. Moreover, using the
process developed for managing risk tolerance, the capital suitable for hedging the assumed
risk can be properly estimated based on two approaches: going concern and gone concern.
This process ensures that the internal capital requirement and the Bank's regulatory capital
are covered by the available capital al all times.

Risk tolerance is closely related to the Bank's strategic business goals, its risk appetite and
risk profile as well as its capital adequacy, and ensures multidirectional interaction among
these components.

The process includes the following mutually interrelated phases/components:

sk
identiication
Ritk steering

Rink
L aggragstian

Risk coverage
Capital coni.
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Identification of risks and assessment of materiality

Based on the comprehensive risk assessments performed each year, the Bank determines
the risks that are present within the Bank's banking operations and defines their significance
and potential threat. This process includes both a quantitative assessment of the various risk
types and an assessment of the methods and systems used to monitor and manage existing
risks (qualitative assessment). So this risk assessment concept provides a comprehensive
overview of SBHU's risk profile.

Based on the results of the risk materiality assessment, material risks are managed based on
the policies, procedures and guidelines approved by the governing body or the committees
concemed on the basis of the periodic assessment and/or general supervisory process.

The assessment methodology used for measuring significant risks can be determined on a
case-by-case basis depending on the nature of the risk. The Bank applies both quantitative
and qualitative methods for fundamental risks (including stress tests) which are documented
in dedicated methods and manuals.

Quantitative definition of risks as per the ICAAP

Risk quantification is an integral part of the management process of individual risks.
Quantification helps to define the size of the risk capital requirement needed to jointly cover
expected and unexpected risks.

When defining the capital requirement the Bank applies the gone concern approach.

According to the risk strategy and the risk identification rules, the level of refinement and the
comprehensive nature of the calculation must follow the best market practice, taking into
account the volume, volatility and materiality of the underlying risk. The Bank applies Value-
at-Risk-type models for credit risk (IRB approach) and for operational and market risks. The
Standardised Approach is used in the case of the trading book since the exposure Is
insignificant based on its share of the general risk exposure. This approach is regularly
validated against the banks’ internal VaR model,

Credit risk

The internal ratings-based approach is one of the standard VaR models proposed under
Pillar 1 (single factor model) by the regulator. Accordingly, it defines the internal capital
required to cover credit risk as a credit loss, where the actual loss will most likely not be any
higher. The internal ratings-based model focuses on losses stemming from non-
performance, and it is based on the estimated values of the PD, LGD and EaD parameters.

The internal ratings-based model does not cover certain semi-credit risks; for more
information on this, please refer to the detailed internal policies. For portfolios where the
Bank does not have the necessary data (PD or LGD) to apply the internal ratings-based
model, the Standardised Approach is used. Whenever possible, however, the Bank applies
the internal ralings-based approach.

The value at risk of loans is calculated at a 99.9% confidence level.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the actual asset value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet positions changes as a result of market price changes (intereslt rates, equity
prices, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices, etc.), which may lower the Bank's profit
and capital.
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Market risk — trading book

The Bank classifies as positions held with trading intent the positions intended to be resold
short term, or positions intended to benefit from expected differences between buying and
selling prices. The Bank's trading activity is nol significant compared to its size, but it applies
a complex system to measure and manage market risks in line with international risk
management standards.

Market risk — banking book

When quantifying the extent of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approaches in line with regulatory recommendations and guantifies both the
short term (income related) and longer-term impacts (appearing in the change of the
economic value of the capital). When quantifying interes! rate risk, the Bank uses scenarios
representing various interest rate changes. From among these, we assume a +/- 200 basis
points, prompt, parallel yield curve shock as the basic stress scenario. In order to analyse
interest rate sensilivity in more detail the Bank also analyses the impact of additional
scenarios which simulate the different changes in the slope and the shape of the yleld curve.

Operational risk

The Bank defines the capital requirement to be allocated to operational risks using the
Standardised Approach under both pillars.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the institution not being able to comply with its obligations
stemming from the expected and unexpected current and future cash flows and collaterals
without impacting its daily operation or its market position. These may include, among others,
The Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits in
line with the international and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the
parent bank, and manages these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservative liquidity buffer.

Other risks

The Bank allocates an additional risk capital requirement to other risks on top of the internal
capital requirement already estimated It defines the amount allocated to other risks based
on the amount of previously identified losses (if available) and the expert opinion on the
imminent adverse impact of risks, also using the results of the stress test

Risk aggregation

During the risk guantification phase of the process developed to manage risk tolerance, the
Bank assesses the amount of internal capital needed to cover individual material risks, This
is followed by the risk aggregation phase during which the internal capital needed to cover all
of the Bank's material risks can be estimated.

The Bank's total capital requirement (total internal capital) can be estimated by aggregating
the internal capital requirement of the different material risks (including the capital buffer).
When aggregating internal capital requirements we assume that the losses stemming from
the different risks are in perfect correlation. The assumption is conservative, but for the time
being the Bank does not have sufficient experience or enough data to make a reliable
assessment of the advantages of diversification. The Bank continuously collects data so that
it can define these potential advantages later on.
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The entire internal capital requirement is compared with the risk coverage capital. The capital
available for the Bank must be higher than both of these.

Stress tests

The Bank performs stress tests as one of the basic tools for managing material risks. Stress
tests are carried oul separately for each material risk. The purpose of stress teslts is o
determine the Bank's vulnerability in the case of extreme adverse circumstances, to
formulate corrective measures and to ensure the long-term stability of the Bank. Stress tests
are also used to determine the Bank's sensitivity to factors that are not part of the
quantification of internal capital. Moreover, for risks where the VaR model is not applied, the
results of the stress tests may also form the basis for assessing internal capital. However, as
a general rule, stress test results do not define the level of internal capital since they mode!
extreme conditions.

The Bank performs at least one stress test every year. In the case of sudden market
changes the Bank analyses the potential impacts of the change on its economic position and
decides based on the obtained results whether stress tests need to be performed more
frequently.

Capital allocation

The targeted risk profile of the Bank is achieved by allocating the risk coverage capital, which
takes place as part of the risk tolerance model. The Bank allocates capital to cover every
basic risk as well as the other risks that have been classified as material during the
identification and assessment of risks. The allocation ensures that the Bank's risk coverage
capital provides appropriate protection in the event of adverse circumstances.

Credit risk

The credit risk of Sberbank in Hungary stems primarily from credit type products, although it
has some other on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments.

Credit risk management devotes considerable effort every year to identifying and measuring
credit risks as accurately as possible, introducing appropriate controls and optimising lending
processes from the perspective of nsk management.

In the course of 2018 the following significant progress was made:

Corporate and SME

In 2018 the following main developments and projects were launched to revise and develop
current lending processes and risk management methods with the objective of improving
efficiency:

+  The new SME and corporate lending policy was developed and implemented, defining
key risk parameters, standards and the risk appetite related to the Bank's lending
activity, taking account of group-level expectations at both segment and portfolio level.

«  An IT project supporting credit-monitoring activity was also launched.

« A new rating model was introduced for rating real estate project clients and
transactions.

« Lending processes related to the large corporate and SME segments were reviewed in
order to improve efficiency.
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Retail

+ The automated solution for supporting credit decisions in the Retail segment went live
in March 2018 and was implemented in the Methodus decision engine application.

«  We introduced a new rating model for personal loans, which screens clients applying for
this product a lot more efficiently,

- The preparation of client ratings in the retail segment was automated with the help of an
interface call running in the background.

+ Preparatory steps were taken to launch a project that also includes the reorganisation
of micro-business risk management.

Risk measurement

To quantify the credit risk of SBHU's loan transactions the Bank has implemented bank-level
risk models, One of the key risk indicators is the PD (Probability of Default), which defines
the probability of the client’s default within 12 months based on qualitative and quantitative
performance indicators. The LGD (Loss Given Default), the CCF (Credit Conversion Factar)
and the EAD (Exposure at default) depend on transaction specific characteristics.

SBHU has its own PD models, which can be applied to credit applicants where the Banking
Group is present. The Bank uses a generic model for cross-border transactions and for
clients for whom there is no country-specific model.

Risk measurement components

Debtors’ credit risk has two components — Expected Loss (EL) covered by provisions, and
Unexpected Loss (UL) covered by capital. EL is the loss expected from the given transaction
within 12 months. UL comes from the variance around the expected loss. Expected loss can
be broken down into the following three components:

EL = PD x LGD x EAD

These three components are defined as follows:

« PD (Probability of Default) is the probability of a client defaulting within one year.
Probabilities of default are classified into rating classes with the help of the SBHU
master-scale.

s LGD (Loss given Default) represents the estimated amount of the expected loss on a
non-performing loan at the time the default occurs, projected to the expected
exposure at default. The Bank never assumes that 100% of the outstanding debt can
be recovered by selling the collateral or through other means; instead, a lower value
is realistically expected. When defining the LGD rate, the costs incurred during the
collection, when selling collateral as well as other economic losses are also taken into
account, The LGD is determined based on the collateral type and other transaction-
specific characteristics. The risk models determining the LGD rate have been
developed based on the results of the completed collection procedures of non-
performing clients.

« EAD (Exposure at Default) is the exposure that the Bank expects when the default
occurs, It is defined by transaction-specific rates such as the expected drawdown rate
or the expected market price of derivative transactions
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Rating process

During the client/transaction rating process only the models approved by SBHU board
members (previously by SBEU) can be used. The PD value defined by the Rating "master-
scale’ is used for the second pillar capital calculation, risk pricing and to select the lending
process. At SBEU, the rating is based on the annual PD, which disregards the lotal cycle
price of the loan Therefore SBHU uses the same 12-month expected loss approach.

Breakdown of the Bank's credil risk rating grades by PD range:

lower | averege | higher risk
| border PD border | classes Risk category
000%| 002% 003% 1| high grade
0.03%| 004%| 0,04% 2 | high grade
 004%| 005%| 008%| 3| high grade |
008%| 007%| 008% 4 | high grade il
0.08%| 010%| 011% 5 | high grade
0.11%| 0.13%| 0.16% @ | high grade
0.16%| 018% 0.22% 7 high grade
022%| 025%] 030%| 8]highgrade
030%| 035%| 041% 9 | high grade |
041%| 048%| 056% 10 | standard grade
056%| 086%| 0,78% 11 | standard grade
0.78%| 081%| 1.0™% 12 | standard grade
107% |  125%| 147% 13 | standard grade
147% ]  173%|  2.02% 14 | standard grade
202% | 2,33%1 2,79% 18 aumue-g;ﬁﬁ
2.79% 3.27% 3.84% 16 average grade
384%| 451%| 520%| 17| average grade |
329;& 8.20% 7.28% 18 average grade
7.28%| 854%| 1003% 19 | average grade
1003%| 1,77%| 1281% 20 | below average grade
1381% | 1620%| 1901%| 21| below average grade
| 1801%| 2251% 2619%|  22|belowaveragegrade
2618% | 30,73% | 36.068% 23 | below average grade
36.06% | 4232% | 49.66% 24 below average grade
ADBE% | 58.28% | 100.00% 26 | below average grade
100.00% | 100,00% | 100,00% 28 | impaired
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Corporate and SME credit risk monitoring and governance

SBHU regularly monitors its receivables in line with the approved processes. Based on the
predefined early warning signs the process identifies clients with low creditworthiness, and
with the help of appropriate evaluation it detects the critical characteristics that may lead to
changes in the commitment and the client's risk profile. Depending on the risk level,
receivables with performance problems are forwarded to the designated areas as
restructuring and workout cases for further management. During the process the Bank
monitors the quality of the credit exposure within a specific period, and performs
measurements if differences are observed,

Lending process

The Bank applies uniform lending processes by client segment based on a standard
methodology and approach, and performs an independent risk rating while clearly
segregating risk and business objectives, using uniform standards and principles, and
applies standardised credit application and risk management tools that support risk analysis
and decision-making in line with the predefined conditions.

The partner risk category, the level of exposure and the underlying transaction are the main
processing parameters in the course of evaluating transactions and taking decisions.

The methodology used during the lending process is standardised in the system. Given the
high degree of complexity of the credit decision process and as a result of the incomplete
system support at present, in particular with respect to the active business activities with a
low risk profile, the back-testing points were incorporated into the process to support
efficiency. '

The purpose of the method is to reduce manual work and further operational risks.
Reducing risk concentration

A comparative back-testing, monitering and limit framework has been applied for credit risks.
Risk rating models ensure regular evaluations.

Credit risks are managed by numerous control points and processes. The overall risk
assumption process is developed and fine-tuned on a regular basis, reflecting the evolution
of credit risks identified within the Bank. Control points have been incorporated into internal
policies and they also function in practice. The Risk Committee and the management of the
Bank are regularly informed about developments related to credit risks, and they are able to
manage and control processes based on relevant reports.

Within the corporate seament, the SME segment shows trends similar to 2017. Thanks to
strong acquisition activity, both the number of clients in the business segment and their
overall exposure have increased. Most of the growth came from the top segment. The
change in risk-weighted assets was negligible due to the high coverage rate.

Back-testing is carried out based on reports thal have been developed to measure and
quantify specific risks. Portfolio level limits were set up to reduce risk concentration.

A high level of concentration risk is taken into account for the portfolio due to the significant
aggregate exposure of the client groups. The Bank is striving to diversify the portfolio in the
SME segment in the course of product-based lending. The implemented Credit Policy also
pays attention to the problems caused by portfolio concentration and attempts to reduce
them by regulating regular monitoring

Although the overall credit risk is considered high compared to the Bank's other risk
components based on both quantitative and qualitative assessments, due chiefly to the main
distribution of credit risks affecting the entire portfolio, the overall portfolio quality is
continuously improving thanks to prudent controls. The economic environment is positive and
the centrally managed lending programmes facilitate the development of the credit market.
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Thanks lo the workout activity of past years the credit portfolio has continued to stabilise
following a thorough consolidation of the portfolio.

Country and transfer risks

Business is clearly focused on areas where either SBHU or the parent bank is present on the
market with their own activities. The country limit methodology framework has been
implemented, which is based on the strategy of cross-border risk appetite. Every operation is
performed via sub limits allocated from the total limit at bank level Monitoring, allocation and
review processes take place centrally under SBHU's responsibility.

Retail credit risk management and monitoring

Lending process

Implementation of the project aimed at reframing micro-business lending
Introduction of re-optimised process

Automated client rating

Automated legal compliancefinternal risk framework check

Risk Monitoring

We comprehensively analyse retail and micro-business product groups on a monthly basis
and share the results at the GRC meeting held in Hungary and with the headquarters in
Vienna by sending them the regular PQR/Vintage report.

Portfolio overview - credit risks

Risk controlling uses the fair value of the assets for calculating the relevant exposure. From
an accounting perspective, exposures are recorded based on the carrying amount,

In the course of 2019 total exposures related to the Bank's credil risks did not change
significantly, but there was significant restructuring from off-balance sheet assets to on-
balance sheet assets, and also among the various segments.

Forbearance

To comply with Sberbank principles, internal credit policies contain special requirements and
standards related to restructuring.

We have reviewed and updated the current internal policies related to restructuring so that
they fully comply with the requirements of the EBA and of Article 99 (4) of Regulation (EU)
No. 575/2013 pertaining to reports on restructuring and non-performing exposures,

A forborne exposure' is a receivable originating from a transaction’ for which the Bank
gave a discount/concession in view of the debtor's financial difficulties. This can happen if the
following two criteria are met;

" Restructured recevable gocarding to Decres 382016 (X.11) of MNE

According 1o Decros 38/2018 (X.11) of MNB the recewvable: loans containing concesslon, provided to the obligor al the rguest
of thes debtor or obkgor (heremafter coliectively: obligor) of the institution, purchased secaivables and receivables stemming from
oiher transactions consrered cash loans of from other financial sendces, as well as commitments related o lending thit may
bhecome a receivable bazed on the customea’s decmsion (heminafter collactvely: recanvable)
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s The debtor experiences or might experience difficulties in meeting their financial
obligations (they have “financial difficulties”), and
« The Bank and the debtor mutually agree on some discount/concession, which may be
one of the following options:
o The previous contractual terms are modified
o The Bank or SBEU Group partly or completely refinances the outstanding
transaction: the original contract is replaced (either in full or in part) by a
contract structured in such a way that it can handle the risk more securely
within the SBEU Group as the debtor was unable to fulfil the original
conditions.
o Activation of conditions previously laid down in the contract (“integrated
forbearance clauses’) based on the Bank's approval, which modify the
contractual terms.

Based on the above, the purpose of granting discounts/concessions for clients is to enable
them to return to a sustainable servicing of debt.

We classify restructured transactions into the following categories:

e performing restructured (including transactions during their probationary peried and
those cured from their non-performing status)
« non-performing restructured.

The following transactions are classified as performing:

« the exposure was performing prior to the restructuring, and
« the granted concession does not reclassify the transaction as non-performing.

An exposure previously classified as restructured has to meet the following conditions to be
removed from the restructured status:

« It should be classified as “performing”: the exposure must be considered as
“perfarming” (including reclassification from “non-performing”)

« Minimum two-year probationary period must have elapsed: at least 2 years have
passed since the exposure last (in the case of multiple ratings) received the
“performing forborne” or “forborne upgraded to performing” rating.

« Debtor regularly paid repayment instalment during last year: since the start of
the second half of the probationary period (at the latest) the debtor has regularly paid
a substantial part of the interest and principal debt.

+ Debtor has no arrears beyond 30 days: none of the debtor's exposures is past due
by more than 30 days at the end of the probationary period.

All of the conditions described above must be fulfiled simultaneously to terminate the
restructured status of any exposure. Even if just one of the conditions is not met, the
probationary period must be extended until the end of the next quarter. The restructured
status of a non-performing exposure cannot be terminated.
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The following table presents SBHU's exposures classified as restructured as at 31 December
2019:

3M.12.2019 parforming forbome | non-performing forborne Total forbome
exposures Exposures axposures
ﬂ:ﬂwimn [ i 1 o 8157 |
Loan promisarry nofes 1 0 .
ot 8 188 a70 9158
B 31.42.2018 performing forbome ";F',;,'pﬂ“m’:'"“ Total farborne
OXposUres P AXpoBLne
:L&E“EJL? I:liﬂm il had) | 2 187 10 408
Loan prosmisorry notes 118 o 18
'Futa! 1787 2787 10 521

Non-performing loan portfolio (NPL)

The quality of the loan portfolio Is protected by regular reviews and the continuous monitoring
of credit exposure.

The purpose of the monitoring process is to:

o identify symptoms and threats
= carry out preventive activities to preserve the quality of the loan portfolio
« maximise recovery of the Bank's assels

The early recognition of risks is a key part of risk management and Is aimed at avoiding or
mitigating the Bank's expected credit loss. The sooner negative developments are identified
and the more consistent the implemented solutions are, the more adequate the restructuring
options will be and the more likely they will be successful.

If the monitoring process reveals signs about the borrower suggesting that the barrower may
not be able to meet their contractual obligations and repay their loan, the transaction is
forwarded to the Restructuring and Workout (RWO) Department.
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According to SBHU's internal policies, default occurs when the Bank observes one of the
following events at the client:

Default events (non-retail clients)
Days past due - A n@imm obligation of the borrower is s past due for more than 90 days.
Bankruptey — The Deblor, the Court or a third-party files forfinitiates bankruptey or a debl seltlemant
procedure against the Deblor,

Enforcement — Enforcement proceedings are in progress against the Debtor

Liquidation — The debtor is the subject of Ilquudatmn proceedings. The client is given a rating of 26.
Man-performing restructuring - If restructuring is due to the fact that the deblor is unable to meet
| their contractual financial abligations,

Write-off — The dlaanl s debls have been writien nﬂ‘ in pm‘l ar in full,

N L B =

e 2 ol L s o e e~ = b s

loan quality.

Default of money market transactions — Decision lo close an open position prematurely.
Cross-default (bank group) — The client's “defaull vis-a-vis another member of the SBEU Group
(SBAG and subsidiaries),

11 Payment difficulties, expected cash flow problems — The obligors will probably nol be able to meet

their payment obligations in view of their cash flow problems, resulting in a client default.

12| Cross-default (client group) — Defaull of a deblor group member.
13 | The debtor will probably not be able to meet their financial obligations In the future
{(Unlikeliness to pay - UTP) = This category indicates some financial difficullies of the debtor and

some “other” deterioration of the ioan quality not covered by the other defaull categones.

Dahuﬂavmtu (retail clients)
Days past due - A significant obligation of the borrower is pas! due for more than 90 days {according |
to Section 11.2.1.1. of the policy).

)

Write-off — The clienl’s debts have been written off (with a significant, credit-related economic loss)
according to Section 11.2.1.2.
| Sale - The receivable had to be sold a! a loss according to Section 11.2.13.

“Fraud - Fraud commitied by the client - confirmed by Compliance or the Fraud Gommitlee as a fraud
— resulling in a client default,

—

=}

impairment — Individual or collective impairment or risk provision had to be recognised (for first time
_or repeatedly) due to a deterioration in the loan qualily according to Section 11.2.1.8.

| w &

“Non-performing restructuring — If restructuring is due to the fact that the deblor is unable 1o meet
| their contractual financial obligations,
T Probable cash flow problems - The obligors will probably nol be able to meet their payment
abligations in view of cash flow problems, resulting in a client default,

- pa

8 The debtor will probably not be able to meet their financial obligations in the future
{Unlikeliness to pay — UTP) = This category indicates some financial difficulties of the debtor and
_some “other” deterioration of the loan quality not covered by the other default categories.

] Cross default due to joint and several obligation — The reason for the default is the default of the
joint and several obligation. (Joinl and several obligation: an exposure where two or more abligors
have the joint and sevaral liability to repay the loan (joint and several deblor) nol including guaraniees
and guarantors.)

In case of the above mentioned events, the receivable is presented in stage 3.

The recovery from default starts, when there are no more default causer factors, meaning the
customer does not breach any non-performing status trigger, 3 consequitive months before
the start of the recovery. At the end of the recovery period, the receivable can be transferred
from stage 3 to stage 2.

During the recovery period, it must be measured whether the customer can perform its
liabilities or not.
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The length of the recovery period for any of the default events depends on the frequency of

the exposure's repayment:

Froquency of repayment Recovery period
Monthly £ months
Quaredy 8 months

Half year 12 manths

Yearly 24 moniths

If a customer has more deals with different payment schedules, the longest recovery period
will be the standard,

In case of non-performing restructuring the followings must be fulfilled to reach recovery.
the recovery starts when the restructuring takes action (refinancing concluded)
the recovery period can not be shorter than 12 month, counting from the last existing

factor:

oo o

from the moment of the restructuring,

from the moment, that the exposure was graded or become non-performing

if the restructuring contains grace period, the expiry of it.

in addition, the recovery period can not be shorter, than that period during the

debtor performs payment in a significant amount. A significant payment is the
amount of a defaulted debt or a written off amount, if the debt was not default.
Or the period, when the debtor performed the repayment of the restructuring

obligation.

The table below shows the evolution of the non-performing loan portfolio for the financial
years 2018 and 2019:

Client exposures (HUF)

31.12.2019

14915

NPL rifie

Impairment

The Bank’s credit risk is the risk that the deblor of the loan causes a financial loss for the
Bank by not meeting some of their credit-related obligations. To cover these losses, the Bank
recognises impairment in line with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Also in line with the provisions of the standard, the Bank applies the expected loss model to
determine the required amount of impairment and provisions, i.e. it takes into account the
loss events that occurred after the initial recognition or that are expected to occur during the
life of the expasure.

Al the end of each month the Bank examines whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired.

5,36%

3.42.4010

The following events may serve as objective evidence:

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor

The recovery of the loan is only probable by claiming the collateral securing the loan
The debtor's obligations are past due for more than 80 days

The loan had to be restructured, for example due to substantial changes in conditions,
interest rate decreases, etc. (with the exception of changes driven by the market or due

to technical reasons)

The collateral value has substantially decreased and no other cash flows are available

for the loan repayment

The client is unwilling to cooperate, despite prevailing payment difficulties
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It is likely that bankruptcy proceedings or some other financial recrganisation will be
initiated against the borrower

The client has no regular manthly income

The client's rating has detenorated to default or pre-default rating categories, etc.

Every credit exposure, on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet items must be taken into
account when recognising impairment and provisions, irrespective of their credit ratings. This
means the Bank not only rates the transactions where a significant deterioration in credit
quality can be observed, or where the credil risk itself is high. The valuation covers every
financial asset with the exception of assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Off-balance sheet exposures should be taken into account for calculating impairment and
provisions depending on the likelihood of their drawdown. The Bank applies the CCF values
permitted by the regulator based on the CRR to quantify this amount.

The Bank classifies its exposures into one of the stages defined by IFRS 9 (Stage 1, Stage
2, Stage 3 and POCI), taking account of their deterioration compared with the credit quality
upon initial recognition, which also defines the method for recording impairment and
provisions.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

If a significant increase in credil risk is observed compared with the initial recognition of the
financial asset, then the financial asset will be categorised into the Stage 2 category in line
with the provisions of IFRS 9.

The Bank determines a significant increase in credit risk after considering several
parameters together, during which it takes into account, among other things, the
classification of the given transaction during regular monitoring, its current default and any
restructuring, if applicable.

Signs observed when classifying exposures into Stage 2!

cwn:Mun criteria Retail segment Nan-Retail segment
Monitoring status: red or black, o . .
cllents on watch list Slage 2 (if data is available) Stage 2
Rating 26 [ Stage 2 Stage 2
Farbearands flag Stage 2 5?“& 2
DRD = 30 days Stage 2 Stage 2
SICR indicator. Significant increase in Stage 2 (if reliable rating data is a2
credil risk available) Stag
Collective a_saasamml (based on i I -
exiracrdinary decision supporied by Stage 2 (at portiolic level, based Stage 2 (al portfolio level, based
the Risk Commities and-approved by on expert evallation) on expert evaluation)
the Board of Direclors)

If both initial and current client rating information is available when evaluating a significant
increase in credit risk, the deterioration of the rating by at least 7 notches in absolute terms is
also taken into account as a factor indicating the significant increase in credit risk (SICR
indicator).

For transactions without a2 rating an average rating was determined based on the data of the
performing portfolio with a rating, and this value Is reviewed at least on an annual basis.
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We indicate low risk portfolios with internal rating grades 1 to 8. In their case, the SICR
indicator is not taken into account when classifying them into stages. However, the Bank
always examines the other criteria of Stage 2 classification for these transaclions as well.

Transactions for which the Bank has already determined a significant increase in credit risk
once can only be reclassified back from Stage 2 to Stage 1 if not a single factor indicating the
significant increase in credit risk or indicating default exists with respect to the current cycle
or the previous reporting cycle.

The Bank determines the need to recognise impairment individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
significant individually. A threshold has been determined to differentiate exposures thal are
individually significant and not significant, which is based on the client's total exposure to the
Bank. For recording impairment and provisions the Bank considers receivables to be
individually significant where the total value of the client's on-balance sheet and off-balance-
sheet exposures exceeds HUF 100,000,000. In addition, individual assessment is also
performed for contingent liabilities due to litigated receivables and equity investments, as
these are also managed individually. Moreover, irrespective of the above significance
threshold, the Bank may classify any client/client group into the category to be assessed
individually.

For individually significant exposures, the Bank uses the discounted cash flow (DCF) method
to determine the required level of impairment and provisions. Accordingly, if objective
evidence exists, the impairment loss is equivalent to the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. When calculating the present value of estimated future cash
flows, the cash flows originating from any regular future income and cash flows that can be
expected from enforcing collateral must always be included (reduced by the cost of acquiring
and selling the collateral) depending on whether the Bank assumes a going concern or
liquidation of the debtor.

In the going concern approach we assume that the client will repay the principal and the
interest, so the debtor's economic difficulties are only temporary and they will be able to
repay the exposure from the future cash flows of their core aclivities. By contrast, in the gone
concern approach we assume that we can only collect the debt by enforcing the collateral,

When calculating collective impairment — contrary to the method described for recognising
individual impairment — we estimate cash flows at portfolio level. In such cases, assets with
similar credit risk characteristics are grouped into a given portfolio. Accordingly, cash flows
can mostly be assessed in the given portfolio based on past experiences, taking account of
their future evolution based on the lifetime component of the applied impairment models.
Determining the appropriate risk parameters used for the calculation is crucially important
when calculating collective impairment.

When determining future expected cash flows, some macroeconomic factors are also
considered (for example: unemployment rate, net average wages, industrial output, GDP,
etc.).

We estimate the difference between the carrying amount and future cash flows not only for
the next 12 months but also with the LECL approach, meaning we guantify the expected loss
resulting from a default event occurring during the lifetime of the financial instrument in the
cases where the standard requires us to do so.

For exposures classified in Stage 1 the Bank uses the 12-month expected loss approach,
while for exposures classified in Stage 2 and Stage 3 it uses the lifetime expected loss
approach
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We calculate the amount of impairment and provisions to be assessed collectively at the end
of each month, and we recalculate it if any of the applied parameters changes significantly.
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Sberbank Group has a uniform process for developing, verifying, approving and back-testing
risk models in accordance with IFRS 9. The applied methodology and the assumptions are
reviewed on an annual basis to reduce any possible difference between the losses
recognised based on the assessment and the losses actually incurred.

Concentration risk

Concentration risks of receivables from customers in the balance sheet and memorandum
accounts shown in the following tables are grupped by the risk faclors listed as follows:

customers’' geographical region
- composition according to main currencies
- customers' industrial classification

The following tables show the on-balance and off-balance gross exposures broken-down by

categories above.

Geographical concentration

Concantration of on-balance exposures from 31.12.2019

customers broken down by geographical region Domestic Russia EU outside EU Total
hghomde R 0 641 0 8812

 standard giade 140 848 176| 12183 4189 | 157385
average grade 80 &1 18 196 | 816 81846
below average grade 14079 0 Y 1| 14143
mpaired 14 301 1 652 13 14 967

Total 250 217 192| 13703 5051 278163

Concentration of on-balance exposuras from 31.12.2018

customers broken down by geographical reglon Domaestic Russia EU outside EU Total
high grade ) 5 051 0 0 a7 5988
slandard grada 1720 138 8597 2074 B8 033
average grade 104 030 44 6636 37| 110747
balow avarage grade 14 G 14 85 55 14 818
smpaired 24833 1 850 58| 25552

Total 226 528 197 16 148 2265 245138

Concentration of off-balance exposures from 31122019

customers broken down by goographical region | Domastic Russia EU outside EI:.I_ Total
high grade 21000 2 259 4715 6 27 980
standard grade 51 351 2 1 18 513712

. average grade 19712 2 2 2 19718
hﬁgw avarage grado 1208 1] a [i] 1 2@_
mpaired 316 0 o 0 6

Total 93 677 2263 4718 26| 100 684
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Concentration of off-balance exposures from 3122018
customers broken down by geographical region | Domestic |  Russia EU | outside EU |  Total
~ high grade T 7488 1615 0 0 11 071

standard grade 64 BG4 8038 5 140 1984 80 027

averige grads taarT o 2 0 19279
| below average grade - 2402 0 0 0 2402
| impaired 1 030 0 0 0 | 030
Total 95 020 11 654 5142 1984| 113 p09

The Bank’s activity focuses mainly on domestic customers, which has not changed in recent
years. The vast majority of EU transactions consist of deals realized together with other
members of the Group in the EU. Based on the fundamentals of the ownership of the Group,
the risks to Russia also appear as part of the banking strategy, typically in the form of trade

finance transactions.

Currency cancentration

Cancentration of on-balance exposures from

31122019
customers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF usp Other | Total
high grade 7331|2481 0 0 o|  emz
standard grade B 103056 | 52459 1027 851 o| 157306
average arade Bas78| 12107 146 16 o| 81845
below average grade 13815 174 1_5.‘5 22 0 14144
impairad 9 877 1821 3261 6 1| 14068
Total = 203666 69047 as62| 895 1| zm1s3
Concentration of an-balance exposures from 31.12.2018
customaers broken down by curroncies HUF EUR CHF Uso Other Total
igh grade 5192 759 0 ar o soes
standard grade 61786| 24 781 48 1438 o] esoz3
| average grade 78543| 30600 1 289 15 ol 110747
below avarage grade 14 (58 537 1?? 51 ] t4§1!
impaired wrzz|  de|  3e3| s| 1| 2sss2
Tolal 119302 sBer7| 54| 1647 1| 245138
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Concentration of off-balance exposures from 31122019

customers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF usp Other Tatal
high grade 10 962 8012 0 8 o] 27060
slandard grade 23 596 27 376 [t} 0 0 51372
average grade 15942 3738 0 38 o] 19718
balow average grade 1298 0 0 0 0 1298
impalned 75 241 0 L] 0 316

Toltal 61273 39 367 1] 44 0| 100684

GConcentration of off-balance exposures from 3422018

customers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF usp Other Total
high grade 6391 4 680 o 0 o] 1on
standard grade 24 238 55 117 o | ] B0 027
average grade 17 2680 1843 1] '8 ] 18279
below average grade 2008 304 0 0 0| 2402
impaired 793 237 0 0 0 1030

Total 6D 801 62 931 (1] T ol 113808

The majority of the Bank's exposure to customers is denominated in HUF or EUR; there is a
lesser degree of USD-based risk-taking, CHF exposures are remnants of old, gradually
decreasing risk takings. The Bank strives to ensure the presence of the appropriate natural
hedge in its foreign currency transactions and does not provide speculative foreign currency

loans.
Industry concentration
31.12.2019

Fr;“mmm of on-balance exposures high standard | avorage balow

‘customers_broken down industry grado grade grade gracho Impalired Total
Agnculture, forestry and fishing 157 1822 3034 672 124 5 809
‘Mining and quarrying 5 0 0 0 0 a5
Manufacturing 541 16 589 7731 466 1851 27178
| Electricity, gas. steam and air condition supply ] 6611 498 148 63 7318
Water supply 0 29 388 s 17 450
Cansiruction 738 | T 3284 254 1280 7483
Wholesale and retad trade 3632 12777 12 369 1100 1300 31178
Transport and storsge 153 1180 3 507 1245 161| 6246
Accommodaban and food service actvities 135 1208 2880 | 274 18] 4621
Informalion and communication 145 13 203 2250 104 38| 15750
Financial and insurance activties a7z 1 578 1 607 129 18 3 805
Fea! estate acilvities 80 24 353 1243 180 1008 | dosgz
Professional, sclenfific and tech. aclivities 189 473 2285 541 151 3643 |
Administrative and support service activities 110 1215 868 104 158 2495
Public edminstration and defence, gompulsory 1314 1138 a a 0 2453
Education 755 411 g8 14 15 1593
Human health services and social work act. BES 216 B4 7 a4 41 1553
Arts, enlertainmant and recreation 334 a 151 140 63 697
Other services 353 53 a7a 168 k3| o978
Foreign organizations, bodles 0 0 0 [ 0 i
Individulas 0 71735 28 226 7 850 6452 | 114303
Total 8810 156 397 B2 B46 14 _142 14 868 | 278163
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31.12.2018
Concentration of on-balunce oxposures from | high | standard | average | DElOW
customers broken down industry grade grade grade impaired Tatal
Agricuiure, forestry and fishing 88| 2089 1839 687 104 4777
Mining and quarrying 1] 0 ] 0 0 ;]
| Manufacturing 378 i4 888 9043 406 1914| 26720
Elactricily, gas, steam and air condition supply 0 6644 538 4 58| 7248
Water supply il 29 a3z 20 ) [l
Construction 555 1625 2930 521 1469| 7000
Wholesake and retail trade 3363 6 578 14 128 | 1810 2007| 27887
Transpor and slorage | 1380 3383 307 181 5 200
Accommodation and food service activities 102 B& 3147 173 91 1679
Information and comimunication 128 3661 13348 | ik} 111 17 333
Finangial and insurance activilies ar 1147 a8z 163 12 1841
Real estale activites 75 2618 a2 ey 1194 azn 39 789
Professional, scientlfic and tech, activities 182 531 1072|  a8s 13| 4284
Adminstrative and support service activities. 3T 1650 711 128 B54 3380
Public administralion and defence, compuisary o 2782 o 17 ] 2799
Education 798 738 415 19 1% 1 669
Humin health services and social work acl 0 218 Tar 48 288 1282
Aits, enlertainment and recreation 0 a2 15% as 59 nz
Dther services 0 26 440 102 20 568
Foreign organizations, bodies B 0 ____ e 0 o o 0
Individulas 0| 41480 22904 8892|  15178| 8813
Total 5988 BB033| 110 747 14818 25562 245138
31422018
Concentration of off-balance exposures from high standard avorage m-
customers broken down industry grade grade | grade grade impaired Total
| Agncullure, forestry and [ishing 160 280 1117 215 1 1713
Mining and quamying 1 1] a o 0 1
Manyfacturing B0D £ 825 1432 74 74 o214
Electricity, gas, steam and air condition supply 0 0 2726 5 DEEIE
| Water supply 0 Ell 96 0 [} 67
Consiruction 11069 12 393 4 928 111 241 | 28742
Wholesale and retall trade 7 088 17 384 3739 196 0| 28400
Transper and storage 3 489 41 1457 42 0| 5399
Accommedation and food service aclivies 57 700 187 57 o 1001
Intormation and communication 207 515 352 155 | 0 1228
Financial and insurance actvities: 4 068 830 i ) 0] 4908
feal estate activiies ] 8740 310 286 0 o 424
Professional. ncientific and tech_activilies B4 1247 2 064 78 o a0z
Administralive and supporl sarvice acivitiss 121 sap 4584 15 o| 121
Public adrinistration and defence, compulsory 108 a a 1] 0 100
Education 0 2 18 ) 0 48
Human health servces and sacial work act 72 40 127 4 0 243
Arts, enterininmont and recreation 5 i 16 8 0 1]
Other services 4 36 55. 1 0 98
Fuminn organizations, bodies ] o a (1] 0 &
Individuals 80 1252 BA5 50 0 2 007
Total 27 981 51 360 18 721 1297 316 | 100 684
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Concentration of off-balance exposures from high standard | average .hv:!::.

customers broken down industry grada grade grada grade Impaired Total
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 67 216 792 130 0 1214
Miming and quarrying Q o i 0 (1] 30 |
Manufacturing - 248 7189 1603 142 19| o938
Electricily, gas, steam and air conation supply 0 0 2147 0 | 27
Water supply K 0 3 1" 0 45
Construction 4 380 14 854 3535 143 Ba7 | 23708
VWholesale and retail trade 2 003 37 420 3744 235 0| 43402
Transpod and storage 176 5228 | 761 52 0| &z17
Accommodalion and food senvice activilies 106 M 188 58 0 i 454
Informtion and communication 186 2218 422 1 o| 2837
Financial and insurance activites - 3845 1852 2 o 2 5502
Real estate activities 1 184 1452 285 129{ 2051
Professional, scentific and tech actilies 139 8936 3267 73 0] 12408
 Administrative and support service activities %0 228 507 160 0| @5
Pubdic sdministration and defence, compiilsary 0 700 0 2 0 702
Education - ol 0 &7 0 0 57
Human health services and soclal work act, 0 a3 123 1 0 167
Arts, entertainment and recreation 0 1 50 8 0 59
Other sarvices 0 i1 58 0 0 L)
Formign organizations, bodies 0| 0 0 0 0 0
Individulas 0 756 506 1081 3| 2376
Total 11071 80 027 19 279 2 402 1030 113809

The sectoral distribution of the Bank's risk exposures corresponds to the market average,

mainly finances sectors with typically high need for financing (real estate, trade,

manufacturing) with loans; off-balance sheet transactions are dominating in trade sectors
(trade finance) and in the real estate market (guarantee schemes).

6.11.4 Operational risk

The risk of incurring losses due to errors or non-compliance of internal procedures
(processes), staff or systems and the risk of incurring losses due to external events are
considered operational risks. The Sberbank Europe Group and so Sberbank Hungary as well
use the standardised measurement method based on gross business line revenues lo
determine the capital requirement for operational risk.

Within the Sberbank Europe Group, risk management comprises the following processes in
general; risk identification; measurement and evaluation of risk exposures; ensuring
appropriate capital monitoring and planning; taking appropriate measures to control and
mitigate risks. Operational risks are measured both guantitatively and qualitatively (for
example: collection of loss data, monitoring external loss events, risk self-assessments,

manitoring risk-mitigating measures).
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The most important component of the 3-layer defence line is the operational risk manager
(Business Line Operational Risk Managers (BLORMs)) The main methodology components
are (also) determined centrally with the involvement of the parent bank, but the identification
of risks and problems within the various areas is decentralised through the BLORMs and
they are also responsible for checking the implementation of risk-mitigating measures

In 2019 the Bank mainly fine-tuned its risk measurement methods (in particular, the methods
used for risk evaluation) and improved the quality of internal loss data collection, it regularly
monitored the operation of internal controls and developed its capital calculation procedure
under Pillar Il (ICAAP),

In the future, operational risk management will focus on the following activities:
= continuous development of risk evaluation methodology
continuous development of internal controls
development of outsourcing processes
monitoring of internal capital requirement
improving the quality of loss data and developing data collection practices

A monthly report is prepared and submitted to the Risk Committee about operational risk
losses, risk evaluation results and the implementation of internal controls, as well as about
the utilisation of internal limits determined with respect to operational risk appetite.

Operational risk losses can be ciassified into one of the following main categaries:

= Internal fraud. an intentional action where al least one internal party was involved.

« External fraud: losses stemming from the intentional activity of a third party alone,
aimed at fraud, misappropriation or the evasion of legal regulations

« Employer practice and occupational safety: losses incurred due to the violation of
employer, healthcare or occupational safety requirements; losses stemming from
individual litigated claims related to labour law; losses caused by social or cultural
discrimination

« Client, business practice, marketing and product policy: losses resulting from
unintentional or negligent breach of professional obligations vis-a-vis clients
(including confidence or professional requirements) or losses stemming from product
features or product design

= losses affecting tangible assets: depreciation caused by natural disasters or other
events

« Business disruption and system failures: losses stemming from business disruption or
the shutdown or failure of production systems

« Execution, performance and process management damage caused by the incorrect
processing of transactions or the management of processes related to commercial
clients and suppliers
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6.12 Approval for issue

The general meeting of the Bank will approve the annual financial statements for issue on 30
April 2020.

Budapest, 21 April 2020

{ e | 2 J
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s
Richard Szabo Eva Tudfgx:nnr ﬁngy&sy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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